
Meeting of:  Integrated Commissioning Board
Date: Tuesday, 29th May, 2018
Time: 3.30 pm.
Venue: Rochdale Town Hall, The Esplanade, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  MINUTES 4 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held 10th April 2018 

5.  PRESNETATION - LOCAL CARE ORGANISATION (LCO) 
BUSINESS PLAN 

LCO Chief Executive to present 

6.  PRESENTATION - HEALTHY LIFE EXPECTANCY 

Director of Public Health to present 

Public Document Pack



7.  OVER THE COUNTER PRESCRIBING MEDICINES - VERBAL 
UPDATE 

Deputy Chief Officer (HMR CCG) to verbally update  

8.  TRANSFORMATION PERFORMANCE REPORT 10 - 22

To consider responses to questions raised on the performance review 
in February 2018 specifically in relation to outpatients and electives 
admissions. 

9.  TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - HIGHLIGHTS REPORT 23 - 42

To review the performance of the transformation programme for month 
one of 2018/19. 

10.  TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REVIEW OF 2017/18 43 - 61

To review single commissioning, function development, local care 
organisation development and transformation for the past year. 

11.  HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND FINAL 
OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18 

62 - 67

To consider the final position of the Better Care Fund for the financial 
year 2017/18. 

12.  HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND REVISED 
BUDGET REPORT- 2018/19 

68 - 74

To consider the Health and Social Care Better Care Fund Revised 
Budget 2018/19 

13.  FINAL 2017/18 SHADOW POOLED BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT 75 - 81

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the final 
position of the shadow pooled budget for Health and Social Care for 
the financial year 2017/18. 

14.  POOLED BUDGET SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2018/19 82 - 88

To review work undertaken on the Pooled Budget Savings Programme 
2018/19. 



15.  SECTION 75 REPORT - HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POOLED 
FUND 

89 - 126

To consider the progress made on the production of the Section 75 
agreement for the Pooled Fund and the agreement for the Council and 
CCG to progress with the operation of the pooled fund. 

Integrated Commissioning Board Members
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Allen Brett Denise Dawson
Sheila Downey Dr Chris Duffy
Sam Evans Andrea Fallon
Councillor Kieran Heakin Gail Hopper
Sanjay Kotegaonkar Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Paul Rowen Steve Rumbelow
Simon Wootton

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Michael Garraway
T: 01706 924716
E: Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk

mailto:Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 10th April 2018

PRESENT: Graham Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG Dr Bodrul Alam 
(Clinician), Dr Chris Duffy (Clinical Lead), Denise Dawson (Lay Member) RBC 
Councillor Brett (Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Corporate and 
Resources), Rowbotham (Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing) and 
Councillor Heakin (Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services).

OFFICERS: HMR CCG - S. Evans and S. Croasdale; RBC – S. Rumbelow, 
G. Hopper, N. Thornton, V. Bradshaw, W. Meston and P. Thompson.    

APOLOGIES
89 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Sally McIvor, Andrea Fallon (RBC); Paul Hinnighan, Paul Rowen, Simon 
Wootton and Karen Hurley (HMR CCG).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
90 There were no declarations of interests.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
91 There were no urgent items of business for the meeting to consider.

MINUTES
92 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board held 
13th March 2018 be approved as a correct record. 

TRANSFORMATION HIGHLIGHTS REPORT
93 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Director that 
provided Members with an update on the following: (a) Finance – describing 
current status and the impact of any financial risks on the programme; (b) 
Programme Delivery – new reporting system starts to describe delivery 
supported by an intervention recovery process; (c ) Local Care Organisation – 
general update; and (d) Risk – a look at the quarterly “business as usual” risk 
submitted to the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership 
(GMH&SCP) meeting that was held in February 2018. The overall rating of the 
programme for this period was Amber. 

Finance: At period 11, the locality reported to GMH&SCP a (£1,700,000) 
(27%) forecasted full year underspend versus the bid investment agreement, 
which was no change on Period 10. Work continued to track expenditure from 
providers across the locality to agree the year end position. This continued to 
be challenging as no formal Local Care Organisation or contractual 
agreements were in place.  As reported in the previous months financial 
update, delays in mobilisation and recruitment put at significant risk the ability 
to achieve the ‘ramp up’ of deflection targets, required in 2018-19. With this in 
mind the 2018-19 deflection targets were reduced, in a high level process that 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



linked in to the draft submission of the 2018-19 Operation Plan for HMR Acute 
Activity and the Greater Manchester End of Year Transformation Return. This 
does not change the overall ambition to reach the 2020/21 targets agreed and 
embedded into the Transformation Investment Agreement. The detail behind 
the change in 2018/19 deflection targets are being rolled out across the theme 
leads and project delivery managers. 

The 2018/19 deflection targets were reduced but they remained ambitious and 
predicated on a speedy mobilisation of all interventions. The reduction in 
deflection activity will have an impact on the speed at which cashable benefits 
can be taken out of Acute Care expenditure and NHS Provider Contracts. This 
in turn would likely reduce the overall ability for the Transformation Locality 
Plan to close the financial gap and work was underway to quantify this. 

Programme delivery: Significant work had been done with ‘Theme and 
Intervention’ leads to align the Transformation programme with a new and 
robust way of monitoring and reporting. The new reports were developing a 
more accurate description of delivery and have been tested out throughout 
March and the beginning of April 2018.

Local Care Organisation (LCO): The development of the LCO has continued 
through the following activity: 

 Due diligence: At the time of writing this report the due diligence 
process was incomplete. A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

 Partnership Agreement was approved by LCO Board and circulated for 
signing 

 The LCO launched their organisation at an event held at Rochdale 
Football Club. At the launch: 

 Sheila Downey stepped down as interim Chief Executive 
 Steve Taylor was introduced as the permanent Chief Executive 
 One Rochdale Health and Care was unveiled as the LCO’s official 

identity and brand 

Risk: The new integrated locality risk register was presented at the Integrated 
Commissioning Board’s meeting on 13th March 2018. Since then work has 
progressed to align the new integrated risk strategy with the new way of 
reporting delivery. A monthly update of the risks scored red (15+) and above 
will be brought to ICB from May 2018 onwards.
 
As reported in March, Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership (GMH&SCP) were requesting a ‘business as usual’ risk update to 
be included within their quarterly risk submissions from localities, alongside 
high level transformational risks. The GMH&SCP risk matrix scoring does not 
align exactly to the integrated matrix used by the Programme Management 
Office. However, it has been agreed both locally and by the Partnership that 
any risks scored 15+ on the above matrix will be submitted as part of the 
GMH&SCP ask.

Page 5



Decision:
That the report be noted.

TRANSFORMATION PERFORMANCE REPORT
94 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the 
Transformation Director regarding issues that were raised as a result of a 
report that was presented to the Board on 28th February 2018. The report 
responded to those questions and also provided a ‘deep dive’ on outpatients 
and electives admissions. The following areas were included in the report; 

1. Accident and Emergency: Frequent Attenders and Mental Health 
2. Emergency Admissions: Ambulatory Care, Hospital transfers and Paediatric 
by age band 
3. Deep Dive Outpatients 
4. Deep Dive Elective admissions 
5. NHS Constitution indicator comparator 

With regard to frequent attenders at A&E facilities it was has highlighted that 
in 2017/18 year to date, one patient had attended A&E on 52 occasions in 
2017. In 2016/17 there were 103 patients that attended A&E 13 times or 
above. To date in 2017/18 64 patients have attended 13 times or more. Of the 
97,198 total A&E attendances to date, 1,112 were due to frequent attenders.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE POOLED FUND - SECTION 75 PROGRESS 
REPORT
95 The Integrate Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer which updated members on progress being made on the draft 
Section 75 Report for the Pooled Fund.

The draft Section 75 Report was based on the current report for the Better 
Care Fund, which in itself was based on the ‘industry standard Bevan Brittan 
template’.

The report confirmed that the draft Section 75 for the Pooled Fund had been 
reviewed by the Chief Finance Officers from the Council and HMR CCG, their 
respective Senior Managers and was still being reviewed by a combination of 
Legal Officers within the Council/external Legal Partners. 

The final version of the Section 75 was due to be presented for approval at 
the integrated Commissioning Board’s meeting on 29th May 2018.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE POOLED FUND - 2018/19 OPENING BUDGETS
96 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officers, the purpose of which was to update members on the 

Page 6



opening budgets, for 2018/19, for the Health and Social Care Pooled Funds. 
The report reflected the financial gap that had been reported on the Pooled 
Fund to the Council’s Budget Meeting on 28th February 2018 and to the 
CCG’s Governing Body Meeting on 16th March 2018. 

The Opening Budget position reflected an overall financial gap for the Pooled 
Fund in 2018/19 of £16,654,000 and it was reported that a further report 
would be submitted to a future Integrated Commissioning Board meeting to 
update members on those measures that were being taken to reduce and 
mitigate the opening financial gap.

The Council had reported a £8.654m shortfall against expected expenditure in 
its contribution to the Pooled Fund at its Budget Council on 28th February 
2018. Meanwhile the CCG reported a £8,000,000 shortfall against expected 
expenditure in its contribution to the Pooled Fund at its Governing Body 
Meeting on 16th March 2018.

The budgets reported at both of these meetings included their respective 
contributions to the Better Care Fund, which totalled £24,892,000 overall.

Decision:
1. The ICB acknowledges the Opening Budgets for the Pooled Fund for 

18/19 and the financial gap reflected within this of £16.654,000;
2. The ICB acknowledges that an further report will be brought to a future 

meeting of the Board to update members of measures being taken to 
close the reported financial gap.  

POOLED BUDGET SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2018/19
97 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that updated members on the savings requirement for 
2018/19 and the schemes that were identified and implemented during the 
budget setting/contracting process. The report also stated the need to identify 
on-going savings schemes and gave examples of the documentation that was 
available and which was reviewed in pursuit of further saving schemes. The 
report also detailed the process for identifying and monitoring existing/future 
saving programmes.

The report referred to the Local Authority’s funding gap was after non-
recurrent funding of £771,000 and £693,000 of which was the receipt of 
additional Adult Social Care grant which was non-recurrent.  The risk share 
agreement for the Pooled budget is 70/30 CCG/RBC which in financial terms 
based on the above deficit would be £4.112m for the CCG & £1.763m for 
RBC.  The CCG currently had a contingency of £1,900,000 of which 74% 
(approximately £1,400,000) was available for the services within the pool and 
therefore other schemes needed to be identified and delivered as a matter of 
urgency.

Decision:
That the Integrated Commissioning Board acknowledges the contents of the 
submitted report which notes that work is being carried out towards achieving 

Page 7



the savings plan for 2018/19 and to ensure that the savings target will be met 
to enable the Pooled budget to meet its financial obligations.

NEW OTC MEDICINES PRESCRIBING ANNOUNCEMENTS
98 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that informed members of a briefing that had been issued by 
NHS England and NHS Clinical Commissioners on 29th March 2018 and also 
of the outcomes of a consultation exercise on prescribing at NHS expense for 
self-limiting conditions or minor illness which were suitable for self-care.
 
The NHS England briefing recommend that for 35 short term conditions, 
medicines which were currently available over the counter (OTC) were no 
longer routinely prescribed by GPs, with few but notable exceptions. The 
Briefing recommends that vitamins, minerals and probiotics be no longer 
prescribed as they lacked high quality evidence of clinical effectiveness. HMR 
CCG’s Governing Body had approved non-prescribing for many of these items 
by GPs in 2016 and many patients had been directed towards purchase. 
However some prescribing continued at the NHS’s expense.

Considerable time and supportive work would be required to reassure many 
GPs that directing patients to purchase OTC medicines (or to use the NHS’s 
minor ailment scheme where appropriate) was acceptable. This was 
particularly relevant for patients who would not normally pay NHS prescription 
charges and their GP may not be able to determine if the person has the 
financial ability to purchase OTC treatments. The term “complex medical 
needs” is often subject to some debate and could lead to significant variability. 
A communications strategy to engage and inform local patients that some 
commonly prescribed medicines would no longer be available through GP 
prescribing. This could result in further information needing to be available in 
other frequently spoken languages. Patients who have received medicines for 
many years might be unwilling to readily accept this change in practice.

The Board considered the report in detail. It was suggested that a Greater 
Manchester wide approach to adopting the proposed revised policies in 
relation to the purchasing of OTC medicines be sought and if this could not 
practically happen then the CCG be requested to seek legal advice to 
determine if the recommendations, contained in the report, could be 
implemented solely within the HMR CCG’s administrative boundaries. Dr 
Duffy, on behalf of HMR CCG, undertook to write to the General Medical 
Council, in this regard. Board members also sought clarification on the 
financial costs associated with the implementation of this policy.

Decision:
1. The Integrated Commissioning Board endorses and approves, in principal, 
the NHS England recommendations on behalf of HMR CCG and the Rochdale 
Borough Council, noting that the recommendations apply to all patients with 
the exception of those who suffer from complex long term conditions or those 
with significant mental health or social vulnerability (in the opinion of the 
clinician); noting further that patients who do not pay NHS prescription 
charges would not be exempt from the provisions;

Page 8



2. The Integrated Commissioning Board notes the NHS England 
recommendations detailed in the submitted report;
3. Details of the financial costs associated with the implementation of this 
policy, be submitted to a future meeting of the Board;
4. that HMR CCG’s Chief Officer be requested to seek  a Greater Manchester 
wide approach to adopting the proposed revised policies in relation to the 
purchasing of OTC medicines and to take appropriate legal advice, as to how 
to proceed, on the result of the enquiries to the Greater Manchester Medicines 
Management Group;
5. that the undertaking given by Dr Duffy to seek the advice of the General 
Medical Council in this regard, be noted.

Page 9



 
 
 

1 
 

 

Aim 

The ICB received a performance report in February which raised a number of questions. This paper 

aims to respond to those questions and also provide a deep dive on outpatients and electives 

admissions. The following areas are included in the paper;  

1. Accident and Emergency   

(i) Frequent Attenders  

(ii) Mental Health 

2. Emergency Admissions  

(i) Ambulatory Care 

(ii)Hospital transfers 

(iii)Paediatric by age band 

3. Deep Dive Outpatients  

4. Deep Dive Elective admissions 

5. NHS Constitution indicator comparator 

 

1. Accident and Emergency (A&E)  

1i Frequent Attenders  

Following on from the previous A&E Deep Dive ICB paper it was has highlighted that in 2017/18 year to 

date, a patient had attended A&E on 52 occasions in 2017.  

In 2016/17 there were 103 patients that attended A&E 13 times or above. To date in 2017/18 64 

patients have attended 13 times or more. Of the 97,198 total A&E attendances to date, 1,112 were due 

to frequent attenders.  

How will our transformation plans attempt to help A&E ‘frequent flyers’ and therefore reduce demand on 

services?  

Focused Care Workers 

As part of the Neighbourhoods & Primary Care theme, Focused Care Workers will identify and support 

the most vulnerable and complex patients within the locality with the aim to ensure appropriate 

engagement with health and social care partners rather than reliance upon attendance at A&E.  

Focused Care Workers will engage with those clients identified within the most deprived areas of the 

locality to ensure reduced demand to areas such as the ambulance service, the police and healthcare 

services by providing on-going support to manage sometimes complex physical, emotional and mental 

wellbeing needs.  Identification of clients will be carried out through GP referral schemes and multi-

disciplinary meets between professionals. 

 

One Systems Approach-paediatrics 

Programme Director Sandra Croasdale 

Period of Report  March 2018 

Date  4th April 2018 

Paper Performance Paper 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 

2 
 

As part of the development of the paediatric nurse practitioner clinic Rochdale are in discussion with 

Greater Manchester regarding the phase two pilot project to look at frequent paediatric attenders to 

A&E. In partnership with local providers Rochdale will create a Locality based Multi-Disciplinary Hub 

solution in the locality of Middleton which stems health, social care and voluntary sector intervention. 

This pilot will be evaluated by Salford University. 

1. Accident and Emergency (A&E)  

1 ii Mental Health 

The number of A&E attendances for mental health conditions in 2017/18 Pennine Acute (PAHT) sites 

continues to be a concern within regard to the following analysis; 

 57.7% of all Mental Health attendances were discharged with no further treatment or left the 

department without being treated.   

 At Rochdale Infirmary, 51.9% required no further treatment or left before being seen.   

 25% of total attendances were patients aged 20-29, 11% were aged 15-19 

 

Illustrated in the tables below are PAHT A&E Attendances with Mental Health presentations and route of 

referral from 1st Jan 2017 to 31 Dec 2017.  

Activity includes all attendances where Primary diagnosis is Psychiatric conditions or free text includes 

mention of MH presentation, overdose, suicidal, self-harm. 

 

The below tables identify the discharge and referral method from A&E and questions the 

appropriateness of attendance, care setting and follow up.  

  FGH NMGH RI ROH Totals 

Discharged - no follow up treatment 1,122 306 466 317 2,211 

Admitted to hospital bed 346 99 73 200 718 

Discharged - follow up treatment by GP 222 83 201 86 592 

Referred to other Out-Patient Clinic 14 4 110 128 256 

Left Department before being treated 68 29 30 60 187 

Left Department having refused treatment 47 21 29 18 115 

Referred to other health care professional 5 5 43 2 55 

Totals 1,834 550 955 815 4,154 

 

 FGH NMGH RI ROH Totals 

Self-referral 997 314 632 484 2,427 

Other 578 173 218 213 1,182 

Health care provider: same or other 180 39 30 57 306 

General Medical Practitioner 66 19 59 40 184 

Educational establishment 4 2 13 17 36 

Local authority social services 5 1 2 1 9 

Totals 1,834 550 955 815 4,154 

Fairfield General Hospital(FGH), North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH, Rochdale Infirmary (RI), Royal Oldham 

Hospital (ROH) 

Page 11



 
 
 

3 
 

How will Rochdale’s transformation plans attempt to help Mental Health A&E attendances and therefore 

reduce demand on services?  

Living Well Hub (Day) Safe Haven (Night)  

As part of the Mental Health Urgent Care Offer, the Living Well Hub will provide a daytime Mental Health 

face to face offer on a drop in basis for anyone who requires it with a short term introduction which deals 

with the immediate issue facing an individual and supports them to address that issue.  The Safe Haven 

will offer a night-time out of hours crisis hub aimed at reducing hospital admissions for people 

presenting at A and E with Mental Health symptoms or in mental health crisis in other parts of the 

system e.g. police, street triage, social care, emergency duty team. It will offer a café style safe place 

where people get the support they need in a crisis to address their immediate issues and they can 

continue going for a time limited period (4 -6 weeks) for support. They can also be signposted from the 

haven to appropriate out of hospital mental health services for additional support.  

Discussions are currently being held regarding the transportation of clients who attend Fairfield General 

(FGH) or Royal Oldham (ROH) in the immediate timeframe.  However, over time there would be an 

assumption that as people become familiar with the offer they would go directly to the living well hub or 

safe haven rather than going to FGH or ROH. 

2i. Ambulatory Care 

A significant proportion of adult patients requiring emergency care can be managed safely and 

appropriately on the same day, either without admission to a hospital bed at all, or admission for only a 

number of hours. This is achieved by streamlining access to diagnostic services and reorganising the 

working patterns of emergency care clinicians to be able to provide early decision making and 

treatment. There is also a need for immediate access to support services in the community to provide 

robust safety net systems and optimise integrated care. This is particularly important for managing the 

frail elderly on an ACS Pathway.  

Whilst there have previously been issues on counting ACS admissions, particularly at Fairfield, PAHT 

have resolved this and are now able to provide details of activity where patients have been admitted on 

the ACS pathway. The tables below show the total PAHT Emergency Admissions by month and year as 

well as the number of ACS admissions.  

2016/17 

 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

All Emerg Adm 2,055  1,720  1,672  2,071  1,675  2,101  1,729  1,830  2,297  1,850  1,823  2,304  

ACS 341 423 421 423 470 419 441 428 440 466 386 485 

ACS as % of all 
Em Adm 16.6% 24.6% 25.2% 20.4% 28.1% 19.9% 25.5% 23.4% 19.2% 25.2% 21.2% 21.1% 

               

Page 12



 
 
 

4 
 

 
2017/18 

            

 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

All Emerg Adm 1,784  1,901  2,264  1,897  2,209  2,045  2,076  2,634  1,993  1,983  2,082  2,505  

ACS 488 486 538 563 528 581 614 579 656 622 519   

ACS as % of all 
Emerg Adm 27.4% 25.6% 23.8% 29.7% 23.9% 28.4% 29.6% 22.0% 32.9% 31.4% 24.9%   

 

The proportion of ACS admissions has increased from 22% of all Emergency Admissions in 2016/17 to 

27% in 2017/18.  

It should be noted that since April 2016, only 6 ACS admissions were referred directly by a GP. All other 

admissions came through A&E.  

Whilst there is a general increase in Emergency Admissions, the number of zero day length of stays has 

increased as below: 

All Emergency admissions with 0 day length of stay (*up to February 2018) 

 

 

 

The following charts compare Emergency admissions with bed days 

 

In 2017/18 to date, over 85% of ACS admissions had a length of stay up to 3 days. The table below 

illustrates the percentage of ACS admissions by length of stay. 

1,300

1,400

1,500

1,600

1,700

1,800

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

Admissions Apr 2016 to  Jan 2018 

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

Bed days Apr 2016 to Jan 2018 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18* 

7,851 8,923 9,005 

Page 13



 
 
 

5 
 

Year 0 days 1 days 2 days 3 days 4 days 5 days 6 days 7 days 
8 to 14 

days 

15 to 

21 days 

22 to 

28 days 

> 4 

weeks 
Total 

2016/17 37.8% 29.4% 11.5% 6.6% 4.1% 2.4% 2.0% 1.3% 3.5% 0.9% 0.3% 0.4% 100.0% 

2017/18 40.4% 27.0% 11.0% 6.8% 4.2% 2.8% 1.7% 1.3% 3.6% 0.7% 0.2% 0.1% 100.0% 

Work is ongoing to analyse the ACS lengths of stay and the conditions that patients are being admitted 

with. Whilst ACS admissions are generally intended to be short lengths of stay, preliminary analysis 

however shows that some patients have started their hospital spell on an ACS pathway but completed 

their hospital stay elsewhere. 

2ii Emergency Admissions (NEL) - transfers 

Following on from February ICB further analysis was carried out to establish if hospital to hospital 

transfers were having any significant impact on NEL activity data. 

The transfer of care between hospitals can occur to provide continuation of care, repatriation or for 

diagnostic testing. Not all hospitals have a full range of diagnostic or treatment equipment and a patient 

transfer is often arranged to transport a patient from the hospital they are in to another hospital for such 

medical procedures as CT Scans, MRI’s, radiation treatments, dialysis sessions or cardiac diagnostics.  

For Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale patients there were 307 transfers in 2016/17 which equates to 

1.14% of total NEL admissions. In 2017/18 to date there are 262, which is 0.97% of total NEL.  

Rochdale consistently has one the lowest number of inter hospital transfers across Greater Manchester. 

2iii Emergency Admissions (NEL) – Paediatric by age band 

Following on from February ICB further analysis was carried out after a request to look deeper into age 

bands for NEL activity. The report highlighted that between the ages of 0-19 an increase has been seen 

of 3.28% in 2017/18 on the previous year.  

The age groups 5-9 and 10-14 saw significant percentage increases with 17.86% and 17.65% 

respectively.  

The method of NEL admissions via A&E for 00-19 increased by 23.88%, with a reduction of those via a 

GP, other means, transfers and consultant clinics all reduced. 

Illustrated below top are the 10 NEL paediatric admissions, with a total of all respiratory conditions.  

  
2016/2017  
Apr to Jan  

2017/2018 
Apr to Jan  

Increase/ 
decrease 

Acute Obstructive Laryngitis [croup] 31 117 86 

Acute Upper Respiratory Infection, Unspecified 272 343 71 

Unspecified Acute Lower Respiratory Infection 190 238 48 

Acute Tonsillitis, Unspecified 258 291 33 

Viral Infection, Unspecified 461 511 50 

Viral Intestinal Infection, Unspecified 125 130 5 

Asthma, Unspecified 138 139 1 

Other Low Birth Weight 167 157 -10 

Acute Bronchiolitis, Unspecified 345 282 -63 

Neonatal Jaundice, Unspecified 482 351 -131 

    Total respiratory activity 1,375 1,630 255 

Page 14



 
 
 

6 
 

Whilst Respiratory conditions on the whole have seen significant increase, admission for Acute 

Obstructive Laryngitis ‘croup’ has seen a significant increase. This however is not specific to Rochdale. 

Data from across Greater Manchester activity would suggest that NEL for Croup has increased across 

the board over the last 12 months. The data below indicates that admission for Croup as a Primary 

Diagnosis appears to go in yearly cycles as last year was low compared to the previous year. Coding 

will be investigated to ensure there have been no changes in year that may account for this.  

 
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

NHS BOLTON CCG 145 57 140 65 151 

NHS BURY CCG 80 36 70 33 90 

NHS MANCHESTER CCG 220 85 219 88 265 

NHS HMR CCG 83 41 90 31 117 

NHS OLDHAM CCG 87 43 69 38 148 

NHS SALFORD CCG 83 43 69 24 69 

NHS STOCKPORT CCG 113 53 96 45 144 

NHS TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP CCG 69 49 85 42 105 

NHS TRAFFORD CCG 79 22 85 33 85 

NHS WIGAN BOROUGH CCG 71 24 77 23 61 

Grand Total 1,030 453 1,000 422 1,235 

 

Significant numbers of paediatric NEL are a conversion of A&E attendance to admission to observation 

and assessment units for a 0 day length of stay.  Lack of appropriate paediatric skills within A&E  have 

been acknowledged by PAHT, compounded by workforce challenges within Paediatrics as a whole – a 

consequence of this is a lack of confidence in identifying and managing  clinical risk effectively.  Oldham 

and HMRCCG’s have agreed funding to provide a paediatric consultant in Oldham A&E for  a twelve 

month pilot in 18-19 to support assessment of children and young people and avoid unnecessary 

admission. 

Throughout 16/17 the Children’s Acute and Ongoing Needs Service delivered Paediatric Nurse 

Practitioner Clinics within the community to offer care to Children and Young People who had an Urgent 

Health Care need, but were unable to gain an appointment with their GP.  Through the children’s theme 

of the locality plan the paediatric nurse practitioners intervention aims to further extend and develop this 

project within the context of the Family Services Model. As part of this work and in discussion with the 

GM paediatric avoidable admissions group HMR are piloting an integrated approach through our locality 

teams- with the aiming of avoiding both A&E and NEL – in effect piloting a children’s  ‘community hub’ 

approach. Our pilot has three phases (PNP in locality teams, GP led multi-disciplinary teams, acute 

paediatric role), and we are working in partnership with Salford University and GM to evaluate impact. 

 

3 Deep Dive Outpatients (OP) 
An OP attendance is where a patient who attends a hospital for treatment, consultation or minor 
procedure without staying there overnight, either as a new outpatient or as a follow-up (return) 
outpatient. Appointments types are face to face and telephone. 

The national targets are to reduce OP attendances based on the nationally submitted plans by the 

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). The plans derive from contract negotiations with providers and 

those set out within the Locality Plan. 

Outpatient Conclusions drawn from deep dive analysis 

Page 15



 
 
 

7 
 

 Total Outpatient attendances have increased by +73.5%, with +1.1% increase in First 

attendances and +53.6% in Follow Up attendances 

 The referrals to OP appointments via a GP has increased significantly with +183.5%(19,216) 

Illustrated below are the top 7 reasons treated within an OP settings. 

 
2016/17 2017/18 Variance Percentage increase 

ENT 6,922 11,034 4,112 59.4% 

Trauma & Orthopaedics 20,588 23,795 3,207 15.6% 

Diagnostic Imaging 587 3,057 2,470 420.8% 

Urology 6,328 8,532 2,204 34.8% 

Pain Management 2,518 4,284 1,766 70.1% 

Gastroenterology 3,145 4,796 1,651 52.5% 

Clinical Haematology 10,692 12,258 1,566 14.6% 

 

Diagnostic imaging, Ear, Nose and Throat (ENT), gastroenterology, urology and Trauma & 

Orthopaedics (T&O) all relate to unintended consequences of the Integrated Elective Care Pathways 

(IECP) such as duplicate entry of activity data by BMI Healthcare and Pennine Acute Hospital Trust 

(PAHT).  

Diagnostic imaging is a problematic area and analysis is being undertaken to establish direct access 

Any Qualified Provider or as part of care pathways.  

The increase in ‘pain’ is being investigated but it is felt at this stage that this could be due to invoicing 

issues and duplicate counting.  

What work is being undertaken within the Rochdale Health and Social Care Locality Plan to reduce and 

deflect outpatient attendances and avoid admissions? 

Integrated Elective Care Pathways (IECP) 

Rochdale is already at the forefront of planned care transformation and has undertaken an ambitious 

system transformation by commissioning IECPs.  

To date the IECPs are currently delivering the following. a single entry point with clinical triage for each 

clinical specialty, to ensure every patient is directed to the most appropriate professional (including 

allied health professionals) within the most appropriate provider, first time.    

 standardised evidence-based pathways and operating protocols across providers, to streamline 

and reduce variation in patient care 

 risk stratification co-designed by clinical teams 

 one stop shop diagnostics and treatment where clinically appropriate, using a reduced tariff  

 Direct transfer of patients between providers at the same point in the pathway, preventing waste 

through duplicated diagnostics and outpatient appointments and enabling direct surgical listing 

 co-production and patient involvement in decisions about their care 

 Enhanced and rapid recovery pathways to reduce length of stay where surgery is on an 

inpatient basis. 

Rochdale are also taking action to reduce avoidable demand for elective care through Advice and 

Guidance and taking system-wide action to reduce procedures of limited clinical value. 

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 

Page 16



 
 
 

8 
 

The Integrated Neighbourhood vision is to support neighbourhoods to deliver asset rich, high quality and 
connected services which look after the adult neighbourhood population to support all to have improved 
outcomes, prosperity and wellbeing.  
 
The respiratory and falls projects will enable patients to be better managed within the community and 
therefore could results in fewer outpatient referrals and activity.  

 
Pain Services 

The pain project involves the mobilisation of a new community pain service, using a self-care model, 

and the movement of suitable patients from our existing acute- and medical-based pain service to the 

new community pain service. 

 

Despite the evidence that this project is achieving clear deflections and cost savings as seen below, 

there is still a long way to go in the move towards a bio-psycho-social approach to pain management in 

the borough.  

 

.  

The future of pain services will results in far less non-evidence based pain procedures due to offering a 

more holistic approach to pain management, managed in community and primary care settings 

 

4. Deep Dive Elective Admission’s (EL) 

An Elective Admission (EL) is an admission that has been arranged in advance. It is not an emergency 

admission, a maternity admission or a transfer from a Hospital Bed in another Health Care Provider. 

The period that the patient has to wait for admission depends on the demand on hospital resources and 

the facilities available to meet this demand. 

A day case is an elective admission whereby a patient requires a bed (though not overnight) and is 

done under the care of a doctor, dentist or nurse (as the consultant’s representative.) 

An ordinary admission is an elective admission whereby a patient is expected to require a bed for at 

least one night, including those who for whatever reason, do not stay overnight. 

 The national targets are to reduce EL based on the nationally submitted plans by the Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG). The plans derive from contract negotiations with providers and those set 

out within the Locality Plan. 

Elective Admissions Conclusions drawn from deep dive analysis 

 Elective Admission’s for Rochdale patients in the period January to December increased by 
3.79% compared to the same period in 2016/17.  

 Between 2016/17 and 2017/18 Day Cases increased by 5.93% but Ordinary Elective 
Admissions decreased by 7.8% 

 Day Cases makes up 86.1% (25,400) of all elective activity in 2017/18 and the other 13.9% 
(4,102) are Ordinary Elective Admissions.  

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 YTD(M6)

Outpatient Firsts Outpatient Follow-ups outpatient procedures

Page 17



 
 
 

9 
 

 
 

 Children’s(aged 0-19) admissions decreased by 4.33% 

 The aged groups 20-64 and 65+ increased by 4.78% and 33.9% respectively 
 

 In 2017/18 the most frequently preformed procedure in an elective daycase setting was 
Fibreoptic endoscopic examination of upper gastrointestinal tract and biopsy, with 1660 
admissions.  

 In 2017/18 the most frequent ordinary elective admissions were prosthetic replacement of knee 
joint using cement and prosthetic replacement of hip joint using cement.  

 
 

 The primary diagnosis with the largest increase when comparing 2016/17 to 2017/18 was 
Anaemia, with 175 more EL admissions.  

 Cataracts, unspecified was the most recorded primary diagnosis for all EL with 1,110 

admissions in 2017/18 but this is a 160 admission reduction on the same period in 2016/17 this 

was the largest reduction out of all the primary diagnosis.  

 Other primary diagnosis that saw significant reductions between 2016/17 and 2017/18 were; 

Lumb And Other Intervertebral Disc Disorders With Radiculopathy,  Other Specified 

Intervertebral Disc Degeneration, Other Spondylosis, Other Specified Intervertebral Disc 

Displacement, and Diaphragmatic Hernia Without Obstruction Or Gangrene.  

 

What work is being undertaken within the Rochdale Health and Social Care Locality Plan to reduce and 

deflect attendances and avoid admissions? 

Detailed below are Locality Plan interventions that were developed based on original analysis and 

knowledge. The deep dive has uncovered some new areas of concern and a mapping exercise is taking 

place to ensure interventions within the Locality Plan will address current activity and performance 

issues.  

Cancer Pathways 

The cancer pathways has a number of initiatives that aims to develop new approaches to aid earlier 

diagnosis of cancer and improve the care of people who are living with and beyond cancer and reduce 

NEL admissions. 

 

A meeting took place with Greater Manchester Cancer Network where it was confirmed that there was 

no additional funding available for cancer services. Despite this set back the Rochdale Cancer 

Pathways programme is going to forge ahead with the local community cancer support model however 

this may require some amendments as the GM work progresses.  

 

Work is underway to deliver.  

 Patients currently delayed through lack of patient tracking/co-ordination through hospitals  

 Prevention – many initiatives are working on the improvement of  lot of work on cancer screening. 

Working with NHSE reps and Public Health.  

 Straight to test (CT scan) is a programme where people with symptoms or suspected pancreatic 

cancer are sent straight for a CT scan from first contact rather than being referred to a specialist.  

 Work is being carried out with PAHT’s Cancer Manager and Performance Team to identity where 

we can collect more up to date information on patient diagnosis stage 1 and 2.  

 From 1 April, roll out of the community cancer support service for people living with and beyond 

cancer. This service will sit within the LCO and provide patients with the confidence and 

understating to manage their own symptoms effectively, to prevent going into crisis.  

Page 18



 
 
 

10 
 

 Across GM, Rochdale is currently looking at upper and lower Gastro Intestinal pathways, as 

currently there are long waiting lists for patients and need to understand an improvement for early 

diagnosis at a NE sector level. 

 FIT testing (Faecal Immunochemical Test) aims to provide a more robust and accurate testing in 

order to detect and diagnose cancer faster. HMR are about to sign up 1 year pilot funded by GM 

cancer   

The HMR Cancer Pathways programme is aligned to the GM wide cancer plan and leads are actively 

involved in on-going discussions.  

Integrated Elective Care Pathways (IECP) 

IECP is being delivered in partnership with 4 local providers, BMI Highfield, GP Care Services, Care UK 

/ INHealth and PAHT as the lead provider. All working to transform services in the following specialities: 

Gynaecology, Urology, Endoscopy, Orthopaedics and ENT. The IECPs and will deliver: 

 a single entry point with clinical triage for each clinical specialty, to ensure every patient is 

directed to the most appropriate professional (including allied health professionals) within the 

most appropriate provider, first time    

 standardised evidence-based pathways and operating protocols across providers, to streamline 

and reduce variation in patient care 

 risk stratification co-designed by clinical teams 

 one stop shop diagnostics and treatment where clinically appropriate, using a reduced tariff  

 Direct transfer of patients between providers at the same point in the pathway, preventing waste 

through duplicated diagnostics and outpatient appointments and enabling direct surgical listing 

 co-production and patient involvement in decisions about their care 

 enhanced and rapid recovery pathways to reduce length of stay where surgery is on an 

inpatient basis. 

Plans to implement the above will help to address the difficulties in achieving the Referral to Treatment 

(RTT) targets. Stronger alliances in integrated partnerships will reduce duplication when patients are 

transferred across providers which will decrease outpatient appointments and diagnostic tests. It should 

also result in an improvement in patient waiting times from the management in demand, improved self-

management and education for patients and a reduction in avoidable diagnostic investigations because 

appropriate primary care tests have not been undertaken before a referral was accepted by a planned 

care service   

Long Term Acute 

Improving care for people with long-term conditions must involve a shift away from a reactive, disease-

focused, fragmented model of care towards one that is more proactive, holistic and preventive, in which 

people with long-term conditions are encouraged to play a central role in managing their own care.    

Personalised care planning, where clinicians and patients work together using a collaborative process of 

shared decision-making to agree goals, identify support needs, develop and implement action plans, 

and monitor progress needs to commence in primary care, supported by INTs and continue through to 

hospital based care as part of a continuous process rather than a one-off event.   

 Cardiology 

 Respiratory / thoracic  

 MSK  

 Kidney Care  

 Diabetes 

 Gastroenterology  

 Neurology  

Planned initiative to move diagnostics from an acute setting back into the community at a reduced tariff.  

Page 19



 
 
 

11 
 

Developing a more holistic approach will enable better management of LTCs and will reduce the 

number of appointments that individuals will need to attend and reduce the variation in providers.  

By improving pathways, and services through a single point of access, there will be a reduction in 

outpatient activity through patients being seen in the right place, first time.  

Early diagnosis and treatment and effective signposting will also contribute to the reduction in demand 

on planned care.  

The pain project involves the mobilisation of a new community pain service, using a self-care model, 

and the movement of suitable patients from our existing acute- and medical-based pain service to the 

new community pain service. 

5. NHS Constitution indicator comparator 

Illustrated in Appendix A are the national constitutional targets with a comparison of Rochdale 

performance across Greater Manchester and England, where available.  

 

Outlier areas when compared with GM or failing national targets are; 

 Referral to treatment incomplete 18 weeks and 52 day breaches 

 Cancer 62 day waits 

 Cancer 62 day consultant upgrades 

 62-day wait for first treatment following referral from a NHS cancer screening service 

 Dementia diagnosis rates 

 Psychosis treated with a NICE approved care package within two weeks of referral 

 

 

Appendix A: NHS Constitution indicator comparator 

 

ICB are requested to note the contents of the performance and activity report and provide feedback as 
appropriate. 
 

 

Page 20



NHS Bolton 

CCG
NHS Bury CCG

NHS 

Manchester 

CCG

NHS Oldham 

CCG

NHS Salford 

CCG

NHS Stockport 

CCG

NHS Tameside 

and Glossop 

CCG

NHS Trafford 

CCG

NHS Wigan 

Borough CCG

A&E waiting times – total time in the A&E department - 4hrs
90%

78.3% 77.0% 78.3% 79.1% 78.9% 81.0% 71.9% 88.2% 81.7% 80.4% 85.1%

A&E -time 12 hours 
0

2 5 2 0 2 0 52 0 0 0 1,043

Incomplete RTT
92% 88.7% 88.7% 89.1% 90.0% 90.8% 92.6% 91.3% 92.0% 91.0% 93.7% 88.2%

Number of new RTT pathways (clock starts)
No Standard 8,582 8,750 5,877 16,616 8,773 8,851 10,002 7,491 7,107 10,312

No of 52 week referral to treatment pathways
0 4 3 0 4 1 3 2 2 0 1

Cancer two week waits
93% 93.18% 96.99% 93.97% 93.28% 91.81% 97.05% 96.47% 95.94% 94.71% 96.00% 93.86%

Two week wait for breast symptoms
93% 90.70% 81.13% 91.84% 92.75% 92.98% 89.36% 99.23% 90.12% 96.59% 95.65% 91.93%

Cancer 31 day waits
96% 96.77% 97.39% 96.43% 97.63% 95.92% 98.77% 100.00% 98.75% 96.19% 98.18% 96.42%

31-day standard for subsequent cancer treatments - anti cancer 

drug regimens
94% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 98.97%

31-day standard for subsequent cancer treatments – radiotherapy
98% 96.97% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 95.45% 100.00% 100.00% 96.11%

31-day standard for subsequent cancer treatments-surgery
94% 95.24% 100.00% 84.21% 100.00% 84.21% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 87.50% 97.06% 93.59%

Cancer 62 day waits
85% 79.59% 88.68% 76.09% 75.64% 79.59% 80.43% 84.48% 86.11% 73.47% 90.00% 80.94%

62-day wait for first treatment following referral from a NHS cancer 

screening service
90% 80.00% 100.00% 57.14% 100.00% 91.67% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 87.82%

62-day wait for first treatment for cancer following a consultant’s 

decision to upgrade the patient’s priority
No Standard 70.00% 87.50% 78.57% 84.21% 80.00% 77.78% 84.62% 73.08% 92.59% 97.92% 86.07%

IAPT roll-out
16.8% 12.5% 11.2% 15.2% 36.3% 15.9% 19.8% 23.0% 18.0% 9.0% 15.0%

IAPT recovery rate
50% 53.6% 57.1% 53.1% 34.2% 53.6% 45.5% 52.3% 46.2% 54.5% 50.8%

IAPT 6 week finished
75% 75.0% 95.5% 84.8% 59.0% 89.3% 73.3% 93.8% 84.6% 85.3% 100.0%

IAPT 6 week first
75% 85.1% 90.0% 95.1% 67.5% 92.9% 74.5% 95.1% 94.8% 81.3% 100.0%

IAPT 18 week finished
95% 96.4% 100.0% 100.0% 94.0% 100.0% 93.3% 100.0% 96.2% 100.0% 100.0%

Performance Indicator Heat Map comparator

National 

Performance

A&E

RTT

Cancer

Mental Health & Learning Disability

GM Comparator

National 

Standard /Target
Rochdale

The incomplete RTT target, mandated by the Government, sets out to achieve all patients who are referred should have been waiting no more than 18 weeks for required treatment.  For our patients who are referred to Pennine Acute, delays have been experienced across 2017/18 in certain 

specialties, namely Trauma & Orthopaedics, General Surgery, Gastro, Urology and Gynaecology in line with the increased demand and waiting list sizes highlighted in Table 2.  The Trust is currently working on recovery plans across the failing specialities to ensure future performance is maintained 

and waiting times are reduced.  Recovery plans include detail on actions the Trust is taking to improve performance, such as sub-contracting other providers for additional capacity, as well as internal mitigations such as using locum staff, additional outpatient clinics and theatre lists, and with 

additional theatre capacity being established at the Fairfield Site.  Notably, NHS England have removed the 92% target for 2018/19, with a focus being put on the waiting list measures.

The 52 week referral to treatment pathways highlights the total number of patients who have waited over 52 weeks from their initial referral.  3 HMR patients are awaiting plastic surgery at Manchester University Hospitals, whilst 1 patient is awaiting treatment classified as 'Other' under Leeds 

Teaching Hospitals.  Root cause analysis investigations are requested from the provider organisation for any HMR CCG patients to ensure patient safety is not compromised and that a date for treatment has been confirmed.  In 2018/19, NHS England have stated that CCG’s must plan to halve their 

number of people waiting over 52 weeks for treatment.

The 62-day wait for first treatment following a Consultant decision to upgrade a patients priority aims to treat patients who will not have initially been referred urgently for suspected cancer by their GP or NHS Cancer Screening service.  Whilst actual patients referred for upgrade are low,  each breach 

is detailed within monthly performance reports from Pennine Acute, with further details available via the Open Exeter Cancer Waiting Times system.  Reasons for delays in January include complex case issues, late referrals to the Christie Hospital and patients unavailable for treatment

RAG-national 

target

Contained within the scorecard below is the current Rochdale, Greater Manchester (GM) CCGs and where available England performance position. The 

first column is the RAG rating against national target and the sedondary RAG rating is using a heat map to display performance against GM CCGs.  

1/2 06/04/2018

P
age 21



NHS Bolton 

CCG
NHS Bury CCG

NHS 

Manchester 

CCG

NHS Oldham 

CCG

NHS Salford 

CCG

NHS Stockport 

CCG

NHS Tameside 

and Glossop 

CCG

NHS Trafford 

CCG

NHS Wigan 

Borough CCG

National 

Performance

GM Comparator

National 

Standard /Target
Rochdale

RAG-national 

target

IAPT 18 week first
95% 98.5% 98.3% 100.0% 97.4% 98.8% 97.2% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia
67% 67.1% 77.7% 86.6% 76.1% 79.2% 87.2% 72.6% 81.5% 74.7% 71.1%

Psychosis treated with a NICE approved care package within two 

weeks of referral
50% 16.7% 92.3% 16.7% 63.6% 0.0% 83.3% 50.0% 50.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Total Delayed Transfers (Days)
Reduction 337 1,297 913 2,134 270 547 1,046 804 1,094 656 909

Diagnostics Test Wait Times
1% 1.5% 7.7% 1.5% 2.0% 1.8% 3.5% 0.7% 1.1% 3.0% 1.6% 2.3%

NHS e-Referral Service (e-RS) Utilisation Coverage
100% 126% 78% 83% 83% 99% 106% 61% 27% 62% 65% 62%

Extended access (evening and weekends) at GP services
100% 83.3% 12.0% 82.8% 83.0% 83.7% 11.1% 15.0% 84.2% 3.1% 95.1% 32.5%

Activity data not included where a comparison cannot be used. 

The latest reported data for Dementia diagnosis (January 2018) shows achievement at 67.1%. This indicates sustained delivery across the year with 67.39% diagnosis rate against a 66.7% target. Dementia remains a high strategic priority for the CCG. Work to improve the diagnosis rate 

performance is on-going including work to improve Dementia diagnosis coding at GP practice level and developments within the Dementia pathway.

Delayed Transfers of Care

Diagnostics

E-Referrals

Primary Care Extended Access

2/2 06/04/2018

P
age 22



TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

 

 

Aim 

This paper provides the ICB with an update on the following: 

 Finance & Performance at Programme Level – describing the current reporting status 

across the organisations. 

 Programme Delivery – describing the effect of the transformation fund on our locality. 

 Local Care Organisation – first update since “go live” date.  

 Risk – a look at the systems collective Transformation risk. 

The overall rating of the programme for this period is Amber. 

 

Finance & Performance at Programme Level 

Due to the year-end process, Provider and Commissioner Organisations historically do not 

produce month 1 financial or data information; therefore it is not possible to report on the April 

finances or data performance for the Transformation fund with any degree of accuracy. Both 

areas will be reported to ICB from Month 2 onwards. 

Work has been completed with GM during April to align the transformation investment agreement 

with operating plans.  

 

Programme Delivery 

With a more robust reporting process in place the PMO have been able to identify areas within 

the system that require additional support and have now started to work with individuals to create 

more resource capacity. With this there has been a shift in focus to really understand and 

appreciate what effect Transformation is having on our locality. A number of good news stories 

have been shared in the 12 Month Report; however here are 2 more stories from April that 

highlight how the teams are collaborating and the positive effect that has on an individual: 

Urgent Care - HEATT Car – April 2018 

NWAS were called to attend to a patient who had a choking incident at a care home. The 

individual had end stage dementia and swallowing difficulties, and had recently been discharged 

from hospital.   

Programme Director Sandra Croasdale 

Period of Report  Month 1 18/19 

Date written 21
st
 May 2018 

Overall Programme Rating 

This period –  
Month 1 18/19 

Last Period –  
Month 12 17/18 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

The care home staff called an ambulance. NWAS attended and contacted the HEATT Car team 

who phoned through to the Urgent Care Community Team.  

HEATT Car attended, carried out observations and were able to support the individual in the care 

home and therefore deflecting a potential A&E attendance and admission. They then liaised with 

GP to ensure that a management plan was in place for the individual.  

Primary Care - Focused Care – April 2018  

A Focused Care worker at a GP surgery resolved a long standing issue of fraud/financial abuse 
relating to an elderly and very vulnerable patient who had been manipulated and defrauded out 
of over £3000. The focused care worker contacted the lady’s bank and ensured all cards were 
stopped and replaced and that a fraud investigation was initiated with the police being involved to 
ensure no future threat to the lady’s safety from the perpetrators. This level of support and care is 
having a positive impact upon the lives of the patients.  
 

Theme Update 

Appendix 1 –Theme Update – This paper describes the recent delivery of the programme at a 

Theme level. This appendix also starts to provide an update on recruitment across the system; 

this work is in development and will now be reported on to ICB monthly.   

 

Transformation Performance Indicators (TPI’s) 

Work to identify primary TPI’s across the programme continues to progress with 2 more 

workshops held in April and a further 2 planned for May and June: 

 A TPI progress report was presented to the Neighbourhood and Primary Care Board on 

6
th
 April to demonstrate the measures that can be currently and regularly tracked for the 

first 4 interventions identified to go into the LCO contract. This report will be updated to 

include all 17 LCO interventions and seek agreement to proceed at a future LCO Board. 

 Follow up sessions with Project Delivery Managers of each intervention to confirm the 3 

primary TPI’s continues to progress across all interventions. 

.  

Local Care Organisation 

The due diligence process for the LCO completed at the end of March 2018. Of the five themes 
covered in the process, three were fully completed and the other two partially completed. Any 
outstanding actions from the partially completed themes will be address via either a Service 
Development Improvement Plan (SDIP) which will form part of the LCO Contract or will be further 
developed via the next gateway in the due diligence process. 

A robust lessons learnt exercise for due diligence is currently underway to ensure that all risks 
are understood and mitigated as appropriate. Learning from this exercise will be embedded in 
subsequent gateways.  

From 1
st
 April 2018 the LCO has responsibility for the delivery of 17 transformation interventions 

including primary care, urgent care and neighbourhood schemes.  

 

Page 24



TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

The LCO Board has now been constituted in two parts – Part A including commissioners and 
Part B provider only. LCO Board sub governance arrangements have been established to focus 
on the following three areas: 

 Development of the LCO 

 Delivery of transformation 

 Review of mental health services. This has been identified by the LCO as an area with 
potential to be improved by working in partnership across the whole LCO. 

An LCO Contract is under development with the intention to include the following four 
interventions initially with subsequent interventions being included once mobilised: 

 Core +2 

 Primary Care Academy 

 Discharge to Assess  

 Respiratory in INT 

Discussions are ongoing with the host provider to agree this contract ensuring that all financial 
and VAT implications are fully understood. 

The LCO is currently working to establish plans and understand fully the delivery requirements of 
the 17 interventions. This will then support discussion re phasing of interventions into the LCO 
contract.  

The LCO will be reporting directly to the ICB and will expand on key areas of this update. 

 
 

Risk 

The new integrated locality risk register reports an update of the risks scored red (15+) and 

above in Appendix 2 – Transformation Risk Register.  

 Risks relating to accommodation in the Mental Health offer are in the process of being 

reviewed to be downgraded, this will be confirmed at ICB in June. 

The quarterly Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMH&SCP) risk update 

is due for submission on 25
th
 May, again reporting on updates of the risks scored red (15+) and 

above. This report will be presented for information at ICB in June. 

 

Page 25



Access 
 

The Our Rochdale website has gone live with a ‘soft launch’ period. Staff engagement workshops and training sessions have 
been held and communications are planned to promote the website. The additional web assistant post has been appointed to 
and commenced in post. Governance arrangements for the website and content management are being developed. 
 
The whole Community Connector team have commenced in post to support the hubs and are undergoing an intensive 
training induction. The “soft launch” of the community connector service is underway. The public launch has been moved to 
the beginning of June to enable communications and branding materials to be produced to support the launch. Engagement 
with stakeholders is underway and there has been briefing sessions at the GP locality engagement groups with further 
sessions planned. Plans are also in place for the Connector team to engage with township forums. 
 
The Housing Triage project continues to operate well and work has progressed to increase the capacity of the service with an 
additional post from adult social care. Wider stakeholders and services have been engaged to promote the service. The 
current deflections targets for housing triage are currently under review to consider their achievability alongside the 
development of TPIs. Without the wider strategic housing and health work that is being managed in the neighbourhood 
theme being successful it is unlikely the deflections will be achieved by the triage service in isolation 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Directory of 
Services 

1 1 

Easy Hubs 9 8 

Housing 
Triage  

1 1 

P
age 26



Prevention  
 

Progress in Prevention has been very positive in April and Early May with a number of the projects going live.  Many of the 
posts have been recruited to and commenced in post . 
 
The self-care programme lead has commenced in post as well as many of the health and wellbeing coaches and community 
builders. The elderly and children’s oral health continue to deliver against their aims and there has been an encouraging start 
in the smoking in pregnancy work. 
 
A number of TPI’s have now been developed across the Programme to help better understand delivery of the schemes. The 
Projects are reporting across the Programme as Green and Amber for delivery 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Health and 

Wellbeing 

Coaches & 

Community  

11.5 11.5 

Elderly Oral 

Health  
2.5 2.5 

Self Care  
1 1 

Reducing 

Diabetes 

Currently staffed and 
funded by NHSE 

Behaviour 
Change  

Not funded by 
Transformation 

P
age 27



Prevention continued 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Smoking in 

Pregnancy  
1.5 1.5 

Children's Oral 

Health  
4 4 

Accident 

Prevention 
Funded by Public Health 

P
age 28



Primary Care  
 

The Overall Primary Care programme is currently reporting as Amber overall. The Programme currently consists of four 
projects to which two of these have transferred to the LCO . These are Core +2 and Primary Care Academy. The clinical 
pharmacy project is currently Amber. The CCG and the RHA are scheduling to meet as  matter of priority to  discuss and 
understand current  budgets, existing / known cost pressures and  additional prescribing to support pharmacist recruitment.  
 
The Focused Care Workers project is currently on track and the contract has been issued and scoping for the next round of 
recruitment is underway . The Focused Care worker interviews have taken place and the sharing of the case studies is 
underway.   
 
Core+2 - Mobilisation plans have been received and have sufficient information and details to be able to sign off for quarter 
one. Regular meetings have been taking place with the provider to facilitate mobilisation. The Contract is to be signed and a 
further update will be provided in the next update. Primary Care Academy - Mobilisation plans have  received and discussed, 
regular meetings have taken place to facilitate mobilisation. The contract is to be signed and a further update will be provided 
next month.  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Clinical 
Pharmacy  

8 1.8 

Focussed 
Care Workers 

16 8.5 

Core+2 0 

Primary Care 
Academy  

0 

P
age 29



Children's 
 

The two constituent projects are showing  red and amber for the month of May. These ratings  relate to the challenges in 
recruitment to the roles as indicated in the previous update.  
 
The risks in the theme remain as described in previous reports. Recruitment challenges have been highlighted in subsequent 
slides relating to hashtag thrive posts and the paediatric nurse practitioners.   
 
Works are ongoing to develop the  Alliance arrangements as detailed in the One System Approach .  A detailed Alliance plan is 
being produced this period and will tie into the Alliance finance and contracting sessions. 
 
The delivery of the intervention Briefs working with the PMO has been scheduled in May 2018.  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

One System  28.5 22.5 

Advanced 
Nurse 
Practitioner 

8 3 

P
age 30



Planned Care 
 

The Planned Care programme is currently red for overall theme status.  The Living with and beyond cancer intervention is 
reporting as red. The intervention is now underway: a project manager is now in post and will be developing a project plan. 
The Contract Meeting with PAHT took place mid-April, and the service specification will continue to be reviewed and firmed 
up.  
 
The IECP intervention continues to report as amber as there is still considerable work needed to deliver the full 
transformation as described in the specification. Some of the areas of concern have been in resolving operational issues 
within delivery of the multi-agency IECP pathways. The IECP2 intervention is currently reporting as red for overall project 
status, and this is mainly due to pressures within General Surgery and Ophthalmology, which mean there has been a delay in 
mobilising the transformation plans.  
 
The LTC Acute/RightCare intervention is reporting as amber. The most significant activity has been within the Cardiology 
intervention whereby a cardiology Single Point of Access was agreed by CPAP. Cost modelling work with Bury CCG and PAHT is 
underway in the next period. There continues to be a red risk associated with the RightCare data and translating this into 
meaningful change projects – a review of this data will provide direction for the key areas of focus for this intervention. The 
Pain intervention currently has two identified red risks in regards to the sedation of patients and the repatriation of patients 
back into IPMS and the mitigating actions of reducing these risks are ongoing. 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Cancer  5 0 

IECP N/A N/A N/A 

IECP2 N/A N/A N/A 

LTC Acute/ 
Right Care  

N/A N/A N/A 

Pain Services N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 31



Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

INT 

Respiratory  

INT Falls & 

Frailty N/A 

Expansion of 

Intermediate 

Tier Services 

n/a 

Neighbourhoods  
 
The Neighborhoods theme, as part of the LCO mobilisation has now transferred to the LCO. The PMO are working with the LCO to help 
support the transitional arrangements.. The update is split across two table to fully capture the full theme of works.  
 
INT Respiratory – Thus service has been operational 5 days a week for over 12 months and  exceeded the 17/18 target deflections. In M1 
of 18/19 the deflection targets have increased considerably and actual deflections in month fell below for ED deflections but exceeded 
NEL. Current pathways have been reviewed and there is development underway for education sessions with the INT Team leads within 
each neighborhood. Pulmonary rehab is now embedded within the service which has provided an enhanced skill set. The Project is 
currently reporting as being on track.  
 
INT Falls and Frailty-  This project is due to commence in June 18.  Following a review  of skill mix to manage long term conditions it was 
identified that a range of professionals would best meet the outcomes. The Falls service pilot has been completed and meeting arranged 
on 15.5.18 to evaluate and agree model going forward. Recruitment is underway to community physio, support workers, nursing staff 
and administration to support this.  
 
Intermediate Tier Services - A new practitioner joined the team in April, A band 7 role is  awaiting to commence in post, IV Therapy team 
is fully established, with one person still to commence in post 1st week in May.   The Deflection milestone that has passed - Review of IV 
Therapy step up/step down activity since December is taking place to inform deflection targets associated with this  to  agree deflection 
targets for UCCT Virtual Bed service element in the next 2 weeks. 
 

P
age 32



Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

MH Plan – 

Primary in MH 

INT 

1 1 

MH Plan – 

Urgent Care 

Offer 

MH Plan – Out 

of Hospital 

Domiciliary 

Care INT 

Care Homes - 

INT 

Neighbourhoods continued 
 
MH Project key update - The  Delivery venue for the safe haven has changed to Sudden Resource Centre, the service will be co-located 
with the AMHP extended hours service.  . Work to scope out refurbishment and enhanced security provision is currently in progress. The 
North East Sector Safe Haven model is in development, an initial draft has been shared with the CCGs and a number of actions are being 
followed up.  A Final model to be agreed pending outcome of the actions.  
 
Domiciliary Care . This intervention is currently reporting as green for delivery. Apprentice Co-coordinator is in place and a plan has been 
developed for apprentices to  be recruited to support for the care sector. New contracts continue to be embedded. New payment 
arrangements have commenced with the first providers being paid through the provider portal. It has been agreed that there needs to 
be collaborative working with other projects to implement a night support service.  
 
Care Homes INT- This intervention is currently reporting as amber for overall delivery due to a delay with recruitment of the Advance 
Nurse Practitioners, neighbourhood nurses and the Pharmacy Support for Care Homes,. Meeting with RHA took place to understand the 
budget for recruitment, recruitment started for advance practitioners within the RHA – closing date mid May, with an anticipated 
September 2018 start date. A task and finish group has been defined and meetings are planned to identify the scope of the Virtual team. 
First meeting has taken place, roles, responsibilities and ongoing actions discussed and agreed.  P

age 33



Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Palliative Care 

and End of Life 10 2 

Complex 

Dependencies  

Substance 

Misuse 3.8 2.8 

Enhanced 

Carers  

Neighbourhoods continued 
 
Palliative Care - Project manager now handed over all existing council workload. The service specification for anticipatory drugs has been 
developed, with Springhill hospice agreeing to deliver bespoke training once the pharmacies involved have been identified. Meetings have 
taken place  throughout April and the Development of a service Summary is now needed to link service delivery this is planned for May 2018. 
Project plan developed. The project is reporting amber overall for delivery.  
 
Complex Dependencies – The Project is currently reporting red overall. Recruitment progress has  taken place with one staff post appointed 
to. The other candidates were not considered to be appointable and so the job advert will go out again in the near future reducing some 
elements of the criteria (degree qualification) in the hope of attracting  more suitable candidates.  It has been confirmed that PCC funding will 
not be awarded in 18-19  which will remove one staff post from the total . The Project support officer has started to review the work that the 
CD mini hub does and  will also to bring into the review  the wider CD service offers. Strategic Lead will be sought from the board regarding 
the report recommendations in due course. 
 
Substance Misuse - The Project is currently reporting Amber for delivery . An arrangement in place to attend the PCFT weekly MH 
Transformation Project Team meeting  on Monday 21st May 18 to open discussion regarding the MH dual diagnosis element of this projects  
funding with a view to finding a practical way forward. In addition a MH KPI workshop  is planned for June 18 which will feed into this  area of 
the Transformation Fund. 
 
Enhanced Carers – The Project is currently reporting as Green, Implementation is underway and the contractual meetings have been 
arranged in May .   

  

P
age 34



Urgent Care 
 
The Urgent Care Programme consists of three separate  projects . These are Heatt Car, Discharge to Assess and A+E Front Door 
Streaming.  
 
The HEATT service has been operating a 37.5 hour service since Dec 16 and has, as of 1st May increased its hours to 12 hours a day and 7 
days a week. The aim is that the HEATT service will expand and will eventually operate 2 vehicles 12 hours per day, 7 days per week. 
Financial costings have now been agreed with HMR CCG and NWAS.  
 
D2A 24 hour: The staffing structure has been recruited to for the discharge to assess bed based scheme and resources are supported 
from RBC Adult care when demand fluctuate. A key objective for the forthcoming months is to reduce the time from  referral to D2A to 
discharge in line with the 4 hour target. Baseline  data is being collected to be establish current response times.  The Flow Service 
Standard operating procedure is now completed. Our Rochdale Borough Council Comms has been developed. Practice agreement 
remains with Legal Department, provisional proposals have been drawn up to support any service gaps in the IDT’s and Financial 
structure to support gaps has been considered. 
 
Urgent Care/Primary care Interface (formerly A&E Front Door Streaming) - Providers have met 02/05/18 to discuss the vision for Primary 
Care/Urgent Care interface and re-design. Proposal to review the commonality of triage models within IVCH and UCC presently to see if 
they align. Proposal to review functions of AVS and ATT and NWAS Health Care Professionals referral pathways (Card 35’s) to align with 
Intermediate Tier services as alternative offer to secondary care. Once this has been completed this will be shared with PMO. The project 
has been rated red due to slippages  in the timeline  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

HEATT Car 5.5 5.5 

Discharge to 
Assess 

Urgent 
Care/Primary 
Care 
Interface 

P
age 35



Enablers  
 
The three enablers supporting transformation are Workforce, , IM&T and Estates.  There are separate project areas for each enabler. 
 
The Workforce enabler is made up of  four separate strands. These are ; Culture Change, Brand and Identity, Hard to fill posts and career 
pathways. A workshop on the 29th May with GE consulting who have been commissioned to work with localities to help frame and 
shape the projects in our Workforce Programme. The projects will then be further developed and an update on each will be provided 
moving forward.  
 
The  IM&T enabler is currently reporting on the development of Graphnet . The development of the  Graphnet  will enable Rockdale's 
Community Hubs concept, support the Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, as well as wider services in the borough. It will allow partners 
to share data to promote greater quality and effectiveness of service delivery across the public sector We will connect systems in use 
within the locality through a combination of IT systems with CareCentric acting as the information broker. The CareCentric system will 
provide an enhanced Integrated Digital Care Record, a means to create Integrated Care Plans and provide Health and Social Care teams 
with a mechanism for better care co-ordination. The service is currently scheduled to go live in  September 2018 and is currently on 
track.  
 
 
The Estates enabler is  supporting transformation with several dedicated projects linking to other themes. The Estates works are 
supporting the Easy Hubs Project and the Mental Health as updated in the report.  , and the work is also underway  looking at the 
Locality Asset master planning . 
 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Workforce  N/A N/A N/A 

IM&T  N/A N/A N/A 

Estates  N.A N/A N/A 

P
age 36



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Deflections 

Achievement

There is a risk that the 

deflections assigned to this 

project arent achieved. 

There is a need for wider 

housing and health system 

development to achieve the 

targets set. The triage 

service in isolation is 

unlikely to achieve those 

targets.

Darryl 

Lawrence

4 4 16 Effective TPIs are being developed to monitor the performance 

of triage service, wider strategic housing and health work may 

mean deflections can be achieved, neighbourhood board 

picking this up.

Neighbourhood board with wider housing 

and health work.

Performance monitoring of triage service

None Significant 3 3 9 Darryl Lawrence

Prescribing 

Costs

There is a risk that GPs will 

continue to over-prescribe 

certain medications and 

there will be a reluctance to 

engage in the programme 

of reducing costs in 

prescribing where safe and 

appropriate to do so.  Also 

the potential for patients 

being reluctant to change 

current medicines routine.  

Karen Hurley, 

Keith 

Pearson

4 4 16 There is a consultation on limiting of prescribing over the counter 

medications for minor ailments (with NHS England).  Our role is 

to get patients to engage with this programme also.

Patients views being taken via internet 

survey on opinions on the prescribing 

consultation.  HMR CCG Governing Body 

approved the clinical needs policy in 2016.  

Also in place is the minor ailments 

scheme. 

Local residents 

do not take 

opportunity to 

complete 

survey.  No way 

of filtering 

based upon 

locality and so 

may lack 

influence on 

national policy.  

Significant 3 3 9 Kate HudsonThe impact of NSCO stock and NHSE 

approved price concessions have been 

considerable for most CCGs. Easily identifiable 

savings are increasingly difficult to locate. 

Inhalers review will likely reduce prescribing 

costs, however there are no other clinical areas 

where significant savings can be made. GPs 

remain as custodians of medicines given to 

their patients and changes can only be made 

following GP agreement. The current 

Prescribing Work Programme has identified 

numbers of patients who would benefit from 

reductions / discontinuations of one or more 

medicines, although these are generally 

inexpensive drugs. The NHSE consultation on 

encouraging self care via community 

pharmacists, GPs will still retain the right to 

prescribe these drugs at NHS expense if they 

so choose. There are some likely cost-

pressures for the next FY to improve care of 

patients with Type 1 diabetes, this could benefit 

through reduced hospital admissions. Use of 

biosimilar drugs offers the best opportunity for 

substantial costs savings in the 2018/19 FY and 

beyond.  Pending data from April 2018, 

available July 2018.

GPs free to prescribe 

how they choose.  

Strong 

recommendation on 

certain medications 

but GPs free to 

prescribe.  No national 

mandate at present. 

Current

Neighbourhoods & Primary Care

3.1 - Clinical Pharmacists: To support the reduction in over prescribing, inappropriate poly-pharmacy and improve quality of prescribing in areas where HMR CCG is identified as an outlier.

Target

Prevention and Access

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

2.6 Housing Triage
Mitigation of risk is 

dependant on 

progress of the wider 

strategic work being 

undertaken

None

1 of 6

P
age 37



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Current Target

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

Delivery of 

Outcomes - 

Integrated 

Neighbourhood 

Teams

Failure to deliver the 

required outcomes due to 

under resourcing and Local 

Care Organisation maturity.

Dianne David 4 4 16 PMO processes and systems in place to programme manage 

delivery  Communication via PMO/LCO Board and informal 

meetings Key milestone plans in place

Governance for transformation now in 

operation including the Neighbourhoods 

and Primary Care Partnership Board and 

the Transformation Delivery Board. 

Regularly reviewed at the LCO Board and 

Joint Executive (EMT/ELT) 

Neighbourhood

s and Primary 

Care 

Partnership 

Board is to be 

developed into 

a more 

strategic board. 

There is a 

requirement for 

an operational 

group to be set 

up to support 

delivery 

Limited 2 4 8 Dianne David

Delivery of 

Outcomes - 

Intermediate 

Tier Service

Failure to deliver the 

required outcomes due to 

under resourcing and Local 

Care Organisation maturity 

.

Dianne David 4 4 16 PMO processes and systems in place to programme manage 

delivery  Communication via PMO/LCO Board and informal 

meetings Key milestone plans in place 

Governance for transformation now in 

operation including the Neighbourhoods 

and Primary Care Partnership Board and 

the Transformation Delivery Board. 

Regularly reviewed at the LCO Board and 

Joint Executive (EMT/ELT) 

Neighbourhood

s and Primary 

Care 

Partnership 

Board is to be 

developed into 

a more 

strategic board. 

There is a 

requirement for 

an operational 

group to be set 

up to support 

delivery 

Limited 2 4 8 Dianne David

Living Well Hub No identified 

accommodation to deliver 

the service from 

Dianne David 4 5 20 This has been escalated via the risk register and via SEG. 

Suitable estates options are being considered. 

SEG Meetings, PMO review to be 

undertaken across Enablers to look for 

high risk areas of delivery to be provided 

with additional support

A review of 

enabler work 

areas to be 

undertaken to 

look for 

interdependenc

ies and how 

these may 

effect delivery 

relating to 

benefits. 

Limited 2 5 10 Dianne David

Living Well Hub No identified 

accommodation to deliver 

the service from 

Dianne David 4 5 20 This has been escalated via the risk register and via SEG. 

Suitable estates options are being considered. 

SEG Meetings, PMO review to be 

undertaken across Enablers to look for 

high risk areas of delivery to be provided 

with additional support

A review of 

enabler work 

areas to be 

undertaken to 

look for 

interdependenc

ies and how 

these may 

effect delivery 

relating to 

benefits. 

Limited 2 5 10 Dianne David

4.1 - Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
Performance 

management 

framework needs to 

be developed 

communication needs 

improvement via 

informal as well as 

formal routes 

Programme 

Management needs to 

improve with more 

detailed project plans 

in place  

To further implement the improved 

performance management The set up 

operational group To continue to build on 

communication routes

Differing routes for 

Mental Health and 

Property acting as an 

enabler. To establish 

roles and 

responsibilities 

specifically linked to 

individual schemes

To be reviewed as part of the Enablers brief 

review and property  brief to look at terms of 

reference and suitable role holders to be 

identified. 

Differing routes for 

Mental Health and 

Property acting as an 

enabler. To establish 

roles and 

responsibilities 

specifically linked to 

individual schemes

To be reviewed as part of the Enablers brief 

review and property  brief to look at terms of 

reference and suitable role holders to be 

identified. 

4.2 - Intermediate Tier Service
Performance 

management 

framework needs to 

be developed 

communication needs 

improvement via 

informal as well as 

formal routes 

Programme 

Management needs to 

improve with more 

detailed project plans 

in place 

To further implement the improved 

performance management The set up 

operational group To continue to build on 

communication routes 

4.32 Mental Health Plan - Urgent Care Offer

4.33 Mental Health Plan - Out of Hospital Offer

2 of 6

P
age 38



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Current Target

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

Estates Funding Funding to be determined 

for clinic space in the Easy 

Hubs and Living Well Hub - 

no estates funding was 

included in the bid

Andrea 

Dutton

4 4 16 This has been escalated via the risk register and via SEG. 

Suitable estates options have been considered and funding has 

been agreed for space in the Easy Hubs, that is to be funded. 

Further works are to be funded via funding request in the form of 

a business case to NHS England. This work is being undertaken  

by AA Projects. 

Sharing of space on a sessional basis at EASY Hubs, with Living 

Well Mental Health Service, has been agreed at EASY Hub 

Steering Group.

SEG Meetings, PMO reviewas part of 

Enabler updates to the TDB as part of the 

monthly rolling cycle.

An ongoing 

review of the 

Enabler 

workstream will 

be undertaken

Limited 3 4 12 Sarah Buttler

Recruitment 

Delays

Failure to recruit to the 

advanced nurse 

practitioner posts and the 

increased clinical and 

pharmacy support for care 

homes from RHA and 

PAHT

Jane Myers 3 4 12 Advance Nurse Practioner posts have been out for 

advertisement with interviews to take place end of May. Aim to 

have a start date of Sept 18 through RHA. 

Further discussions to take place at the project meeting around 

the clinical pharmacists support and how this can be 

implemented moving forward within the care homes project 

Governance for transformation now in 

operation including the Neighbourhoods 

and Primary Care Partnership Board and 

the Transformation Delivery Board. 

Regularly reviewed at the LCO Board and 

Joint Executive (EMT/ELT) 

Neighbourhood

s and Primary 

Care 

Partnership 

Board is to be 

developed into 

a more 

strategic board. 

There is a 

requirement for 

an operational 

group to be set 

up to support 

delivery 

Limited 2 3 5 Jane Myers

PCC Grant 

Funding

The risk is that the PCC 

Grant funding will not be 

allocated to this project for 

2018

Janice Holliss 3 3 9 Rochdale Safer Communities partnership is aware of the issue 

and the decision is imminent 

If funding from PCC is cut this will in part 

(but not wholly) be mitigated by the 

removal of some criminal justice work from 

Renaissance to the D and A incoming 

provider

Project 

manager and 

commissioners 

will need to 

work with 

providers to 

see how this 

will affect 

services 

operationally

Significant 2 2 4 Janice Holliss

Recruitment 

Delays

Unable to appoint 

consultant psychiatrist and 

support for fixed term (2 

years), part-time (0.5) 

roles.  In proportion to 

deflections this role should 

contribute about 50% of the 

deflections for this 

intervention

Janice Holliss 4 4 16 The Delivery Manager meets regularly with the Oldham DpH 

who is aware that we are looking at possibly revising the spec for 

the MH provision . JH has been invited to the next Pennine Care 

TF Meeting to float the idea of what might be a better approach, 

to better achieve the deflections.

 Discussions will take place to explore 

potential of an enhanced mental health 

practitioner role to act as a gateway 

between the dual diagnosis cohort of 

service users and clinical MH services

Limited 3 3 9 Dianne David*There is no 

assurance that 

the deflections 

will be achieved 

if the post is not 

recruited to as 

the post will 

address around 

a 3rd of the 

service users

Risk to be sent to 

Workforce enabler 

works for monitoring to 

ensure system support 

is provided 

A review meeting and update to be [rovided In 

the next reporting cycle on actions taken 

4.6 Care Homes in INT

Funding arrangements 

for business case still 

to be defined 

To be reviewed as part of the Enabler activity at 

both the SEG and TDB with the Enabler Lead 

for estates. 

The service will still 

work with Spotlight 

offenders and will 

deliver some prison in 

reach work which lack 

of PCC funding may 

impact

Review service provisions funding requirements
4.9 Complex Dependencies Mini Hub

4.10 Substance Misuse
A contact at Pennine 

Care has been made 

and the correct 

meetings and 

discussions take place 

to ensure that job 

description and person 

specification are jointly 

agreed

Discussions are ongoing with Oldham to look at 

resolving the issue and a further update will be 

provided in the next cycle. However, should the 

decision be taken to downgrade the MH 

practitioner requirement, we will be less 

dependent on Oldham’s input. 

3 of 6

P
age 39



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Current Target

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

Funding for 

Joint Post

The risk is that Oldham 

have confirmed that they 

have not received a 

business case request to 

set up matched funds in 

18/19 as the consultant 

psychiatrist post is due to 

be a joint full time post 

between Rochdale and 

Oldham.

Janice Holliss 4 4 16 See above which switches the focus away from the need to 

recruit to a Psych post

Discussions will take place between PCFT 

colleagues and Rochdale to seek a 

resolution to this issue as soon as possible. 

At this point the Delivery Manager, Oldham 

will be briefed and given the option to joint 

fund if they wish

Limited 3 3 9 Dianne David*

IECP 

mobilisation 

There is a risk that 

Integrated Elective Care 

Pathways for T&O, ENT, 

gynaecology, urology and 

endoscopy will not mobilise 

due to the legal and 

financial complexities of the 

4 providers who won the 

tender – PAHT, BMI, Care 

UK and GP Care – 

developing a partnership 

agreement between 

themselves.

Sally McIvor, 

Jennifer 

Hopes

3 4 12 a) IECP Contract Board established, chaired by Simon Wootton. 

The group meetings monthly with PAHT as prime providers, to 

review performance and mobilisation. Once a quarter all IECP 

partners are invited to the meeting. Contract risks (shared by the 

CCG and PAHT) are reviewed quarterly including mitigation, 

using the PMO risk framework.

b) PAHT have struggled to fully mobilise the IECP due to the 

lack of dedicated resource to develop and deliver an IECP 

transformation plan. However a programme manager has been 

recruited and should start in January.

c) The IECP partners are still forming their partnership, however 

they are working through the Integrating Governance Between 

Organisations framework and meeting monthly at IECP 

partnership meetings. Sub-contracts are not yet signed, which 

will set out transactional data expectations as well as activity 

plans. Triage referral criteria and operating procedures still 

being developed. 

d) The IECP relies on good quality referrals from GPs, which 

include a minimum dataset to enable the referral to be 

effectively triaged, and to ensure the patient gets to the right 

place first time. However GPs have reported that they find the 

existing IECP referral forms difficult to use, consequently only 

around 15% of referrals to the IECP use this form which 

prevents accurate triage. The CCG is working closely with the 

IECP partnership, GPs via the LEG meetings and GMSS IT 

colleagues to develop a single system referral form that will auto-

populate from EMIS and can be used for all elective specialty 

referrals.

a) None

b) None

c) None

d) None

a) None

b) None

c) None

d) None

a) Significant

b) Significant

c) Significant

d) Limited

3 3 9 Jennifer Hopes

Transforming 

Elective Access

There is a risk that these 

initiatives fail to deliver the 

anticipated savings within 

the timescale expected. 

The main contributor is a 

lack of staff resource - for 

example (1) operational 

pressures within providers 

may mean they cannot 

prioritise this transformation 

ahead of high risk business 

continuity and (2) a 

shortage of commissioner 

and provider project 

resource to co-produce the 

plans and implement 

.There is also a risk that it 

will be difficult to identify 

appropriate  governance 

for the new schemes within 

an emerging LCO .

Charlotte 

Booth, 

Jennifer 

Hopes

4 4 16 Separate project plans have been developed for each of the 

initiatives, enabling closer examination of delivery against 

targets.  The development of a future HMR elective board will 

help prioritise and give traction to these schemes .

Shortlisting additional commissioning team 

resource to assist with delivery 

Commissioning 

posts not yet 

advertised .

Limited 2 2 4 Charlotte Booth

The Single Points of Access are now live for all 

5 specialties however work is being undertaken 

to improve referral criteria and operating 

procedures to ensure consistency. PAHT are 

continuing to work to agree sub-contracts with 

the 3 partners and hope to have these in place 

by Christmas. The Trust and CCG have jointly 

recruited to an IECP programme managers 

role, the 2 job share candidates should start in 

January and will develop a plan to fully deliver 

the benefits of the IECP including shared 

decision making, community pathways, 

introducing innovation and 1-stop-shop care 

and ensuring evidence-based pathways. Activity 

reporting is now available and there are plans 

in place to enhance this to include RTT, the 

outcomes of triage and quality. 

5.2b - Integrated Elective Care Pathways 2 (IECP 2): This initiative is comprised of 5 schemes that will help improve access to elective services: 1. MSK Single Point of Access 2. Integrated elective care pathways – expansion to ophthalmology 3. Integrated elective care pathways –  expansion to general surgery 4. Gastroenterology 
Development of a 

HMR elective board .

Commissioning Band 6 project resource will be 

advertised imminently .

Project manager will continue to update the 

Oldham locality as detail emerges to resolve 

this issue.

There is no 

assurance that 

the post will be 

appointed to 

because it is 

only part time 

and it will be 

difficult to 

attract 

personnel of 

the right 

calibre.

In Hospital - Planned

5.2a Integrated Elective Care Pathways (IECP)
a) IECP performance 

dashboard still being 

developed.

b) No dedicated 

programme manager 

for the IECP in place

c) IGBO framework 

not fully completed or 

adopted. Issues 

remain in sharing 

timely information 

between partners.

d) The fact that the 

IECP referral forms 

are being enhanced 

and can be used for 

all elective specialties 

means ownership of 

this project is not clear 

within the IECP and 

externally. Reliant on 

support from external 

staff to drive this 

forward e.g. GP Care 

GPs and GMSS IT 

staff, who have 

competing priorities. 

A contact in the 

Oldham locality has 

been made and the 

necessary discussions 

will take place to 

create the business 

case required when 

more detail is known.

4 of 6

P
age 40



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Current Target

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

Realising 

RightCare 

Opportunities 

and Cashable 

Savings

There is a risk that these 

initiatives fail to deliver the 

anticipated savings within 

the timescale expected. 

The main contributors are 

(1) a lack of staff resource 

within commissioning and 

BI to prioritise this work 

alongside other day-to-day 

pressures  - and (2)  failure 

to deliver cashable savings 

from the RightCare 

opportunity areas. Reasons 

for this may include where 

variance is explained by 

coding errors, or because  

a solution requires a GM or 

NES approach which can 

significantly delay 

implementation .

Charlotte 

Booth, 

Jennifer 

Hopes

4 4 16 Separate project plans have been developed for each of the 

initiatives, enabling closer examination of delivery against 

targets.  The development of a future HMR elective board will 

help prioritise and give traction to these schemes .

Shortlisting additional commissioning team 

resource to assist with delivery 

Commissioning 

posts not yet 

advertised .

Limited 2 2 4 Charlotte Booth

Pain - 

repatriation of 

suitable patients 

from PAHT to 

IPMS

There is a risk that patients 

being seen in the PAHT 

pain service are not 

repatriated to the new pain 

service delivered by PMS, 

meaning they continue to 

receive non-evidence 

based injection therapies. 

This may risk patients long 

term health and is not an 

effective use of CCG and 

NHS resources.

Charlotte 

Booth, 

Jennifer 

Hopes

3 4 12 a) The CCG has convened a new monthly meeting between the 

CCG and other NES CCGs, PAHT and IPMS to review the 

performance of the pain system and to collectively identify and 

mitigate capacity and demand problems, and risks.

b) There has been inconsistent application of EUR policies 

relating to pain by all providers in the system. The CCG is 

working with providers to put controls in place that ensure a 

more consistent application.

a) None

b) None

a) None

b) None

a) Significant

b) Limited

2 2 4 Jennifer Hopes

HEATT Car Costings within the 

transformation plan did not 

include the unsociable 

hours payment element 

which NWAS pay their 

workforce.  Work continues 

with partners to come to a 

system wide position for 

this scheme. System wide 

engagement with all 

partners has been limited 

to date. Workforce 

demands on the core 

NWAS PES rotas puts 

staffing the HEATT car at 

risk. If the locality workforce 

is to staff the HEATT car 

access to the C3 telephone 

system will be required

Charlotte 

Booth, 

Charlotte 

Booth

3 3 9 a) Seek further investment linked to robust evaluation of the 

scheme to date including savings of £4.50 per £1 invested

b) Support sought from Executive Level within the locality via 

Simon Wootton and via Jon Rouse at a GMHSCP level

c) Potential of locality workforce staffing the HEATT car rather 

than NWAS

d) Support sought from Executive Level within the locality via 

Simon Wootton and via Jon Rouse at a GMHSCP level

a) Urgent Care Locality Partnership Board 

will review the monthly highlight reports for 

each project.  Transformation Delivery 

Board will receive the monthly theme level 

report.  Integrated Commissioning Board 

will receive the monthly theme level report.

b) Urgent Care Locality Partnership Board 

will review the monthly highlight reports for 

each project.  Transformation Delivery 

Board will receive the monthly theme level 

report.  Integrated Commissioning Board 

will receive the monthly theme level report.

c) Urgent Care Locality Partnership Board 

will review the monthly highlight reports for 

each project.  Transformation Delivery 

Board will receive the monthly theme level 

report.  Integrated Commissioning Board 

will receive the monthly theme level report.

d) Urgent Care Locality Partnership Board 

will review the monthly highlight reports for 

each project.  Transformation Delivery 

Board will receive the monthly theme level 

report.  Integrated Commissioning Board 

will receive the monthly theme level report.

a) None

b) None

c) None

d) None

a) Significant

b) Significant

c) Significant

d) Significant

2 2 4 Charlotte Booth

7.1 One System Approach - Early Help Locality Teams

In Hospital - Urgent Care

6.1 - HEATT Car: HMR Emergency Assessment & Treatment Team (HEATT) is a system resilience pilot scheme designed to reduce A &E attendances or avoidable hospital admissions where clinically appropriate within the HMR population.  The scheme is collaboration between HMR Community Services Division of Pennine Acute 
a) Locality financial 

position puts the 

potential of additional 

investment at risk

b) None

c) None

d) None

Jon Rouse has been fully briefed in relation to 

progress made to date with and unresolved 

issues this scheme.  This supported a 

conversation with the NWAS CE where traction 

was agreed. Finances for the scheme still need 

to be confirmed and taken through appropriate 

governance channels for discussion. Improved 

system wide engagement via appropriate 

groups, committees and boards.

5.3 - Long Term Acute: This initiative uses RightCare and other business intelligence to identify opportunities to improve the delivery of patient care, particularly opportunities to bring acute care into community settings. The project is phased and includes phase 1 (17-19) - cardiology, cancer, phase 2 (18-20) respiratory and phase 
Development of a 

HMR elective board .

Commissioning Band 6 project resource will be 

advertised imminently .

5.4 - Pain Services
a) Awaiting full pain 

system trajectory 

b) Over 1600 patients 

affected

New community pain service has mobilised and 

is receiving higher than anticipated referrals. 

The repatriation of patients from the PAHT 

service to PMS started on 1st May 2017 and is 

being closely monitored by all partners. It is 

becoming clear that pain system capacity is an 

issue and the repatriation plan may need to be 

revised; this is being closely monitored by the 

CCG, PAHT and IPMS. PAHT, the CCG and 

IPMS are meeting frequently and forming a 

more formal and partnership approach to 

managing both operational delivery and 

changes to the pain system.

Children, Young People and Families

5 of 6

P
age 41



Risk Risk Description Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance
Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level
Likelihood Impact Score Objective Owner

Current Target

Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Gaps in Controls Action for Further Control

Early Help 

Locality 

Recruitment

There is a risk that failure 

to recruit to Mental Health 

Practitioners to the Early 

Help Locality teams will 

significantly impact upon 

the ability to early identify 

mental health needs and 

provide a holistic support 

offering

Kylie 

Thornton

4 4 16 Recruitment drives in place to recruit to advertised posts.  

Further discussions with provider around potential to second 

positions.  Adverts advertised across a wide variety of 

recruitment mediums

Limited assurance that recruitment will be 

successful 

x3 rounds of 

recruitment 

drives have 

taken place 

without 

successful 

applicants

Limited 3 3 9 Karen KentonRecruitment drives 

have been 

unsuccessful on a 

number of occasions.

Posts to be re-advertised for a 4th round of 

advertisement - updates to be provided via 

thematic reports and highlight reports.

6 of 6

P
age 42



   

 

 

Integrated Commissioning Board 

14th May 2018  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version Date Comments Author 

0.1  16/05/18 Draft to share with S. McIvor Sandra Croasdale 

0.2 22/05/18 Final copy for information Sandra Croasdale 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Twelve Month Review of Single Commissioning 

Function Development, Local Care Organisation 

Development and Transformation  

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



 

2 | P a g e  
 

1. Background and Aim ....................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Strategic Commissioning Function .................................................................................................. 3 

2.1 Progress since last review ............................................................................................................. 4 

2.1.1 Development of the Integrated Commissioning Board ......................................................... 4 

2.1.2 Governance ............................................................................................................................ 5 

2.1.3 Pooled Budget Arrangements ................................................................................................ 7 

2.1.4 Integrated Commissioning Directorate .................................................................................. 7 

2.1.5 Strategic Commissioning Function Peer Review .................................................................... 7 

2.1.6 Integrated Commissioning Strategy and Outcomes Framework ........................................... 8 

2.1.7 Update on Strategic and Tactical Commissioning .................................................................. 8 

2.2 Next steps ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

3. Development of the Local Care Organisation ................................................................................. 9 

3.1 Progress since last report .............................................................................................................. 9 

3.1.1 Due diligence, contracting arrangements & scope ................................................................ 9 

3.1.2 Organisational Development Programme ........................................................................... 10 

3.1.3 Development of the Family Services Model (FSM) and links with the LCO ......................... 11 

3.1.4 LCO Peer Review .................................................................................................................. 11 

3.2 Next Steps ................................................................................................................................... 12 

4. Delivery of Transformation ........................................................................................................... 12 

4.1 Progress since last report ............................................................................................................ 12 

4.1.1 Transformation Delivery ...................................................................................................... 12 

4.1.2 Update of Delivery ............................................................................................................... 13 

Integrated Neighbourhood Team’s – Eddie’s Story ...................................................................... 13 

Focused Care Workers – Emily’s Story .......................................................................................... 14 

Family Services Model .................................................................................................................. 14 

4.1.3 Project Management Office ................................................................................................. 15 

4.1.4 Transformation Performance Indicators (TPI’s) ................................................................... 16 

4.1.5 Update on Greater Manchester Themes ............................................................................. 16 

4.1.6 Master Plan .......................................................................................................................... 17 

4.2 Next Steps ................................................................................................................................... 17 

5. Summary and Action Plan ............................................................................................................. 17 

New and Ongoing Actions ................................................................................................................. 17 

Completed Actions ............................................................................................................................ 19 

 

Page 44



 

3 | P a g e  
 

1. Background and Aim  

In November 2017 the Integrated Commissioning Board, CCG Governing Body and Council 

Cabinet received a paper1 outlining the progress to date on the journey to a single 

commissioning function, Local Care Organisation development and transformation. This 

report seeks to inform ICB of the further progress made in the Rochdale Borough, 

highlighting the local successes and challenges in delivering this agenda in support of 

“Taking Charge of our Health and Social Care in Greater Manchester2”.  

The report focused on the key milestones achieved in the last twelve months including: 

 Development of the Single Commissioning Function 

o Progression  of the Integrated Commissioning Board, since the appointment 

of an Independent Chair 

o Further development of the Integrated Commissioning Team including Public 

Health and Primary Care 

o Development  of the pooled budget arrangements 

o Development of an Integrated Commissioning Strategy 

 Development of the Local Care Organisation 

o Completion of Gateway 2 Due Diligence 

o Appointment of a Chief Officer and establishment of Governance 

arrangements 

o Successful Organisational Development programme 

o LCO Peer review 

 Delivery of Transformation 

o Alignment of transformation plan to operating plan 

o Establishment of transformation assurance and delivery systems 

o Early success stories of transformation 

o Development of Transformation Performance Indicators 

 

The report will provide an update in each of these areas including achievement to date, the 

key challenges and risks and the next steps to September 2018. 

 

2. Strategic Commissioning Function  

The Transformation Fund Bid set out the ambition to develop a single organisational 

leadership model incorporating the following as fully as possible by April 2018: 

 Chief Executive from Local Authority taking on the Chief Officer responsibilities of the 

CCG 

 Development of new management structures, processes and roles to allow 

accountability of the CCG and Local Authority to be maintained 

 Formation of a pooled budget for health and social care 

At the six month review in November 2017 it was reported that: 

                                                           
 
 

Page 45



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 The Chief Executive was in discussion with GM H&SCP regarding the NHSE 

approval process for new Chief Officer’s and that staff were informed of the direction 

of travel in September 2017 at a staff briefing 

 Significant progress had been made in establishing new management structures and 

processes including:  

o Delegations to ICB and an appointed Independent Chair 

o The Integrated Commissioning Directorate had been established under the 

leadership of the Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning  

o Initial thinking had started regarding tactical and strategic commissioning and 

how this could be enacted 

 That pooled budget arrangements were in place with the following agreed:  

o Hosted by the LA with the CCG Chief Finance Officer as Pooled Fund 

Manager 

o Risk shared agreement approved 

o LA and CCG finance functions were integrated 

 

2.1 Progress since last review 

Work has continued at pace to develop the Strategic Commissioning Function. The below 

outlines progress, including updates against the key milestones highlighted in the last report. 

 

2.1.1 Development of the Integrated Commissioning Board 

The Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) has been established under its new delegations 

from Council Cabinet and CCG Board since November 2017, led by Independent Chair 

Graham Burgess and meeting once a month. Following a forward plan of business, 

mainstream business of both CCG Governing Body and Cabinet has been delegated to ICB 

and decisions for health, care and wellbeing are being presented through the board. Core 

business reports relating to performance, transformation delivery and financial assurance 

have been presented systematically through the last six months. Where there have been 

identified areas of concern, more detailed ‘deep dive’ approaches have been delivered.  

The JSNA has been refreshed and revised to reflect changes in population health and the 

requirements for the delivery of commissioning intentions to change population and 

community wellbeing. The LCO Board Chair and Managing Director have attended the ICB 

to provide assurance on progress to date and will join the board quarterly to provide ongoing 

performance and delivery system change.  

To support this, an Organisation Development plan was designed with AQUA, the first of 

several workshops being held in January 2018. The workshop focussed on supporting ICB 

members to develop individual and collaborative system leadership capabilities. Future 

sessions will focus on managing conflict, decision-making, risk and governance, power and 

politics to fully integrate all aspects of health and social care. 

 

Page 46



 

5 | P a g e  
 

2.1.2 Governance  

Existing governance arrangements have been considered jointly by CCG and LA colleagues 

to streamline meetings and avoid duplication, whilst ensuring that governance is robust with 

appropriate challenge in place. There have been two key developments since last the report: 

 

Leadership:  

The existing CCG and LA leadership meetings have been disbanded and been replaced by 

a single executive level Leadership Team which commenced in February 2018. The 

Strategic Commissioning arrangements between CCG and the Council will be overseen via 

the Executive Leadership Team. The CCG and LA have now also disbanded their executive 

meetings to ensure that all business flows through the joint Leadership team. A similar 

approach has been taken with a new Wider Leadership Team (WLT). Two initial 

Organisational Development sessions have been completed to agree the shared vision and 

purpose for the new team. Work is ongoing in relation to the WLT to enable it to operate as a 

leadership network to inform, inspire and innovate.  

 

Governance Structure:  

The Governance Structure has been programmed with two reports to Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and two reports to Delivery Safeguarding Board. These outline 

developments around the three pillars of transformation; Integrated Commissioning; the 

development of the Local Care Organisation and the delivery of the Transformation 

programme of work. Both Boards were fully satisfied with developments and answered that 

the delivery of statutory duties were fully embedded within the new structures.  

The Clinical and Professional Advisory Panel (CPAP) mobilised in April 2018 with new terms 

of reference and is currently seeking a Chair that will then advise the ICB clinically from June 

onwards.  

The delivery governance and programme of work is now mobilised and in place and working 

efficiently across most of the partnership delivery. This is a remaining piece of work to 

resolve delegated decision making below ICB that will be concluded in in the next quarter.  

Governance arrangements are shown in figure 1 below: 

 

Page 47



 

6 | P a g e  
 

Figure 1: Integrated Governance Arrangements 

 

 

  

 

North East Sector  

 

 

 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

ICB 

 

LCO Board  

Clinical and Professional 

Advisory Committee 

CCG  Cabinet 

Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  

RBSAB  
RBSCB 

Access and 

Prevention 

Partnership  

 

Neighbourhoods 

and Primary 

Care Partnership  

 

Mental Health 

Partnership  

 

In Hospital 

Planned Care 

Partnership  

 

In Hospital 

Urgent Care 

Partnership  

 

Transformation Delivery  

Family 

Service’s 

Model 

Partnership  

 

P
age 48



 

7 | P a g e  
 

2.1.3 Pooled Budget Arrangements 

Pooled budget arrangements are now in place, hosted by the Council and led by the CCG 

Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in the role of the Pooled Fund Manager. The Shadow Pooled 

Budget now includes Adults Health and Social Care, Public Health and Children’s Health 

and Social Care. The ICB continues to be informed by regular reports on the pooled budget 

position and risks.  

 

2.1.4 Integrated Commissioning Directorate  

The Integrated Commissioning Directorate (ICD) continues to develop under the leadership 

of the Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning and includes the following teams:  

 Adult Social Care Commissioning 

 Children’s Commissioning 

 Health Commissioning 

 Public Health 

 Programme Management Office  

 In addition Primary Care transferred into the ICD in April 

This joint commissioning function now has the ability to rapidly respond to change and with 

developing systems in place will enhance delivery and drive across the locality. A high level 

plan continues to drive progress, and once approved, will follow the forward plan of the 

Strategic Commissioning Business Plan 18/19 covering all integrated objectives. 

Further engagement with the whole ICD team took place in December, January and March, 

including staff briefs and the completion, by all staff, of an Organisational attachment and 

Change Management survey. The survey focussed on staff’s awareness of the vision for the 

Directorate and their desire to take the vision forward. The outcomes of the survey were very 

positive with strong acknowledgement that whilst the vision was not yet in a position to be 

fully articulated due to the fast pace of change, they were fully supportive of the direction of 

travel and were very keen to contribute.  

 

2.1.5 Strategic Commissioning Function Peer Review 

In April 2018 Rochdale hosted the GM Health and Social Care Partnership to complete a 

Strategic Commissioning Function Peer Review. The assessment included three domains 

with assessment levels of emerging, developing and maturing identified for each: 

 Design and set up 

 Engagement 

 Technical enablers 

The review was very positive and the write up of this work is in the process of being mutually 

agreed with GM. Following agreement of the assessment the Integrated Commissioning 

Directorate will undertake a review of the assessment to identify any actions that need to be 

implemented by the SCF in order to achieve “maturing” in each domain.  

 

Page 49



 

8 | P a g e  
 

2.1.6 Integrated Commissioning Strategy and Outcomes Framework 

In February 2018 the ICB approved the Integrated Commissioning Strategy which detailed 

our ambitions for people and place, service reform, best practice and innovation. It described 

the principles by which we both commission and decommission and started to describe our 

approach to commissioning for outcomes.  

A paper describing our decommissioning principles was further developed and approved by 

ICB. Work is ongoing to develop a comprehensive outcomes framework which will form the 

basis of our commissioning relationship with the Health and Care system.  

 

2.1.7 Update on Strategic and Tactical Commissioning  

The ICD has fully reviewed GM’s definitions and recommendations in relation to Strategic 

and Tactical Commissioning. The Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning has engaged 

with all commissioning teams to consider Strategic and Tactical Commissioning functions, 

how any split might work and what the requirements for Rochdale are. Some key messages 

came out of this engagement and whilst all agreed that the Strategic and Tactical 

commissioning functions all needed to be delivered it is the “how” we deliver them that is 

most crucial. 

The outcome of this work is that we intend to develop a single commissioning function that 

combines both Strategic and Tactical commissioning and to test this approach during 2018-

19 to ensure that it delivers the functionality of both that is outlined by GM. This will see a 

much softer delineation between Strategic and Tactical commissioning, and provide the 

opportunity to test and learn as both the SCF and LCO mature and develop during 18-19.  In 

practice this means that we will not, at this stage, be separating out tactical commissioning 

to sit within the LCO. 

Discussions with the LCO take place on a fortnightly basis to ensure that any commissioning 

support required is identified and provided. An agreement was made for both finance and 

business intelligence to offer support and a dedicated member of each team now work at the 

LCO for a number of days per week. 

 

2.2 Next steps 

 Continue to develop ICB sub-governance arrangements and associated delegations 

 Fully mobilise Clinical and Professional Advisory Panel 

 Further develop thinking around Tactical and Strategic Commissioning and test out 

approach during 2018/19 

 Finalise Outcome Based Commissioning Framework  

 Identify and develop plan to address any key areas arising from the Strategic 

Commissioning Peer Review  

 

 

 

Page 50



 

9 | P a g e  
 

3. Development of the Local Care Organisation 

 
The Rochdale TF bid stated; “Over the next twelve months we will work with our providers as 

a Shadow Provider Alliance to demonstrate effective shifts in commissioner and provider 

relationships, behaviours and approach to managing and targeting our combined resource to 

improve the outcomes for residents”. 

In addition Rochdale stated its commitment to identify a lead provider to be the prime 

contractor and host organisation.  

 At the 6 month review it was reported that: Pennine Acute Hospital Trust, as part of 

the Northern Care Alliance, was identified as host provider of the LCO, pending due 

diligence. 

 An interim Chief Officer was in place until the end of March 2018. 

 An organisational development programme had taken place resulting in a series of 

recommendations to be implemented: 

 Early discussions around LCO scope had identified the following interventions to be 

in scope by April 2018:  

o All Neighbourhood interventions 

o Primary Care 

o Urgent Care 

 The FSM and LCO would develop separately at this time with a recommendation 

from the LCO Board to ICB that there should be a phased approach to developing a 

single; all age LCO, over a five year period.    

 

3.1 Progress since last report 

The LCO has been developing at pace in the last 6 months. The Managing Director of Bury 
and Rochdale Care Organisation is now in post as Chief Executive of the LCO. 

 
3.1.1 Due diligence, contracting arrangements & scope 

Due to complexity of the system and the LCO, by its nature, being a relatively untested 
delivery mechanism, the LA and CCG have developed a “gateway process” through due 
diligence in full consideration of the Integrated Support and Assurance Process (ISAP). 

Gateways are described in 6 month blocks and consist of a series of contracts and/or 

services which may transfer to the LCO pending successful completion of the gateway 

review. 

A paper describing these gateways up until April 2020 has been discussed at LCO Board 

and agreed at ICB in March. 

Gateway 2 reached completion at the end of March 2018 following a formal due diligence 

process. It is acknowledged that there is significant learning to take place from this process 

and a series of discussions will take place during May which will result in recommendations 

Page 51



 

10 | P a g e  
 

for the next Gateway. In addition, a Service Development Improvement Plan (SDIP) is being 

developed to ensure that any areas of gateway 2 that required further development are 

covered.  

The completion of gateway 2 resulted in Core+2 and 17 Transformation interventions 

transferring to the LCO on 1st April 2018. A new contract is being developed for Core+2 and 

this will incorporate any fully mobilised schemes which currently include: 

 Core+2 

 Primary Care Academy  

 Discharge to Assess 

 Respiratory in Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 

It is aimed that all of the 17 interventions will be included in the contract by Q2, however it is 

recognised that this requires further review. The impact of this on further gateways needs to 

be understood. 

For 2018/19 the LCO partnership agreement sets out the arrangements by which all Board 

and Core Partners will engage with and work together to deliver the integration of local 

Health and Social Care Services, ensure the delivery of specific areas of the HMR Locality 

Plan (as agreed with the Strategic Commissioning Unit) and progress the LCO development. 

The LCO recognises the need and opportunities for meaningful primary care engagement 

beyond that of general practice. The Chair of the local GP federation, Rochdale Health 

Alliance (RHS) is a signatory to agreement and a member of the LCO board and Core 

members group. The agreement further describes: 

 

 The HMR LCO Board, purpose, roles and responsibilities, mutual expectations and 

obligations of Board members 

 The role of the Core Partners within the LCO, their responsibilities, mutual 

expectations and obligations 

 The relationship between the LCO Board, core partners, the HMR Integrated 

Strategic Commissioning Unit and through these relationships, the Integrated 

Commissioning Board. 

 

The LCO Partnership Agreement was signed and approved in March/April 2018. 

 

3.1.2 Organisational Development Programme 

From September 2017 the LCO has been challenged through a full OD programme 

consisting of multiple facilitated workshops with the board itself and to test and challenge 

events with operational leads. The workshops were designed around an evidenced-based 

model of how to make complex collaborations work, the success of which was summarised 

in 7 key recommendations presented and accepted by the LCO Board in October 2017. An 

action plan was developed and work to complete implementation of these recommendations 

is progressing. The recommendations are: 

 

Page 52



 

11 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Recommendation Action to date 

Create and implement a Memorandum of 
Understating 

LCO agreed that a Partnership Agreement 
was required, and this is now in place 

Identify and secure the right leadership New board now established with an agreed 
membership 

Develop leadership capacity and capability Organisational development in place to 
support vision 

Develop operational capacity and capability LCO Development Team in place  

Establish a safe environment in which 
collaborative behaviours can flourish 

OD workshops have been held 

Co-ordinate activities to bring together all 
aspects of delivery 

Master plan in place to drive activity 
milestones 

Develop an integrated communications and 
engagement function to engage staff and 
public about the LCO 

2 staff briefings have been held and 4 public 
engagement events 

 

 

3.1.3 Development of the Family Services Model (FSM) and links with the LCO 

Mobilisation of the Family Services Model is broadly on track against the implementation of 

plans.  The majority of posts have been recruited to, and the redesigned complex early help 

and safeguarding hub and the early help locality teams were formally launched in January 

2018.   

In December 2017, the Integrated Commissioning Board endorsed the exploration of an 

alliance agreement approach to underpin sustainable delivery of the FSM from April 2019.  

An initial session was held in February 2018 with alliances to inform planning and 

progression of this approach. Further sessions have taken place in March and April. 

A Family Services Model Partnership (FSMP) has been established, meets monthly and is 

chaired by the Director of Children Services.  The partnership oversees delivery of the 

children’s transformation theme, and is driving development of the alliance approach.  The 

partnership draws on membership from across the system, including four colleagues who 

also sit on the LCO Board.  The Assistant Director of Children’s Social Care also sits on the 

LCO board so that planning and developments are aligned and support the direction of travel 

to full alignment toward a single all age LCO and reciprocally three LCO representatives now 

sit on the FSMP. 

 

3.1.4 LCO Peer Review 

In November 2017 Rochdale was involved in an LCO Peer Review with GM H&SCP. This 

took the form of a guided conversation around a “conversation spine” covering the following 

areas: 

Page 53



 

12 | P a g e  
 

 Capability to deliver 

 Governance 

 In scope services and transformational schemes 

 Finance 

This was a very positive conversation and it was noted by GM that Rochdale LCO had 

developed quickly over the previous year. It was acknowledged that this had been supported 

by Rochdale’s track record in partnership working, integration and focus on delivery over the 

last number of years.  

The outcomes of the LCO Peer Review will be considered to support the due diligence 

process for LCO Development going forward.   

 

3.2 Next Steps 

 Plan and implement gateway 3 by September 2018 

 Finalise new contract for Core+2 and Transformation interventions, including Service 

Development Improvement Plan 

 Continue to develop FSM Alliance Contracting arrangements 

 LH Alliances being brought in as a delivery partner 

 

4. Delivery of Transformation 

Rochdale Locality Transformation bid described its vision as “By 2021, we will have reduced 

health and wellbeing inequalities between our most and least deprived communities and 

between the Borough and the rest of Greater Manchester”. The bid described how getting 

early help to those who need it, having joined up care in the place where people needed it 

and building individual and community resilience would deliver the vision.  

The following were reported in the 6 month report: 

 High level assurance and reporting mechanisms had been established 

 Initial governance arrangements were in place, including Partnership Boards and the 

Transformation Delivery Board 

 The PMO had successfully completed a GM review 

 An update on delivery was provided  

 Early stages of the Performance framework had been developed. 

 

4.1 Progress since last report 

4.1.1 Transformation Delivery  

Delivery of the Transformation interventions has continued. A refresh of the finance and 

activity assumptions for all interventions was completed in association with providers in 

November, the outcomes of which were reported to ICB. In addition, Rochdale responded to 

Page 54



 

13 | P a g e  
 

a request from Greater Manchester to identify any slippage in spend in 2017/18 which 

resulted in declaring a £1.7m underspend and agreement being gained for this funding to 

come back to Rochdale in 2018/19. 

Plans were further refreshed in March 2018 to ensure that the locality operating plans were 

in line with the investment agreement. This plan continued to be aligned during April to arrive 

at an agreed position with Greater Manchester. This has led to a reduction in our deflection 

aspiration. This change has had a significant impact on our ability to close the financial gap 

by 2020/21 and GMH&SCP are fully sighted on this.  

The LCO have expressed the need for discussion at LCO Board in relation to the phasing of 

the 17 interventions into the contract. This will be reviewed at the May LCO Board. 

During the last quarter improvements have been made in terms of maintaining and reporting 

on delivery of the Transformation interventions. A recovery process has also been 

established for those interventions identified as requiring additional support to deliver. 

However, it is acknowledged that at this early stage in some instances it is too soon to 

consider an intervention as in “recovery”. 

Governance arrangements have continued to be strengthened to assure delivery. The 

Neighbourhood and Primary Care Board is now chaired by the LCO Chief Officer with the 

Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning as co-chair.  

 

4.1.2 Update of Delivery 

Transformation interventions are still carrying a set back from the delay in receiving approval 

for the bid. However, with 20 interventions now either fully or partially mobilised focus has 

firmly shifted to identifying and tracking performance indicators to monitor deflections 

delivery for 18/19. While systems and processes are being developed and being tested out 

there has been a drive to really understand what effect Transformation is having. Specific 

Theme updates can be found in April’s Transformation Highlight Report, in the meantime 

below are just a few good news stories from the system:  

 

Integrated Neighbourhood Team’s – Eddie’s Story 

Eddie3 lost his left leg 12 months ago due to an infection following a knee operation. He has 

multiple long term conditions and reported low activation scores.  The Integrated 

Neighbourhood Team’s (INT) Wellbeing Champion worked with Eddie to develop his 

wellbeing plan which is part of the case management approach. The champion first met 

Eddie at the meet up group in Littleborough which followed him being part of the 

neighbourhood MDT ‘huddle’ conversation.  

After a lengthy chat he expressed that he would love to give swimming a go but felt unable 

to attend a public pool. The root cause was identified as confidence and not knowing what to 

do with his false limb. INT informed him about the accessible swimming session at Rochdale 

leisure centre and explained that they have swimming teachers on hand to assist if required. 

Eddie was keen to try and the champion accompanied him to his first swim. Eddie was 

introduced to the staff. 

                                                           
3
 Names have been changed  

Page 55



 

14 | P a g e  
 

At first he found the swimming difficult and managed three lengths, but really enjoyed it and 

was willing to continue. Fast forward ten weeks and Eddie is swimming twenty six lengths 

and is also attending two exercise classes per week.  Eddie feels his fitness levels have 

increased and is feeling much happier and activated to care for himself. His clinical 

indicators of long term condition control also improved. 

The redesigned integrated neighbourhood teams include a wellbeing champion and this 

offer is provided by link4life the borough arts, culture, sports and activity provider. The INT is 

delivered through a multi sector provider partnership.  

 

Focused Care Workers – Emily’s Story  

Emily4 was referred to Focused Care with multiple medical conditions and social concerns 

which included historical diagnosed breast cancer, poor mobility due to COPD, severe 

anxiety and depression, isolation and outstanding carers arrears. She was also not engaging 

with medical services. 

Due to her poor mobility and mental health issues she had failed to attend her breast 

screening and had ignored the bowel screening letter. Furthermore, she had no current 

dentist and needed new dentures. 

Leah5 arranged home visits to build a rapport with Emily and arranged and supported her to 

attend the breast screening appointment which resulted in a letter stating she was cancer 

free. The bowel screening test kit was arranged, and this now been completed and sent off. 

Through joint working with the GP Leah was able to refer Emily to the community dentist 

service regarding her dentures, she is now engaging with services and home visits have 

been completed by the GP and practice nurse to carry out her medication review and singles 

vaccination. 

Leah liaised with adult social care to arrange a financial assessment and the corporate debt 

services to have her debts frozen and a payment plan set up to prevent future debt which 

helped to reduced Emily’s anxiety. 

 

Family Services Model 

Lindsay Torrance – Head Teacher of Castleton Primary School – “I was a supporter of 

the previous system but at times it felt like either I had to challenge to be listened to or that 

we were told to ‘do a CAF’ and left to do it in isolation.  

Since the Family Services Model has been working and on the two occasions I have had 

need to contact the Early Help and Safeguarding Hub I can see a difference in the 

responses, in the level of partnership working and in the level of communication.  

Without breaking confidences, one was a call for advice that I then followed with the MARF, 

and then I had a call back from the hub to ask me about further information, and when I said 

we had not received any, the person in the hub said they would chase this up with health, 

where in the past at best it would have been ‘let me know when you do’. As a result the case 

is being assessed and I know that child is safe.  

                                                           
4
 Names have been changed 

5
 Names have been changed 

Page 56



 

15 | P a g e  
 

The second call was a conversation I had with the social worker on the Hub (Khizer). He 

listened and then shared the information he had and then he decided that the risks, at CAF 

level, were too high and that he would escalate this up; as a result there was a strategy 

meeting. This was a significant step and led to prompt action that protected the children. 

In both cases they were conversations where the needs of the child were prioritised, where 

the risk assessment model was clear for both parties, communication was effective and the 

process felt like more of a partnership and true multi- agency working. It felt like the Hub was 

actively working with us and not processing information.” 

 

 

4.1.3 Project Management Office 

The Project Management Office (PMO) has undergone rapid development over the last 

quarter uniting the following functions in a fully integrated team:   

 Programme and project management for delivery 

 Leadership and change 

 Finance 

 Performance 

 Business Intelligence  

 Risk 

 

The PMO team are focussed on the following areas:  

 Deep dives into 40 interventions to bring together a fully assured set of project and 

programme briefs 

 New and revised programme and project reporting across the interventions in 

transformation  

 A programme and project method tailored to suit our locality 

 A recovery process to support our interventions where required 

 Embedded financial performance information 

 Integrated risk analysis, management and reporting 

 Development of Transformation Performance Indicators to evidence the deflection 

realisation 

 A performance monitoring framework 

 Refined governance cycle to rapidly aid change and unblock system challenges 

 Promote good practices in the locality throughout the Greater Manchester portfolio 

 Gathering of good news stories  

Page 57



 

16 | P a g e  
 

Significant changes are being made to the day-to-day operating and reporting systems used 

by the team to demonstrate the programme’s progression as it moves into assured 

deflection delivery. 

 

4.1.4 Transformation Performance Indicators (TPI’s) 

A piece of work commenced in January 2018 to identify primary indicators for each 

intervention.  

 Workshops have been held with particular focus on finding direct connections 

between activities in the interventions and the strategic outcomes aligned to them 

with the important distinction that these indicators are not business as usual Key 

Performance Indicators but specific to Transformation. 

 Follow up work has taken the ideas that came out of each workshop to identify what 

can be used as a TPI and aligned with regular accessible data. The four interventions 

in the LCO contract have been the first to be presented at a Board for review, an 

approval route will now be set up for every intervention in Transformation following 

suit.  

 A dashboard will be created and in a phased approach will be use to report the 

progress of deflections to ICB moving forwards.       

 
4.1.5 Update on Greater Manchester Themes 

Taking Charge6 sets out the Greater Manchester themes as outlined below: 

 Theme 1 - Radical upgrade in population health and prevention 

 Theme 2 - Transforming community based care & support 

 Theme 3 - Standardising acute and specialist services to the best evidence 

 Theme 4 - Standardising back office and support functions 

 Theme 5 - Enabling better care 

Alignment of the Greater Manchester themes to localities continued with a programme of 

work taking place in November/December 2017, to establish a Maturity Matrix for all Greater 

Manchester programmes of work. This involved all localities assessing their progress and 

understanding a whole range of Greater Manchester programmes. It was acknowledged that 

Greater Manchester was ambitious in its aims and a prioritisation process took place to 

identify programmes to be delivered in 2018/19. The process ensured that localities would 

not be regularly impacted on by this prioritisation. 

The work across GM is complex and in the last two months work has begun to ensure that 

the GM work is aligned to transformation underway in all localities. To this end a GM 

Programme Directors Forum has been established, which the Strategic Commissioning 

Programme Director attends. 

 

 

                                                           
 

Page 58



 

17 | P a g e  
 

4.1.6 Master Plan  

A high level Master Plan process is now in place prioritising focus for each quarter towards 

service delivery milestones. The Master Plan supports the delivery of all three pillars of 

transformation and will ensure that there is no duplication in effort or gaps in work areas. The 

Master Plan will be held and co-ordinated by the Project Management Office and will be a 

key assurance tool for ICB and GMH&SCP moving forwards. 

The Master Plan will include the following areas: 

 Strategic commissioning function development 

 LCO development  

 Transformation delivery 

 Family Services Model development 

 Governance milestones 

 Greater Manchester Themes 

 North East Sector 

 

4.2 Next Steps 

 Continue to develop a suite of assurance and monitoring tools to include delivery, 

finance and outcomes 

 Standardised templates for interventions and for themes at a project and programme 

level 

 Further develop the performance framework and monitoring 

 Fully develop and track the Master Plan 

 Completion of the Transformation Performance Indicators and deflection information  

 Continued communication of Good New Stories from across the integrated system 

 

5. Summary and Action Plan 

The following action plan provides a summary of the actions in all the key work areas in the 

report. 

New and Ongoing Actions 

 Work Area Action Completion 
date 

Single 
Commissioning 
Function 

Strategic and 
Tactical 
Commissioning  

Continue to develop ICB sub-
governance arrangements and 
associated delegations 

July 2018 

Fully mobilise Clinical and Professional 
Advisory Panel 

June 2018 

Further develop thinking around 
Strategic and Tactical Commissioning 
and test our during 2018/19 

Ongoing 

Page 59



 

18 | P a g e  
 

Finalise outcome based commissioning 
framework 

June 2018 

Identify and develop plan to address 
any key areas arising from the 
Strategic Commissioning Peer review 

June 2018 

Continue to review opportunities for 
shared working – work completed on 
governance and joint risk strategy 

Ongoing 

Governance Develop and agree Scheme of 
Delegation to support governance 
arrangements 

Ongoing 

Contractual 
arrangements 
and scope 

Complete due diligence process Ongoing 

Development of 
Local Care 
Organisation 

Contractual 
arrangements 
and scope 

 

Plan and implement gateway 3 Sept 2018 

Finalise new contract for Core+2 and 
Transformation interventions, including 
Service Development Improvement 
Plan 

Sept 2018 

Continue to develop FSM Alliance 
contracting arrangements 

Ongoing 

LH Alliances being brought in as a 
delivery partner 

 

Organisational 
Development 
Programme 

Implement OD recommendations Ongoing 

Development of 
Family 
Services Model 

Contracting 

Assurance and 
monitoring 

Develop suite of assurance and 
monitoring tools 

Ongoing 

Delivery of 
Transformation 

Assurance and 
monitoring 

Finalise performance framework Ongoing 

Fully develop and track Master Plan Ongoing 

Continue to develop a suite of 
assurance and monitoring tools to 
include delivery, finance and outcomes 

Ongoing 

Standardise templates for interventions 
and for theme at a project and 
programme level 

June 2018 

Further develop the performance 
framework and monitoring 

Sept 2018 

Completion of TPI’s  Sept 2018 

Communication Continued communication of Good 
News Stories from across the 
integrated system 

Ongoing 

 
 

Page 60



 

19 | P a g e  
 

Completed Actions 

 Work Area Action Completion 
date 

Single 
Commissioning 
Function 

Strategic and 
Tactical 
Commissioning  

Define leadership team spanning 
strategic and tactical commissioning 
functions 

Complete 

Determine strategic and tactical 
commissioning resources – Different 
approach being taken with softer 
delineation between strategic and 
tactical commissioning 

Complete 

Develop Integrated Commissioning 
Strategy and Outcomes Based 
Commissioning Framework – 
Developed with approval in March 

Complete 

  

Pooled Budget Completion of Section 75 agreement 
for pooled budget 

Complete 

Governance   

Development of 
Local Care 
Organisation 

Contractual 
arrangements 
and scope 

  

Agree contractual scope  Agreed 

Agree contractual arrangements Agreed 

Agree services transition Agreed 

Organisational 
Development 
Programme 

Produce plan to implement OD 
recommendations 

Agreed 

  

Development of 
Family 
Services Model 

Contracting Agree interim arrangements for shadow 
year FSM 2018-19 

Complete 

Agree preferred contractual model Complete 

Delivery of 
Transformation 

Assurance and 
monitoring 

  

  

  

 

Page 61



Agenda Item
 Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 29th May  2018
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Author Tim Buckley
Public/Private Document Public

Health and Social Care Better Care Fund  Final Outturn Report-   
2017/18 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board (HWBB) on the final position of the Better Care Fund (BCF) 
for the financial year 2017/18. 

At its September 2017 meeting ICB allocated the capital budget brought 
forward from 2016/17.The February 2018 ICB monitoring report  approved 
capital carry forward requests of  £1,083k allocated to schemes which will start 
in 2018/19 due to lead in times and timing issues. There are now additional 
schemes £867k which will also be carried over, in the main this relates to the 
Springhill scheme which started in mid-March but for which the majority of the 
costs will fall in 2018/19, only £35k has been incurred in 2017/18 mainly 
relating to architects fees. The remainder of the carry forward is in respect of 
the main DFG budget and relates to timing issues with work ordered but 
unable to be carried out due to the inclement weather in February and March 
2018.The carry forward has been arranged in the Local Authority accounts  in 
2017/18. 

The revenue budget is showing a balanced position, this takes into account a 
transfer to the VAT provision against any potential liabilities, as in previous 
years, of £182k. The balance in the VAT provision is currently £401.6k.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Consider the final position for the BCF for 2017/18. The BCF return submitted 
on the 20th April under delegation from the ICB included the figures in this 
report.

The in-year revenue costs include a transfer to the VAT provision of £182k 
which leaves the revenue budget in balance for 2017/18. The current balance 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11



2.3

in the VAT provision is now £401.6k and it is recommended that the use of this 
provision be reviewed by the ICB in 2018/19.

That some of the capital projects agreed at its September 2017 meeting have 
not taken place in 2017/18 and have been carried forward into 2018/19 
(£867k), mainly due to a delayed start date at the Springhill project and timing 
of DFG works due to the inclement weather in February and March 2018, the 
carry forward has been arranged in the Local Authorities accounts. A separate 
report on the use of the BCF in 2018/19 identifies the carry forward and its 
planned use.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 At the May ICB and HWBB the overall BCF budget for 2017/18 was approved 
and regular monitoring of the budget is a requirement of the Section 75 (S75) 
agreement. The S75 agreement was approved by ICB at its September 2017 
meeting. The year-end outturn position has formed the basis of the financial 
information  submitted to NHSE on the 20th April 2018, as part of the 
regulatory returns required in 2017/18.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The BCF budget was set at the ICB meeting in May in line with the BCF Policy 
Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19 and reported to NHSE on the 
11th September 2017.

The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget 
and this was approved by the ICB at its September meeting. As part of the 
Section 75 agreement regular monitoring/ reporting of the budget is a 
requirement.

Alternatives Considered

It is a requirement of the NHSE guidance to produce a budget for 2017/18 
which the ICB approved at its May meeting. Monitoring of the budget is a 
requirement of the Section 75 agreement which was approved at September 
ICB, and the year-end figures are reported to NHSE as part of year-end 
returns, therefore there are no alternatives to consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

        
5.1    The BCF final revenue position shows as balanced to budget in 2017/18. This 
         includes a contribution to the VAT provision of £182k. This is £9k less than reported in 
         the period 10 report due to the variations below:          

 Reduction in equipment costs due to less than anticipated activity - (-£22k)
 Payment of IT licence costs for shared services- this results from the capital

IT purchased from the BCF capital budget is 2016/17. The costs are one-off as
the system will be replaced by Graphnet in 2018/19 which has Greater Manchester 

Page 63



transformation funding- (£31k).
  
Table 1 - BCF Revenue Final Outturn Figures

Line Number Revenue Schemes
Budget 
2017/18  Actual 

Variation 
Actual to 
Budget

£'s £'s £'s
1 Funding of Social Care Services 14,645,577 14,645,577 0
2 Care Act Implementation 197,926 197,926 0

Carers Services
3 Carers Universal Services 400,668 401,113 445
4 Carers- Locally Enhanced Services 10,000 1,555 -8,445
5 Carers night sitting service - dementia 80,000 0 -80,000

Carers sub total 490,668 402,668 -88,000
Reablement Services

6 Reablement - Dementia Support workers 81,810 81,810 0
7 Reablement - Intermediate Care Dementia Flexible workers 60,600 60,600 0
8 Reablement - Mental Health Outreach workers 100,729 100,628 -101
9 Reablement - Memory Clinic Dementia workers 47,969 47,924 -45

10 Reablement - Carers life after stroke 130,097 130,097 0
11 Reablement - Equipment loan store 936,724 913,875 -22,849
12 Contingency/Contribution to Reserve 49,121 213,549 164,428

Reablement sub total 1,407,050 1,548,483 141,433
Intermediate tier service 

13 Reablement (STAR's) plus to support the new service 226,867 173,434 -53,433
14 Pennine Acute ITS contract 5,566,060 5,566,060 0
15 Pennine Acute CQUIN - new funding from CCG 139,152 139,152 0

Intermediate Care sub total 5,932,079 5,878,646 -53,433
Total Revenue Expenditure 22,673,300 22,673,300 0
Income

16 Contribution from CCG -16,178,437 -16,178,437 0
17 Contribution from LA -6,494,863 -6,494,863 0

Total Income -22,673,300 -22,673,300 0
(Surplus) income over expenditure 0 0 0

5.2   The 2017/18 BCF capital allocation is showing a balanced position after agreement of
        a  carry-over of capital budget into 2018/19 of £1,950k which has been arranged  
        in the Local Authority accounts in 2017/18. 

5.3   The carry-over of budget has increased by £867k since the period 10 report which is
        due to the delay in the Springhill scheme originally due to start in February 
        2018 but delayed until mid-March, only £35k costs have been incurred in 2017/18, and
        timing delays on the main DFG budget due to the inclement weather in February and 
        March 2018.

5.4   The proposed use of capital carry forwards and the 2018/19 BCF allocation is included

Page 64



        in a separate report. 

Table 2 a - BCF Capital Final Outturn

Line 
Number Capital Schemes

Budget 
2017/18  Actual 

Budget 
Carry 

forward 
to 2018/19

£'s £'s £'s

1a
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)- 2017/18 
(allocation see below) 2,243,351 2,078,945 -164,406

1b
Additional Allocation (DFG) allocated by 
Government in January 2018 227,533 227,533 0

2
Capital Grant carried over from 2016/17- 
allocated at September ICB

2a DFG - Care Homes allocation 100,000 0 -100,000

2b
DFG- Adaptations in discharge to assess 
accommodation 150,000 0 -150,000

2c DFG- Adaptations to Autism Project 150,000 0 -150,000

2d
General Capital budget to support projects in the 
Locality Transformation Fund - Springhill 200,000 35,189 -164,811

2e
General Capital budget to support projects in the 
Locality Transformation Fund - Hubs 427,031 0 -427,031

3
Additional funding secured by the CCG for the 
Springhill Scheme 794,000 0 -794,000
Total Capital Schemes 4,291,915 2,341,667 -1,950,248

4 Contribution from LA -4,291,915 -2,341,667 1,950,248
Total Capital Contributions -4,291,915 -2,341,667 1,950,248
(Surplus) Contribution over expenditure 0 0 0

Table 2 b Allocation of 2017/18 DFG (in line 1a Table 2 a above)

Allocation of 2017/18 DFG
Budget 
2017/18  Actual 

Variation 
Actual to 
Budget

£'s £'s £'s
Main DFG Budget 1,500,000 1,220,326 -279,674
Disabled Homes Repairs Assistance Grants 100,000 120,000 20,000
DFG Top Up Grants 50,000 10,000 -40,000
Stairlift Replacement 100,000 182,000 82,000
Dementia, Falls and Excess Cold Payments 50,000 20,862 -29,138
Repairs to Adaptations 20,000 5,000 -15,000
Minor Adaptations 100,000 40,000 -60,000
Assistive Technology 50,000 85,000 35,000
Changing Places 15,000 4,649 -10,351
Care Homes Offer 200,000 391,108 191,108
Contingency 58,351 0 -58,351
Total 2,243,351 2,078,945 -164,406
   
5.5     The use of the DFG capital is very much demand led depending on people’s 
           circumstances and requirements. There are currently no waiting lists for people
           accessing DFG funding although timing of works can be difficult especially during
           the inclement weather in February and March which led to the underspend of £164k
           which has been carried over into 2018/19. There is a brief update on some of the 
           other major areas of spend below;

 There has been a good response to the work done with care homes in 2017/18 and 
budget to continue this in 2018/19 has been made available with a view to reducing 
the number of people requiring hospital admission direct from care homes (see 

Page 65



separate BCF 18/19 report).

Investment in care homes has been directed at the following;
• New sluice rooms
• Profiling beds
• Pressure relieving mattresses
• Conversion of bathrooms into fully accessible wet rooms
• New and upgrading of nurse call systems
• Non slip safety flooring
• Assistive technology sensors to link to nurse call systems.

An example of feedback is included below;

“The feedback from residents and their families has been fantastic.  The rooms are not only 
cleaner, fresher and brighter but they are more hygienic and easier to clean.  A number of 
residents are doubly incontinent so cleaning is more effective as no odour is left due to the 
type of flooring. There are 2 residents who are visually impaired and due to the rooms being 
a lot brighter the risk of them falling has now been minimised”

 A stair lift replacement programme has started in 2017/18 and will continue in 
2018/19, the stair lift provider is now working closely with the service including 
providing additional occupational therapist resource which has increased the speed 
of replacements, this will result in a revenue saving to the pooled budget as repair 
costs to stair lifts will be reduced, ICB will be updated during 2018/19.

 Changing places schemes have been difficult to deliver due to a lack of suitable 
properties interested in locating them, if any locations are found in 2018/19 they will 
be funded from contingency. 

 There has been increased spend on assistive technology in 2017/18 and this is 
planned to increase further in 2018/19 to make use of new emerging technology that 
can support the reduction of longer term health and care requirements.

 Some of the individual schemes are interlinked for example the main DFG 
programme funds works under the value of £8k, but if costs for an individual scheme 
are above £8k they would then fall into the disabled home repairs assistance budget, 
it is very difficult to predict the circumstances of each applicant.

 There were four top up grants approved within the system but due to unforeseen 
circumstances 2 of the applicants withdrew and another extension wasn’t completed 
in year due to the inclement weather.

 The response to the falls and excess cold grants has been positive, but it has taken 
some time for all prescribers to be aware of the scope of these grants. The numbers 
of referrals has increased month on month so they are predicted to grow in 2018/19.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

Any risk of operating the BCF in 2017/18 is covered in the Section 75 
agreement which was agreed by the ICB in September. 

Most of the budgets in the BCF are fixed price contracts but there are 
demand led budgets which could have posed a financial risk mainly around 
the provision of equipment, the budget increase of 13% in 2017/18 and the 
regular monitoring have allowed commissioners to mitigate any risks.

Page 66



6.3 There has been a risk identified in relation to recoverable VAT on the 
equipment loan store. A provision has been established to partly mitigate this 
risk and further work is being undertaken to fully understand if this risk will 
materialise.

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

8.Background Papers Place of Inspection
8.1 LA Monitoring working papers

CCG Monitoring working papers
Number 1 Riverside
Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Tim Buckley
tim.buckley@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925252

Page 67



 Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 29th May  2018
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Author Tim Buckley
Public/Private Document Public

Health and Social Care Better Care Fund  Revised Budget  Report-   
2018/19 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board (HWBB) of the revised budget for the Better Care Fund (BCF) 
for the financial year 2018/19. At its May 2017 meeting ICB allocated the 
provisional 2018/19 budgets for the BCF revenue and capital schemes. This 
report now updates the 2018/19 budget including issues which have affected 
the budget that have arisen during 2017/18 and taking account of any additional 
information that has been received.

ICB have approved the capital grant to be carried forward from 2017/18 into 
2018/19 and the proposed use of this grant is included in table 2 below.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Approve the revised revenue and capital budgets for the BCF for 2018/19.

Approve an additional £125k protection of Adult Care Services to reduce the 
pooled gap by this amount in 2018/19. 

The capital DFG allocation for 2018/19 is not yet confirmed by NHSE, this 
information is due to be notified in May. Members will be updated verbally at the 
meeting if the value has been notified by this date. The allocation included in 
this report is based on the national increases reported for the 2018/19 
allocations, if the local allocation differs from this figure any variation will be 
reported back in future ICB reports.

Approve the spending plan for the 2018/19 DFG capital grant and the capital 
grant brought forward from 2017/18 as detailed in table 2.

Page 68

Agenda Item 12



Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Rochdale Health and Well Being Board (RHWBB) have ultimate sign off of the 
BCF budget as mandated in the BCF Policy Framework and Planning 
Guidance. The RHWBB have delegated responsibility for the BCF to the ICB. 
The provisional 2018/19 budget for the BCF was set by the ICB in May 2017,  
this report updates that budget following decisions that have taken place in 
2017/18 and additional information that has been received since the budget 
was approved.

NHSE are still to decide if Greater Manchester BCF partners will receive 
graduation in 2018/19, until that decision is made it is assumed they will 
require quarterly budget and planning templates to be produced to monitor 
against in 2018/19, as yet no dates for these submissions have been received.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The BCF budget was set at the ICB meeting in May 2017 in line with the BCF 
Policy Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19 and reported to NHSE 
on the 11th September 2017.

The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget 
and this was approved by the ICB at its September 2017 meeting and will be 
updated as part of the overall pooled Health and Social Care section 75 
agreement for 2018/19. 

Alternatives Considered

It is a requirement of the NHSE guidance to produce a budget for 2018/19 
which the ICB provisionally approved at its May 2017 meeting. This report 
updates the 2018/19 budget for issues that have taken place since May 2017 
and additional information received from NHSE. Therefore there are no 
alternatives to consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Table 1 below shows the original 2018/19 budget approved by ICB in May
2017, and the revised 2018/19 budget. There have been some amendments 
to the budgets relating to actions taken in 2017/18 and also for additional pay 
awards recently notified, which are explained in the table. The budget shows  
excess income over expenditure of £247.5k. ICB are asked to agree to keep 
£122.5k as a contingency in 2018/19 and set the remaining £125k against the 
overall locality gap by increasing the protection of adult social care services.

Page 69



Table 1 Revised 2018/19 Budget

Line 
No Scheme

2018/19 Original 
Budget 

Approved by 
ICB in May 2017

2018/19 Revised 
Budget for 
Approval

Reasons for changes to original budget 
provision

Revenue Expenditure

1
Funding of Social Care Services 
2018/19 13,884,002 14,047,407

Includes costs of the joint Director post 
in the BCF pool

2
Additional Funding in Adult Social 
Care notified in Spring Budget 2017 3,169,389 3,169,389

3 Care Act Implementation 197,926 197,926
Carers Services

4 Carers -universal services 400,668 400,668

5 Carers- locally enhanced services 10,000 0
The service has been built into the 
universal services contract

6
Carers night sitting service - 
dementia 80,000 80,000
Carers sub total 490,668 480,668
Reablement Services

7
Reablement - dementia support 
workers 82,628 83,446 Takes into account LA pay award at 2%

8
Reablement - Intermediate Care 
dementia flexible workers 61,206 61,812 Takes into account LA pay award at 2%

9
Reablement - mental health 
outreach workers 100,830 100,830

10
Reablement - memory clinic 
dementia workers 48,017 48,017

11 Reablement - carers l ife after stroke 130,097 130,227 CCG inflation has now been allowed
12 Reablement - equipment loan store 936,724 936,724

Reablement sub total 1,359,502 1,361,056
Intermediate tier service 

13
Reablement (STAR's) plus to support 
the new service 229,136 176,903

Takes into account the overprovision in 
2017/18

14 Pennine Acute ITS contract 5,571,626 5,571,626

15
Pennine Acute CQUIN - new funding 
from CCG 139,291 139,291
Intermediate Care sub total 5,940,053 5,887,820
Capital Expenditure
Disability Facilities Grant

16 Disabil ity Facil ities Grant 2,243,351 2,435,830

Based on the national increase notified 
by NHSE, individual allocations yet to 
be confirmed. Spending plan is 
included in table below

Disability Facilities Grant sub total 2,243,351 2,435,830
Total Revenue Expenditure 27,284,891 27,580,096

Income

17 Contribution from CCG -15,828,477 -15,895,107
Includes additional contribution to the 
Director post

18
Contribution from CCG - uplift in 
BCF allocation 1.9% -589,454 -589,454

19 Contribution from LA -7,884,351 -8,173,605

Includes the revised DFG allocation 
above and the contribution to the 
Director post

20

Contribution from LA additional 
Grant notified in 2017 Spring 
Budget -3,169,389 -3,169,389
Total Income -27,471,671 -27,827,555

(Surplus) income over 
expenditure -186,780 -247,459

Increase relates to issues noted above 
and will be held as a contingency in 
2018/19.

Page 70



                  
5.2      The capital DFG budget has yet to be confirmed but based on the allocation
           above a spending plan is submitted for approval, see table 2 below. The 
           figures in table 2 include the 2018/19 anticipated allocation and the 2017/18 capital grant 
           carried over from 2017/18 and already earmarked against capital schemes. Should the 
           final 2018/19 allocation differ from the figures in the table any variation will be 
           amended with the contingency allocation and reported back to ICB.

Table 2a Allocation of 2018/19 Capital Budgets
Line 
No Capital Schemes

Budget 
2018/19

£'s

1a
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)- 2018/19- still to be confirmed (see 
allocation below) 2,435,830

1b
DFG - 2017/18 Care Homes allocation brought forward (see allocation 
below) 100,000

1c General DFG 17/18 underspend brought forward (see allocation below) 164,406
Total DFG in allocation below 2,700,236

2 Capital Grant carried over from 2017/18- allocated at September 2017 ICB
2a DFG- Adaptations in discharge to assess accommodation 150,000
2b DFG- Adaptations to Autism Project 150,000

2c
General Capital budget to support projects in the Locality Transformation 
Fund - Springhill 164,811

2d Additional funding secured by the CCG for the Springhill Scheme 794,000

2e
General Capital budget to support projects in the Locality Transformation 
Fund - Hubs 427,031
Total Capital Schemes 4,386,078

3 Contribution from LA -4,386,078
Total Capital Contributions -4,386,078
(Surplus) Contribution over expenditure 0

Table 2b Allocation of DFG included in lines 1a-1c in table 2a above

Allocation of DFG
Budget 
2018/19

£'s
Main DFG Budget 1,200,000
Fast Track DFG 300,000
DFG Top Up Grants 50,000
Stairlift Replacement 150,000
Dementia, Falls and Excess Cold Payments 60,000
Repairs to Adaptations 25,000
Minor Adaptations 80,000
Assistive Technology 150,000
Housing Options for Older People (HOOP) service 40,000
Care Homes Offer 400,000
Contribution to RBH newbuild properties for service users who LA cannot 
adapt properties for 100,000
Walking Aids 15,000
Contingency 130,236
Total 2,700,236

    

5.3     The following schemes  included in the budget carried over from 2017/18,
          in table 2 above, include a brief update of the current position;

Page 71



 Springhill- scheme has started mid-March and should be completed during September 
2018.

 Adaptations in discharge to assess- scheme is still at discussion stage, updates 
will be provided in future reports to ICB.

 Adaptations to autism project- scheme is still in discussion stage with prospective 
developer, updates will be provided in future reports to ICB.

 Locality transformation plan hubs- spend has started in April 2018,updates will be 
provided in future reports to ICB.

5.4      The spending plan for the 2017/18 carried forward DFG and the 2018/19 DFG 
           allocation is included in table 2 above, a brief description of each scheme is 
           included in table 3 below;

Page 72



Table 3 details of proposed DFG schemes 2018/19
Scheme Additional details

DFG
Disabled Facilities grants, going through national legislation, with the full means 
test applied.

Fast track DFG

Use of discretionary policy to mirror DFG's, but without means testing for cases 
where cost of work is less than £8k.  Can significantly reduce the timescale for an 
adaptation and has assisted with quick turnaround for hospital discharge e.g. 
fitting a stairlift within a few days.

Top up DFG
Discretionary top up grant of up to £10k where cost of works exceeds the £30k 
maximum upper grant limit.

Minor Adaptations

Fund the cost of the larger minor adaptations costing less than £1k, such as 
external metal handrails.  There has been an increase in minor adaptations since 
the introduction of the Care Act and the focus around the prevention agenda.  
There are more referrals for minor adaptations from Health colleagues such as the 
Falls Prevention Team

Assistive Technology

Fund the cost of AT equipment, such as careline units, falls detectors, Just 
Checking kits etc., which is mainstream AT.  Also to invest in new and emerging 
technology to pilot the benefits, such as robotic pets which research is evidencing 
can have significant health and wellbeing benefits for people with Dementia.

Dementia / Falls / Excess Cold 
grants

To fund a range of innovation grants, to prevent accidents and hospital admissions 
and to support people to live independently within their own homes for as long as 
possible.  The majority of referrals come from Health and Social Care 
professionals.

Stair Lift replacement 
programme

Replace the oldest stairlifts, which are owned by RBC, with new ones, that come 
with a full 5 year warranty, that will remain in the ownership of the service user.  
This pro-active approach reduces the reactive input needed from the OT team and 
has revenue savings to the Pooled budget.

Adaptations repairs
To fund repairs to existing adaptations in cases where the original service user still 
remains in the property with the same needs.

Housing Options for Older 
People (HOOP) service

Funding up to £40k of adaptations on RBH properties, to enable RBH to invest £40k 
in an additional HOOP worker to assist with adaptations support and wider housing 
options offers for older people, which will result in wider health benefits if people 
are living in the right home to meet their longer term needs.

Care Home grants

Fund accident prevention measures in Care Homes, including profiling beds, 
mattresses, gel cushions and AT.  £300k to be allocated to homes based on needs 
identified by Health and Social care professionals and £100k to be available for 
innovative bids from homes.

Contribution to RBH new build 
properties for service users who 
the LA DFG cannot adapt 
current property.

Utilising up to £30k to provide a DFG by contributing to the cost of a new build 
scheme being developed by RBH. These are for cases where peoples properties 
are not adaptable using the existing scheme.

Walking Aids

Social Care staff will be trained to undertake assessments and prescribe walking 
aids so that people at risk of falls can receive low level but effective prevention 
measures more timely to prevent falls and hospital admissions.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

Any risk of operating the BCF in 2018/19 is covered in the Section 75 
agreement which was agreed by the ICB in September 2017 and will be 
updated in 2018 to include the whole of the pooled Health and Social Care 
budgets. 

Most of the budgets in the BCF are fixed price contracts but there are 
demand led budgets which could pose a financial risk mainly around the 
provision of equipment. The budget in 2018/19 is set at the same level as in 
2017/18 and members of the ICB will be aware that the budget underspend 

Page 73



was £22k or 2.4% which will allow for additional spend in 2018/19. Regular 
monitoring will allow commissioners to mitigate any risks and contingencies 
are included in both the capital and revenue budgets which could be used to 
mitigate risks.

6.3 There has been a risk identified in relation to recoverable VAT on the 
equipment loan store. A provision has been established to mitigate this risk 
and further work is being undertaken to fully understand if this risk will 
materialise. It is expected that this issue will be resolved and an update 
reported to ICB in 2018/19.

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

8.Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers
CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside
Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Tim Buckley
tim.buckley@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925252

Page 74



1

Agenda Item

Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 29th May 2018 
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Author Tim Buckley
Public/Private Document Private

Health and Social Care Shadow Pool Budget Report- 
Final Outturn  2017/18 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the final position of 
the shadow pooled budget for Health and Social Care for the financial year 
2017/18. 
 
The final position shows an in year overspend of £3.4m.
This includes a balanced position in Adult Social Care (ASC) which is the 
same position as reported at period 10 and includes a budget carry forward 
(£1m) agreed by the ICB in April to go against the locality gap in 2018/19, this 
results from use of  grant funding in 2017/18 against mainstream budgets. 
The overspend in Children’s Social Care (CSC) is £0.3m, which is an 
improvement of £0.7m against that  reported at period 10, due to a reduction 
in residential placement costs and Specialist Educational Needs(SEN) 
transport costs against what was previously forecast.
The overspend in the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is £3.1m which is 
a £0.6m improvement on the position reported at period 10, mainly as a 
consequence of  a reduction in prescribing costs, due to a reduction in the 
number of drugs on the no cheaper stock obtainable list in the latter months of 
the year.

The CCG pressure has been funded from the CCG contingency and slippage 
on reserves in 2017/18. The Local Authority (LA) pressure has been funded 
from LA reserves in 2017/18.

Page 75

Agenda Item 13



2

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Consider the final position for the shadow pooled budget for 2017/18. It should 
be noted that the LA figures are still subject to external audit

Consider that the CCG pressure (£3.1m) has been funded from the CCG 
contingency and reserves in 2017/18 and the LA pressure (£0.3m) has been 
funded from LA reserves in 2017/18.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 At its meeting in April 2017 the ICB agreed that Adults Health and Social Care, 
prescribing and Public Health (PH) budgets would form part of the shadow 
pooled budget for 2017/18 and regular monitoring was agreed. A further report 
to the August ICB recommended that the pool be expanded to include 
Children’s Health and Social Care which is now incorporated into this report. 
This report updates the Board on the final budgets included in the shadow 
pooled budget and final outturn position as at the end of March 2018.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The operation of a shadow pooled budget for Health and Social Care was 
agreed at the April 2017 ICB.  This has formed the basis of the formal 
pooling of budgets between the two organisations in line with National Health 
Services England (NHSE) guidelines.

Since the April report further work has been undertaken analysing the 
budgets to be included within the pool, in particular around the PH budgets. 
A decision was made by the ICB in August to include Children’s Services 
budgets in the shadow pooled budget from September 2017. The figures in 
this report now include Children’s Services budgets.

In addition to the pooled/ aligned budgets for Children’s the Local Authority 
receives a ring-fenced grant called the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
provided to fund education for children in the Borough.  This covers funding 
to schools, early years provision and to support pupils with Special 
Educational Needs (SEN).  

Alternatives Considered

The operation of a shadow pooled budget has allowed learning to take place 
prior to the formal pool which is now in place from April 2018 as part of the 
agreement for Transformation Funding from Greater Manchester (GM) 
Health and Social Care Partnership.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The changes to the budget position previously reported to the ICB at period 
10 are;

 ASC £2.1m reduction mainly resulting from budget carry forwards, 

Page 76



3

including the £1m contribution to the locality gap in 2018/19 approved 
by the ICB in April, the Local Transformation Funding £0.7m, IT and 
personal health project budgets £0.3m.

 CSC £2.9m reduction mainly in respect of corporate accounting 
adjustments around employee insurance which are influenced 
budgets which will not be part of the formal pooled budget in 2018/19 
£2m.There is also unused grant in child protection services, which 
has been carried forward £0.5m and an adjustment with aligned 
services £0.4m (see table 4 below).

 CCG £1m increase, £0.7m in Acute services, £0.2m in Mental Health 
Services (additional training funding £0.1m, additional winter 
pressures funding £0.1m) and £0.1m in prescribing.

There is a dashboard at Appendix 2 which shows the allocation of budgets 
and this includes the pooled, aligned and exempt budgets in 2017/18.The 
exempt budgets include both the Locality Transformation Funding and the 
Better Care Fund, both of which will be included in the formal pooled budget 
in 2018/19. The dashboard also includes the percentage analysis of the final 
pooled budget between Adults services and Children’s services. 

5.2 The final outturn position shows an overspend in 2017/18 of 
           £3.4m this includes £2.4m on Adults and £1.0m on Children’s.
       The main reasons for this are explained in table’s 2 and 3 below and 
           detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.

The variations to the overspend reported at period 10 are as follows;

Table 1-Summary of Variances
Budget 
Area

P10
£M’s

Final 
Outturn
£M’s

Increase 
£M’s

Narrative

Children’s 
Social 
Care

1.0 0.3 -0.6 Reduction in 
costs of 
expensive 
residential 
placements 
and transport 
costs for SEN. 

CCG 3.7 3.1 -0.7 Reduction in  
prescribing 
costs.

Total 4.7 3.4 -1.3

The dashboard at Appendix 2 shows the allocation of the variation to budget 
between service areas and the changes in forecasts between period 10 and final 
outturn between service areas. For completeness the dashboard includes the Better 
Care Fund and the Locality Transformation Fund which are exempt budgets in 
2017/18, both of which will be included in the formal pooled budget for 2018/19, and 

Page 77



4

are additional to the pooled figures in the tables below.

Table 2 Major Variations – Adult Services
Period 12 - all figs in 
£'000

Budget Forecast Variance Reasons for Major Variations

Management, Support and 
Commissioning

2,116.8 2,125.1 8.3

Adults, Older People and 
Physical Disability Services

51,526.6 51,766.7 240.1

Learning Disability/ Mental 
Health  Services

49,142.3 50,344.6 1,202.3

Acute Services CCG   109,984.4 110,429.9 445.5

Primary Care-Prescribing 32,196.4 32,356.6 160.2

Other Services 1,729.7 2,134.8 405.1

Total Adult Public Health 7,781.7 7,773.7 (8.0)

Total Core Services 254,477.9 256,931.4 2,453.5

Locality Plan Transformation 
Fund

(8.4) (8.5) (0.1)

Total inc Locality Plan 
Transformation Fund

254,469.5 256,922.9 2,453.4

Reduction in availability of certain cheaper drugs and no cheaper 
stock obtainable (NCSO), partially offset by savings on Cat M drug.

Two neuro rehab patients over plan  (£445k). One at Highbank and 
one at Respite (North West) Ltd. Overspend in other services (£10k) 
offset in part by under performance on NHS 111 Call Activity (-£50k)

Pressure resulting from non staffing budgets

(-£550k) in year savings resulting from staffing vacancies in Adult 
Social Care Services. Pressures on Commissioning budgets from 
packages of care in ASC (£606k). Over performance on Continuing 
Healthcare Activity (£184k)  

Underspend in ASC staffing (-£165k) offset in part by a pressure in 
commissioned services (£79k).Overspend in complex MH case  
placements  (£710k), Overspend in non contractual services (£249k) 
overspend on Acute services (£408k) partially offset by  an 
underspend relating to other MH services (-£77k).
Over performance on the Foundations Trusts (FTs) of £2,197k offset 
by under performance on the private providers (-£1,111k),  
Ambulance costs (-£209k), winter resilience schemes (-£306k) and 
other acute services (-£125k)

Local transformation funding has been carried over into 2018/19 
(£671k)

In year savings resulting from staff vacancies

Page 78



5

Table 3 Major Variations – Children’s Services
Period 12 - all figs in 
£'000

Budget Forecast Variance

Management, Support and 
Commissioning

1,517.3 1,260.3 (257.0)

Children's Early Intervention 5,034.1 4,663.1 (371.0)

Physical Disability 5,584.3 5,906.9 322.6

Learning Disability/ Mental 
Health  Services

5,388.2 5,574.5 186.3

Special Educational Needs 4,480.7 4,660.7 180.0

Acute Services CCG 29,135.7 29,279.1 143.4

Children 0-19 Public Health 5,151.5 5,151.5 0.0

Cared for Children and 
Safeguarding

22,627.2 23,391.2 764.0

Primary Care - Prescribing 8,558.5 8,601.1 42.6

Other Services 482.8 470.0 (12.8)

Total Core Services 87,960.3 88,958.4 998.1

Reduction in availability of certain cheaper drugs and no cheaper 
stock obtainable (NCSO),partially offset by  savings on a CAT M drug 

Reasons for Major Variations

In year savings from vacancies in Children's social care

In year savings from vacancies in Children's social care

Over performance on Continuing Health Care (CHC) activity(£377k), 
partially offset by underperformance on non contract activity (-£54k)

Overspend in a number of areas relating to Children's Mental Health 
services 
Overspend due to increase in numbers of pupils with SEN and more 
complex conditions together with pupils having to travel further to 
appropriate specialist provision 

Overspend due to increase in numbers of cared for children (£186k) 
and increase in number of expensive residential placements (£578k)

Overspends across the acute trust due to increase in Non Elective 
(£15k),  Out Patients (£96k)along with other net pressures (£95k).  
Partly offset by winter resilience underspends (-£63k)

Minor underspends in a number of areas relating to other Children's  
services 

5.3 In addition to the shadow pooled budgets included in tables 2 and 3 above 
there are also some aligned budgets, these are for the ICB’s information only. 
Decision making for aligned budgets remains with either the CCG or the LA. 
The budgets are listed in table 4 below.

Page 79



6

Table 4 Aligned Services 2017/18
Service Host Budget

£000's

Health Protection PH 160

Physical Activity PH 622

Smoking and Tobacco PH 33
Other Public Health PH 1,473
Link for Life PH 2,571
School Improvement CSC 695
Schools Organisation CSC 219
Schools Personnel CSC 97
Area Special Educational Needs Co-
ordinator CSC -19

Education Psychology CSC 323
Youth Offending Team CSC 173

Emergency Duty Team CSC 290
Regional Adoption Agency CSC 835
Primary Care CCG 10,249
Acute Services CCG 36,336
Core Services CCG 2,600
Primary Care – Co commissioning CCG 29,183

Total Aligned Service
85,840

6.Risk and Policy Implications

The operation of a shadow pooled budget leaves the risk with each partner 
organisation to deal with as part of its own monitoring and reporting 
procedures.

6.1

6.2 The shadow pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2017/18 in 
line with the Governments guidance that all LA Adult Care and CCG budgets 
should be pooled by 2020/21 to support the integration of Health and Social 
Care. Section 75 of the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to 
local authorities and health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out 
of which payment may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise 
of prescribed LA functions and prescribed NHS functions.

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers
CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside
Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Tim Buckley
tim.buckley@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925252

Page 80



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\9\2\AI00027290$qnutoajg.xlsx 1 of 1

CCG & Local Authority Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Analysis 2017/18 (£'000) as at Period 12

Summaries by Age:-
Age Service Area Current Budget P12 Outturn P12 Outturn vs Current Budget Comments

Adult Management, Support and Commissioning 2,746.0 (629.2) 2,116.8 2,125.1 8.3 0.4% Pressures on non staffing budgets

Adult Physical Disabilities & Older People 61,524.0 (9,997.4) 51,526.6 51,766.7 240.1 0.5%
(-£550k) in year savings resulting from staffing vacancies in Adult Social Care Services.
Pressures on Commissioning budgets from packages of care in ASC (£606k). Over
performance on Continuing Healthcare Activity (£184k)

Adult Learning Disability/ Mental Health  Services 50,988.7 (1,846.4) 49,142.3 50,344.6 1,202.3 2.4%

Underspend in ASC staffing (-£165) offset in part by a pressure in commissioned services
(£79k).Overspend in complex MH case  placements  (£710k), Overspend in non contractual
services (£249k) overspend on Acute services (£408k) partially offset by  an underspend
relating to other MH services (-£77k).

Adult Acute Services CCG 109,984.4 0.0 109,984.4 110,429.9 445.5 0.4%
Over performance on the Foundations Trusts (FTs) of (£2,197k) offset by under performance
on the private providers (-£1,111k),  Ambulance costs (-£209k), winter resilience schemes (-
£306k) and other acute services (-£125k)

Adult Public Health 9,993.1 (2,211.4) 7,781.7 7,773.7 (8.0) (0.1%) In year savings resulting from staff vacancies

Adult Primary Care - Prescribing 32,196.4 0.0 32,196.4 32,356.6 160.2 0.5%
Driven by reduction in availability of cheaper drugs, partially offset by savings on category M
drug [Adult %]

Adult Other Services 2,485.9 (756.2) 1,729.7 2,134.8 405.1 19.0%
Two neuro rehab patients over plan  (£445k). One at Highbank and one at Respite (North
West) Ltd. Overspend in other services (£10k) offset in part by under performance on NHS
111 Call Activity (-£50k)

Adult Total 269,918.5 (15,440.6) 254,477.9 256,931.4 2,453.5 1.0%

Age Service Area Current Budget P12 Outturn P12 Outturn vs Current Budget Comments

Children's Management, Support and Commissioning 6,543.0 (5,025.7) 1,517.3 1,260.3 (257.0) (20.4%) In year savings from Children's Social Care driven by staff vacancies

Children's Children's Early Intervention 22,868.6 (17,834.5) 5,034.1 4,663.1 (371.0) (8.0%) In year savings from Children's Social Care driven by staff vacancies

Children's Community and Continuing Health Care 5,584.3 0.0 5,584.3 5,906.9 322.6 5.5%
Over-performance on continuing health care  - off set in part by reduced demand for
community non - contract services

Children's Learning Disability/ Mental Health  Services 5,388.2 0.0 5,388.2 5,574.5 186.3 3.3% Overspend in a number of areas relating to Children's Mental Health services

Children's Special Educational Needs 19,283.5 (14,802.8) 4,480.7 4,660.7 180.0 3.9%
Due to increased demand of Children with SEN and more complex needs & travel cost
increase to receive appropriate specialist provision

Children's Acute Services CCG 29,135.7 0.0 29,135.7 29,279.1 143.4 0.5%
Overspends across the acute trust due to increase in Non Elective (£15k),  Out Patients
(£96k)along with other net pressures (£95k).  Partly offset by winter resilience underspends (-
£63k)

Children's Children 0-19 Public Health 5,151.5 0.0 5,151.5 5,151.5 0.0 0.0%

Children's Cared for Children and Safeguarding 23,443.1 (815.9) 22,627.2 23,391.2 764.0 3.3%
Overspend due to increase in numbers of cared for children (£186k) and increase in number
of expensive residential placements (£578k)

Children's Primary Care - Prescribing 8,558.5 0.0 8,558.5 8,601.1 42.6 0.5%
Reduction in availability of certain cheaper drugs and no cheaper stock obtainable
(NCSO),partially offset by  savings on a CAT M drug (£43k)

Children's Other Services 482.8 0.0 482.8 470.0 (12.8) (2.7%) Minor underspends in a number of areas relating to other Children's  services

Children's Total 126,439.2 (38,478.9) 87,960.3 88,958.4 998.1 1.1%

Age Service Area Current Budget P12 Outturn P12 Outturn vs Current Budget  

All Total Health & Social Care Service Budgets (Excluding Locality Transformation
Fund)

396,357.7 (53,919.5) 342,438.2 345,889.8 3,451.6 1.0%

0 Locality Transformation Fund Available for All Transformation Bids (8.4) 0.0 (8.4) (8.5) (0.1) 1.1% Local transformation funding has been carried over into 2018/19 (£671k)

All Aged Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets - Including Locality
Transformation Fund

396,349.3 (53,919.5) 342,429.8 345,881.3 3,451.5 1.0%

P
age 81



Agenda Item

Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 29th May 2018 
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Authors Sam Evans
Public/Private Document Public

Pooled Budget Savings Programme 18/19 May Update

Executive Summary

1.1This report is to update the savings requirement 2018/19 report that was 
presented on the 10th of April which highlighted a pooled fund deficit of -£5.9m. 
This report is an update following the final submission of the CCG Annual plan to 
NHS England on the 30th of April and has a current pooled fund deficit of -£5.1m 
which is an improvement of £0.8m. A breakdown is set out in appendix 1.

1.2The report highlights the schemes that have been identified and implemented 
during the budget setting / contracting process. 

1.3The report also states the need to identify on-going savings schemes due to the 
remaining financial gap within the pooled budget and gives examples of possible 
mitigations that are available to close the current financial gap of £5.1m within the 
pooled budget.

Recommendation

2.1Consider the work undertaken to date on achieving the savings plan for 2018/19 
and the on-going work to ensure that the savings target is met to enable the 
Pooled budget to break even.

Page 82

Agenda Item 14



Reason for Recommendation

3.1This update confirms the status of the savings proposals for the pooled fund.

Key Points for Consideration

1 Savings requirement for Pooled Budget 18/19

The savings requirement for the Pooled budget for 2018/19 has been updated 
following the final submission of the 2018/19 CCG Annual Plan being submitted to 
NHS England on the 30th of April and is currently identified as:

 Table 1
On-

going
One 
Off RAG

 £m £m  

Revised Council Gap 9.425  -0.771  

Revised CCG Gap 8.000   

Total Revised Pooled Fund Gap 17.425 -0.771  

Transformation Fund Benefits (Note A) -5.173   

Decommissioning Strategy (Note B) -3.200   

Contract Negotiations -0.910   

Adult Services – Target -0.750 -1.000  

Children's Services – Target -0.251 -0.085  

Public Health – Target -0.120   

Savings Sub-Total -10.404 -1.085  

Total Revised Pooled Fund Gap after savings 7.021 -1.856  

Use of one off savings / resources -1.856 1.856  

Total Pooled Fund Deficit 5.165 0.000  

It should be noted that the revised LA gap is after non recurrent funding of £0.771m. 
£0.693m of this is the receipt of the additional Adult Social Care grant which is non-
recurrent. 

Page 83



The risk share agreement for the Pooled budget is 70/30 CCG/Council which in 
financial terms based on the above deficit would be £3.612m for the CCG & £1.550m 
for the Council. 

2 Savings Identified to date for 18/19

The total savings required for a balanced pooled budget are £16.654m.

A) Transformation Funds Benefits

 £m RAG

Acute 2.800  

Prescribing 1.000  

Care Packages 0.700  

Mental Health Assessment / Children’s services 
duplication of services 0.200  

Carry Forward Slippage 0.500  

Total 5.200  

Acute deflection schemes for 18/19 have been agreed and the contract reduced by 
£2.8m which is £3.3m in deflections offset by stranded costs of £0.5m as per the 
agreed rules for the Locality Plan. 

B) Decommissioning Strategy

 £m RAG

Prescribing Optimed – Health 1.000  

Prescribing: Gluten Free & Minor Ailments – Health 0.600  

Paediatrics Observation & Assessment – Health 0.400  

Mental Health Out of Area Beds – Health 0.500  

De-Commissioning of Sub-Acute Rehab Beds – Health 0.700  

Total 3.200  

The Decommissioning strategy, currently has £3.2m identified as per the table above 
against a previously reported saving of £3.5m in 2018/19. 

Page 84



There are a number of initiatives that have been agreed but are still to be delivered 
e.g. Mental Health reduction in out of area placements £0.5m, prescribing savings 
for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and the work undertaken by 
Optimed. The Extension of the Minor Ailment scheme has now been superseded by 
the public consultation on over the counter drugs. The £0.6m reflected above will be 
up dated to take account of this once the implementation date has been agreed and 
the financials have been worked through.

Work is on-going to calculate the potential gluten free savings following the national 
decision to only prescribe bread and mixes, but this is felt to be negligible following 
the review already undertaken by the CCG last year.

The contract with Pennine Acute Hospital Trust has also been updated to reflect the 
de-commissioning of Sub-Acute Rehab Beds £0.7m and the financial reduction for 
Paediatrics Observation and assessment local tariff £0.4m. 

C) Adult Social Care, Public Health & Children’s services

Adult Social Care has plans in place to delivery savings of £0.75m:

The Contracts have been recommissioned in 2018/19 and achieved £292k and rated 
as green.

Income generation which is already achieved £60k and rated as green

On-going review of S117 cases, CHC and ordinary residence cases with other 
CCG’s £243k and is rated as amber

On-going review of day time options for learning disability service users to utilise 
community resources £155k and is rated as amber.

Public Health of £0.12m  

Re negotiation of contracts, the main ones being Big Life Company (£40k) and the 
substance misuse contract (£58k) which is all achieved £120k and rated as green.

Children’s services of £0.251m

It should be noted that there needs to be a discussion that all of the savings below 
can be allocated to the pool which is still to take place for the purpose of this paper 
all the savings proposals have been added.

Utilisation of new grant for school improvement £150k rated as green

Efficiencies in Youth Offending and youth services £30k rated as green

Safeguarding savings £30k rated as green

Other savings £41k rated as green

Page 85



There is a one off carry forward of £1m which will be utilised to support expenditure 
in 18/19.

3 Mitigations

To date £12.3m of savings have been identified towards the opening pool gap. This 
means there is still a financial gap within the pool of £5.1m (as per table 1 above). 
There needs to be an agreement of how this gap will be closed in 18/19 to ensure 
both organisations meet their statutory duties and the implications for 19/20 if Non 
Recurrent measures are used to close the gap.

There are a number of potential mitigations that need to be considered and agreed in 
order to reduce the current gap within the pooled budget.

1. The CCG currently has a contingency of £1.9m of which 74% £1.4m may be 
available for the services within the pool but this would mean the CCG has no 
further contingencies within its financial plan. This is a last resort option 
towards the latter part of the year when all other options have been explored.

2. The LA is holding a reserve in accordance with the risk share contribution.  At 
the current size of gap this would equate to £1.550m. This is a last resort 
option towards the latter part of the year when all other options have been 
explored.

3. The contract with Pennine Acute Hospital Trust (PAHT) has a risk share for 
Non-Elective care which could result in an additional payment to the Trust for 
over performance to a maximum of £1m or a repayment to the CCG for under 
performance of £1m.  The impact of this will not be known until later in the 
year especially taking into account potential winter pressures.

4. Other saving proposals being explored in 18/19 some of which were detailed 
in last months report. Each of these programmes would need to be reviewed 
separately because there is an obvious time constraint with a number of these 
programmes due to the need for a public consultation.

5. The CCG are under taking a review of all of their budgets to assess if there is 
any scope for a further contribution towards savings.

6. Analysis undertaken has provisionally identified there may be in the region of 
£1m slippage from funding identified by the CCG and LA to support enabling 
costs within the transformation fund.  The locality will continue to explore 
external funding sources such as digital transformation funding and Estates 
transformation, as it did in 2017/18 to reduce the internal funding 
requirements

Page 86



7.

Mitigation Financial value Probability Financial value 
based on 

probability
1 CCG 
Contingency

£1.400m 75% £1.050m

2 Council 
contribution to 
deficit @ 30%

£1.550m 100% £1.550m

3 PAHT Risk 
share

+/- £1.000m 25% £0.250m

4 Other savings 
proposals

£0.500m 50% £0.250m

5 CCG Budget 
review

£1.000m 25% £0.250m

6 Joint investment 
slippage

£1.000m 75% £0.750

Total £4.100m

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1      The financial implications are captured in Section 4 above. 

Risk and Policy Implications

The financial outturn of the Pooled Budget is dependent upon the savings 
programme outlined in this paper and the identification of further schemes. 

6.1

Consultation

7.1 The Chief Finance Officer from the CCG has been consulted on the content 
of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 There are no background papers 
to this report

For Further Information Contact: Jonathan Evans
J.Evans13@nhs.net

Page 87

mailto:J.Evans13@nhs.net


APPENDIX 1 - HMRCCG/Rochdale Borough Council Pooled Budget 2018/19

From the table below it is clear that the locality has taken a system approach to the funding and delivery of health and social care. This takes into account 
both the CCGs and LAs financial positions. Without a system approach issues experienced in the past whereby residents are not receiving the most 
appropriately timely care because of funding issues between two separately funded organisations would have continued.  

Work is still ongoing to close the remaining financial gap and invoking the risk share which was agreed by ICB, CCG Governing Body and Cabinet in October 
is deemed by both organisations as a last resort

 Forecast 
Contributions 

to Opening Deficit as % of Estimated Savings & Additional Funds Remaining Deficit
 Costs Pooled Fund Deficit Contribution identified to date In-year Future years

     Recurrent
Non-

recurrent Total   
 £000's £000's £000's % £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
          

HMRCCG
                
275,084 

                
267,084 

                     
8,000 3.0%

                  
8,147  

                  
8,147 -147 -147 

          
Rochdale Borough 
Council

                
103,456 

                  
94,031 

                     
9,425 10.0%

                  
2,258 

                  
1,856 

                  
4,114 5,312 7,168 

          

Total
                
378,540 

                
361,115 

                  
17,425 4.8%

                
10,404 

                  
1,856 

                
12,260 5,165 7,021 

P
age 88



1

Shadow Integrated Commissioning Board

   

Date of Meeting 29th May 2018 
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Authors Rob Kilvington
Public/Private Document Public

Health & Social Care Pooled Fund – Update on the Section 75 
Agreement

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The purpose of this report is to update ICB on progress being made on the 
draft Section 75 Agreement for the Pooled Fund.

The Section 75 is based on the Section 75 for the Better Care Fund in 17/18, 
which in itself was based on the industry standard Bevan Brittan template.

This report confirms that the draft Section 75 for the Pooled Fund has been 
reviewed by the Chief Finance Officers from both the Council and the CCG, 
their respective Deputies and Senior Managers within their Services and is 
currently being reviewed by a combination of Legal Officers within the Council 
/ external Legal Partners as well as by the VAT officer within the Council.

It is thought that the Section 75 is now almost complete and will only be 
subject to minor changes arising from feedback from Legal / VAT officers. If 
the changes are only minor then it is recommended that final sign off of the 
Section 75 be delegated to the Pooled Fund Manager (Chief Finance Officer 
for Health & Social Care Integration). If the feedback on the legal / VAT issues 
requires significant changes to the Section 75, it is recommended that a full 
report be brought back to the next meeting of the ICB on 26th June.

It is recognised that this is a period of significant change in the integrated 
Health and Social Care economy. As we learn more about different 
commissioner and provider models it is quite possible that the Section 75 will 
need to revised in the future. If this is the case, further reports will be brought 
to the ICB updating it on these changes and the impact of them on the Section 
75.

Page 89

Agenda Item 15



2

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

Review the progress made on the production of the Section 75 agreement for 
the Pooled Fund and the agreement for the Council and CCG to progress with 
the operation of the pooled fund from 1st April as if the formal Section 75 was 
in place.

That the final sign off of the Section 75 agreement be delegated to the Pooled 
Fund Manager / Chief Finance Officer for Health & Social Care Integration 
once the Section 75 has been revised to reflect advice from Legal Services / 
VAT officers, if the changes don’t materially change the Section 75. If the 
changes are material, then a further report should be brought to ICB on 26th 
June 2018 updating on these changes and asking for formal sign off of the 
Section 75 by ICB.

As the integrated Health and Social Care economy develops, further reports 
may be brought to ICB updating it on these changes and the impact of them 
on the Section 75.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 A Section 75 agreement is required for the operation of a Pooled Fund, and 
this report therefore confirms the progress being made on its development.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The current draft Section 75 attached at Appendix 1 is based on the 17/18 
Section 75 for the Better Care Fund, which in itself was based on the industry 
standard Bevan Brittan template.

It has already been subject to review by the Chief Finance Officers of both 
Partners and their Senior Managers and is currently out for review by Legal 
Officers at the Council / external Legal Partners of the Council.

VAT advice is being sought from the Council’s Tax Advisers as to how to best 
meet VAT regulations and the Pooled Fund VAT position is also the subject of 
discussion at the GM VAT Officers group. The wording around Lead 
Commissioning arrangements is therefore still subject to change based on the 
final advice given.

Agreement has been gained with External Auditors re the accounting 
methodology for the Pooled Fund.  In order to prevent unnecessary 
complexities and onerous transactions, transactions for the commissioning 
functions of Partners (the Council and the CCG) will be incorporated within the 
Pooled Fund, the specific transactions underpinning the provision of social 

Page 90



3

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

care by the Council will remain within the Council’s financial ledger outside of 
the pooled fund accounts.

Schedules 1 & 6 that detail the size of the Pooled Fund and the contributions 
made by the two Partners to the Fund reflect the figures reported to ICB on 
10th April 18 in the “18/19 Opening Budgets” report. Schedule 1 also includes 
details of the revised gap as disclosed in a separate report being brought to 
ICB on 29th May, with the impact of this on both Partners being detailed should 
the Risk Share Agreement be invoked. 

Schedule 2 reflects the Governance arrangements reflected in the report 
taken by the Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning to ICB on 8th August 
2017. If changes to the Governance arrangements are made in the future, it is 
proposed that once these are approved by ICB then they should inserted into 
Schedule 2 replacing those agreed on 8th August 17. 

Schedule 3 reflects the Risk Share arrangements approved by ICB on 10th 
October 2017, by the CCG’s Governing Body on 17th November 2017 and the 
Council’s Cabinet on 28th November 2017.

Schedule 4 reflects the Conflicts of Interest protocols reflected in the 
Governance arrangements incorporated in the report taken by the Joint 
Director of Integrated Commissioning to ICB on 8th August 2017. 

Schedule 5 has been extracted from the Information Governance schedule 
within the 17/18 Better Care Fund Section 75, albeit with reference now being 
made to the revised Information Governance arrangements arising from 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) with effect from 25th May 2018. 

Once all the outstanding issues around VAT have been confirmed and Legal 
Services have completed their review of the agreement, it is hoped that 
subject to materiality of any changes that might be necessary, approval for the 
sign off of the Section 75 can be delegated to the Pooled Fund Manager / 
Chief Finance Officer Health & Social Care Integration.  
 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1     The total value of the Pooled Fund, the contributions made to it by the 
Partners and the risk share agreement that would be actioned were the 
Pooled Fund to outturn in either a surplus or deficit position are all detailed 
in Schedules 1, 6 and 3 respectively within the Section 75 Agreement 
attached at Appendix 1.   

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 allows local authorities and NHS bodies to 
enter into partnership arrangements to provide a more streamlined service 
and to pool resources, if such arrangements are likely to lead to an 

Page 91



4

improvement in the way their functions are exercised. The legal mechanisms 
allowing budgets to be pooled under the section 75 partnership agreement 
enable greater integration between health and social care and more locally 
designed services. Section 75 permits formation of a pooled budget 
comprised of contributions by both the Council and the CCG from which 
payments can be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of both 
prescribed functions of the NHS body and health-related functions of the 
council. The Act precludes CCGs from delegating any functions relating to 
family health services, the commissioning of surgery, radiotherapy and certain 
other invasive treatments and emergency ambulance services. For local 
authorities, the services that can be included within section 75 arrangements 
are broad in scope and a detailed exclusions list is contained within 
Regulations of the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership 
Arrangements Regulations 2000. 

Consultation

7.1 The Chief Finance Officers from both the Council and the CCG have been 
consulted on the content of this report whilst the Head of Legal Services is still 
reviewing the report from a legal perspective. Further advice has been sought 
in relation to VAT.

8.Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 There are no background papers 
to this report

For Further Information Contact: Rob Kilvington
rob.kilvington@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925444

Page 92



1 | P a g e

Dated 1st April 2018

 The Rochdale Borough Council

and

NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

FRAMEWORK PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT RELATING 
TO THE COMMISSIONING OF INTEGRATED HEALTH AND 

SOCIAL CARE SERVICES

Page 93



2 | P a g e

Contents

Item

PARTIES
BACKGROUND
1 DEFINED TERMS AND INTERPRETATION
2 TERM
3 GENERAL PRINCIPLES
4 PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS
5 FUNCTIONS
6 COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS
7 POOLED FUND
8 POOLED FUND MANAGEMENT
9 FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS
10 RISK SHARE ARRANGMENTS, OVERSPENDS AND UNDERSPEND
11 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
12 VAT
13 AUDIT AND RIGHT OF ACCESS
14 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND SERVICE
15 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
16 GOVERNANCE
17 REVIEW
18 COMPLAINTS
19 TERMINATION & DEFAULT
20 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
21 FORCE MAJEURE
22 CONFIDENTIALITY
23 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION REGULATIONS
24 OMBUDSMEN
25 INFORMATION SHARING
26 NOTICES
27 VARIATION
28 CHANGE IN LAW
29 WAIVER
30 SEVERANCE
31 ASSIGNMENT  AND SUB CONTRACTING
32 EXCLUSION OF PARTNERSHIP AND AGENCY
33 THIRD PARTY RIGHTS
34 ENTIRE AGREEMENT
35 GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

Page 94



3 | P a g e

SCHEDULES
SCHEDULE 1 - SCHEME SPECIFICATION
SCHEDULE 2  - GOVERNANCE
SCHEDULE 2 - APPENDIX 1
SCHEDULE 3 - RISKSHARE AND OVERSPENDS
SCHEDULE 4 - INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
SCHEDULE 5 - INFORMATION GOVERNANCE PROTOCOL
SCHEDULE 6 - FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Page 95



4 | P a g e

THIS AGREEMENT is made on 
PARTIES

(1) The Rochdale Borough Council of Number 1 Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU (the 
"Council")

(2) NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of Number 1 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU(the "CCG") 

BACKGROUND

(A) The Council has responsibility for commissioning and/or providing social care and Public Health 
services on behalf of the population of the borough of Rochdale.

(B) The CCG has the responsibility for commissioning health services pursuant to the 2006 Act in the 
borough of Rochdale.

(C) Both the Council and the CCG have been working together since 2016/17 to develop arrangements 
for integrated commissioning at a large scale  for Social Care, Public Health and Health services for 
the residents of Rochdale BC.  These developments are bringing together the majority of 
commissioning work undertaken by both the Council and the CCG into a single integrated 
arrangement, enabling the two Partners to act as one in the design, development, procurement and 
monitoring of services for the local people. In 2018/19 this was in the form of a Shadow Pooled Fund 
for 2017/18 and a formal pooled fund from 2018/19 onwards.. 

(D) Both organisations have been successful in jointly securing Transformation Funding from the  
Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership. A requirement of the funding is that the 
CCG and the Council establish a pooled fund for Integrated Commissioning. Section 75 of the 2006 
Act gives powers to local authorities and clinical commissioning groups to establish and maintain 
pooled funds out of which payment may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of 
prescribed local authority functions and prescribed NHS functions. 

(E) The purpose of this Agreement is to set out the terms on which the Partners have agreed to 
collaborate and to establish a framework through which the Partners can secure the future position 
of health and social care services through lead or joint commissioning arrangements.  It is also 
means through which the Partners will pool funds and align budgets as agreed between the 
Partners.

(F) The aims and benefits of the Partners in entering in to this Agreement are to:

a) improve the quality and efficiency of the Services;

b) meet the National Conditions and Local Objectives; 

c) make more effective use of resources through the establishment and maintenance of a pooled 
fund for revenue and capital expenditure on the Services;

d) facilitate a co-ordinated network of health and social care and public health services, ensuring 
the best use of resources by reducing duplication of service provision 

e) achieve economies of scale through joint commissioning of health, public health and social care 
services;

f) improve integration of commissioning of health, public health and social care services, 
improving outcomes for people using both health, public health and social care services 

(G) Improve the opportunity for the integration of health, public health and social care commissioning 
with other local partnerships critical to the delivery of improved health and social care outcomes.  

Page 96



5 | P a g e

(H) The Partners are entering into this Agreement in exercise of the powers referred to in Section 75 of 
the 2006 Act and/or Section 13Z(2) and 14Z(3) of the 2006 Act as applicable, to the extent that 
exercise of these powers is required for this Agreement.

1 DEFINED TERMS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 In this Agreement, save where the context requires otherwise, the following words, terms and 
expressions shall have the following meanings:

1998 Act means the Data Protection Act 1998.

2000 Act means the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

2004 Regulations means the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

2006 Act means the National Health Service Act 2006.

Affected Partner means, in the context of Clause 21, the Partner whose obligations under the 
Agreement have been affected by the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event

Agreement means this agreement including its Schedules and Appendices.

Approved Expenditure means any authorised expenditure which has been approved by the 
Integrated Commissioning Board in relation to a scheme or Third Party payment within the Pooled 
Fund. 

Authorised Officers means an officer of each Partner appointed to be that Partner's representative 
for the purpose of this Agreement.

CCG Statutory Duties means the Duties of the CCG pursuant to Sections 14P to 14Z2  of the 2006 
Act 

Change in Law means the coming into effect or repeal (without re-enactment or consolidation) in 
England of any Law, or any amendment or variation to any Law, or any judgment of a relevant court 
of law which changes binding precedent in England after the date of this Agreement

Commencement Date means 00:01 hrs on 1st April 2018.

Confidential Information means information, data and/or material of any nature which any Partner 
may receive or obtain in connection with the operation of this Agreement and the Services and:

(a) which comprises Personal Data or Sensitive Personal Data or which relates to any patient or 
his treatment or medical history;

(b) the release of which is likely to prejudice the commercial interests of a Partner or the 
interests of a Service User respectively; or

(c) which is a trade secret.

Contract Price means any sum payable to a Provider under a Service Contract as consideration for 
the provision of Services and which, for the avoidance of doubt, does not include any Default Liability 
or Performance Payment with the exception CQUIN on NHS contracts on behalf of the CCG.

Default Liability means any sum which is agreed or determined by Law or in accordance with the 
terms of a Services Contract) to be payable by any Partner(s) to the Provider as a consequence of 
(i) breach by any or all of the Partners of an obligation(s) in whole or in part) under the relevant 
Services Contract or (ii) any act or omission of a third party for which any or all of the Partners are, 
under the terms of the relevant Services Contract, liable to the Provider.

Page 97



6 | P a g e

Financial Contributions means the financial contributions made by each Partner to a Pooled Fund 
as set out in Schedule 8 

Financial Year means each financial year running from 1 April in any year to 31 March in the 
following calendar year. 

Force Majeure Event means one or more of the following:
(a) war, civil war (whether declared or undeclared), riot or armed conflict;

(b) acts of terrorism;

(c) acts of God;

(d) fire or flood;

 (e) prevention from or hindrance in obtaining raw materials, energy or other supplies;

(f) any form of contamination or virus outbreak; and
in each case where such event is beyond the reasonable control of the Partner claiming relief 

Functions means the NHS Functions and the Health Related Functions

Health Related Functions means those of the health related functions of the Council, specified in 
Regulation 6 of the Regulations as relevant to the commissioning of the Services and which may be 
further described in the relevant Scheme Specification. 

Health and Wellbeing Board means the Health and Wellbeing Board established by the Council 
pursuant to Section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Host Partner means the Council which will host the Integrated Pooled Fund for the Partner’s

Indirect Losses means loss of profits, loss of use, loss of production, increased operating costs, 
loss of business, loss of business opportunity, loss of reputation or goodwill or any other 
consequential or indirect loss of any nature, whether arising in tort or on any other basis.

Integrated Commissioning means arrangements by which both Partners commission Services in 
relation to an individual Service on behalf of each other or jointly in the exercise of both the NHS 
Functions and Health Related Functions through integrated structures. 

Integrated Commissioning Board means the joint committee established under Regulation 10 of 
the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 as amended 
which is a decision making body accountable to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

Law means:

(a) any statute or proclamation or any delegated or subordinate legislation;

(b) any enforceable community right within the meaning of Section 2(1) European Communities 
Act 1972;

(c) any guidance, direction or determination with which the Partner(s) or relevant third party (as 
applicable) are bound to comply to the extent that the same are published and publicly 
available or the existence or contents of them have been notified to the Partner(s) or relevant 
third party (as applicable); and

(d) any judgment of a relevant court of law which is a binding precedent in England.

Lead Commissioning Arrangements means the arrangements by which one Partner commissions 
Services in relation to an Individual Scheme on behalf of the other Partner in exercise of both the 
NHS Functions and the Health Related Functions.

Page 98



7 | P a g e

Lead Commissioner means the Partner responsible for commissioning an Individual Service under 
a Scheme Specification.

Losses means all damage, loss, liabilities, claims, actions, costs, expenses (including the cost of 
legal and/or professional services), proceedings, demands and charges whether arising under 
statute, contract or at common law but excluding Indirect Losses and "Loss" shall be interpreted 
accordingly.

Month means a calendar month.

National Conditions mean the national conditions as set out in the NHS England Planning 
Guidance as are amended or replaced from time to time.

NHS Functions means those of the NHS functions listed in Regulation 5 of the Regulations as are 
exercisable by the CCG as are relevant to the commissioning of the Services and which may be 
further described in each Service Schedule 

Non-Recurrent Payments means funding provided by a Partner to a Pooled Fund in addition to the 
Financial Contributions pursuant to arrangements agreed in accordance with Clause 9 and Schedule 
8

Overspend means net expenditure within the Pooled Fund for a Financial Year which exceeds the 
agreed Financial Contributions from each Partner

Partner means each of the CCG and the Council, and references to "Partners" shall be construed 
accordingly.

Permitted Budget means the approved budget provision within the Pooled Fund for payments in 
relation to Services detailed in Schedule 1 funded from the Pooled. Each Permitted Budget will have 
a budget holder employed by one or other of the Partners.

Permitted Expenditure means approved expenditure in relation to the Scheme Specification 
detailed in Schedule 1 and any Third Party payments authorised by the Integrated Commissioning 

Board.

Personal Data means Personal Data as defined by the 1998 Act.

Pooled Fund means the pooled fund established for the delivery of  Integrated Health and Social 
Care including Public Health  and maintained by the Host Partner as a pooled fund in accordance 
with the Regulations

Pooled Fund Manager which is the CCG’s Chief Finance Officer for Integrated Health and Social 
Care in accordance with Clause 8.  

Provider means a provider of any Services commissioned under the arrangements set out in this 
Agreement.

Public Health England means the SOSH trading as Public Health England.

Quarter means each of the following periods in a Financial Year:

1 April to 30 June

1 July to 30 September

1 October to 31 December

1 January to 31 March 

Page 99



8 | P a g e

and "Quarterly" shall be interpreted accordingly.

Regulations means the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 
2000 No 617 (as amended). 

Scheme Specification means the specifications setting out the arrangements agreed by the 
Partners to be commissioned under this Agreement.

Sensitive Personal Data means Sensitive Personal Data as defined in the 1998 Act.

Services means such health, public health and social care services as agreed from time to time by 
the Partners as commissioned under the arrangements set out in this Agreement and more 
specifically defined in each Scheme Specification.

Services Contract means an agreement for the provision of Services entered into with a Provider 
by one or more of the Partners in accordance with the relevant Individual Scheme.

Service Users means those individuals for whom the Partners have a responsibility to commission 
the Services.

SOSH means the Secretary of State for Health. 

Third Party Costs means all such third party costs including legal, finance, audit  and other 
professional fees agreed by the Integrated Commissioning Board 

Working Day means 8.00am to 6.00pm on any day except Saturday, Sunday, Christmas Day, Good 
Friday or a day which is a bank holiday (in England) under the Banking & Financial Dealings Act 
1971.

1.2 In this Agreement, all references to any statute or statutory provision shall be deemed to include 
references to any statute or statutory provision which amends, extends, consolidates or replaces the 
same and shall include any orders, regulations, codes of practice, instruments or other subordinate 
legislation made thereunder and any conditions attaching thereto.  Where relevant, references to 
English statutes and statutory provisions shall be construed as references also to equivalent 
statutes, statutory provisions and rules of law in other jurisdictions.

1.3 Any headings to Clauses, together with the front cover and the index are for convenience only and 
shall not affect the meaning of this Agreement.  Unless the contrary is stated, references to Clauses 
and Schedules shall mean the clauses and Schedules of this Agreement.

1.4 Any reference to the Partners shall include their respective statutory successors, employees and 
agents.

1.5 In the event of a conflict, the conditions set out in the Clauses to this Agreement shall take priority 
over the Schedules. 

1.6 Where a term of this Agreement provides for a list of items following the word "including" or 
"includes", then such list is not to be interpreted as being an exhaustive list.

1.7 In this Agreement, words importing any particular gender include all other genders, and the term 
"person" includes any individual, partnership, firm, trust, body corporate, government, governmental 
body, trust, agency, unincorporated body of persons or association and a reference to a person 
includes a reference to that person's successors and permitted assigns.

1.8 In this Agreement, words importing the singular only shall include the plural and vice versa.

1.9 In this Agreement, "staff" and "employees" shall have the same meaning and shall include reference 
to any full or part time employee or officer, director, manager and agent.

Page 100



9 | P a g e

1.10 Subject to the contrary being stated expressly or implied from the context in these terms and 
conditions, all communication between the Partners shall be in writing.

1.11 Unless expressly stated otherwise, all monetary amounts are expressed in pounds sterling but in the 
event that pounds sterling is replaced as legal tender in the United Kingdom by a different currency 
then all monetary amounts shall be converted into such other currency at the rate prevailing on the 
date such other currency first became legal tender in the United Kingdom.

1.12 All references to the Agreement include (subject to all relevant approvals) a reference to the 
Agreement as amended, supplemented, substituted, novated or assigned from time to time.

2 TERM 

2.1 This Agreement shall come into force on the Commencement Date. This Agreement shall continue 
for a period of one year from the Commencement Date or unless it is terminated in accordance with 
Clause 19.

3 GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

3.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall affect: 

3.1.1 the liabilities of the Partners to each other or to any third parties for the exercise of their 
respective functions and obligations or

3.1.2 any power or duty to recover charges for the provision of any services (including the 
Services) in the exercise of any local authority function.

3.2 The Partners agree to:

3.2.1 treat each other with respect and an equality of esteem;

3.2.2 be open with information about the performance and financial status of each; and

3.2.3 provide early information and notice about relevant problems.

4 PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS 

4.1 This Agreement sets out the mechanism through which the Partners will work together to establish 
one or more of the following: 

4.1.1 the establishment of a Pooled Funds 

4.1.2 Integrated Commissioning ; 

4.1.3 Lead Commissioning Arrangements where appropriate

in relation to Individual Schemes The Council delegates to the CCG and the CCG agrees to 
exercise, on the Council's behalf, the Health Related Functions to the extent necessary for the 
purpose of performing its obligations under this Agreement in conjunction with the NHS Functions.  

4.2 The CCG delegates to the Council and the Council agrees to exercise on the CCG's behalf the NHS 
Functions to the extent necessary for the purpose of performing its obligations under this Agreement 
in conjunction with the Health Related Functions. 

4.3 Where the powers of a Partner to delegate any of its statutory powers or functions are restricted, 
such limitations will automatically be deemed to apply to the relevant Scheme Specification and the 
Partners shall agree arrangements designed to achieve the greatest degree of delegation to the 

Page 101



10 | P a g e

other Partner necessary for the purposes of this Agreement which is consistent with the statutory 
constraints. 

5 FUNCTIONS 

5.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a framework through which the Partners can secure 
the provision of health, public health and social care services in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement.  

5.2 This Agreement shall include such functions as shall be agreed from time to time by the Integrated 
Commissioning Board.  

5.3 The Scheme Specification for the use of the Pooled Fund are set out in Schedule 1 

5.4 The introduction of any Individual Scheme will be subject to business case approval by and the 
Integrated Commissioning Board 

6 COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS

  6.1 Integrated Commissioning:  Where there are Integrated Commissioning arrangements in respect 
of an Individual Scheme, both Partners shall work in cooperation and shall endeavour to ensure that 
the NHS Functions and Health Related Functions are commissioned with all due skill, care and 
attention.  

6.2 Both Partners shall be responsible for compliance with and making payments of all sums due to a 
Provider pursuant to the terms of each Service Contract.

6.3 Each Partner shall keep the other Partner regularly informed of the effectiveness of the 
arrangements. 

6.4 The Integrated Commissioning Board will report back to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to the 
Cabinet of Rochdale Borough Council and the Governing Body of Heywood, Middleton. Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group as required by its Terms of Reference which are attached as 
Schedule 2. 

6.5    Lead Commissioning: Where there is a Lead Commissioning Arrangement in respect of an 
Individual Scheme. The Lead Commissioner shall develop a Scheme Specification and consult and 
agree procurement arrangements with the other Partner. In addition the Lead Commissioner will 

6.5.1 exercise the NHS Functions in conjunction with the Health Related Functions as identified 
in the relevant Scheme Specification;

6.5.2 endeavour to ensure that the NHS Functions and the Health Related Functions are 
funded within the parameters of the Financial Contributions in each Financial Year.

6.5.3 commission Services for individuals who meet the eligibility criteria set out in the relevant 
Scheme Specification;

6.5.4 contract with Provider(s) for the provision of the Services on terms agreed with the other 
Partners;

6.5.5 comply with all relevant legal duties and guidance of both Partners in relation to the 
Services being commissioned;

6.5.6 where Services are commissioned using the NHS Standard Form Contract, perform the 
obligations of the “Commissioner”” with all due skill, care and attention and where 
Services are commissioned using any other form of contract to perform its obligations 
with all due skill and attention;

Page 102



11 | P a g e

6.5.7 undertake performance management and contract monitoring of all Service Contracts;

6.5.8 make payment of all sums due to a Provider pursuant to the terms of any Services 
Contract.

6.5.9 keep the other Partner regularly informed of the effectiveness of the arrangements and 
inform the other Partner of any potential Overspend or Underspend 

7 POOLED FUND

7.1 In exercise of their respective powers under Section 75 of the 2006 Act, the Partners have agreed to 
establish and maintain one Pooled Fund for revenue and capital expenditure as set out in the 
Scheme Specifications. 

7.2 The Pooled Fund shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

7.3 It is agreed that the monies held in the Pooled Fund may only be expended on the following:  

7.3.1 the Contract Price for Areas of Provision detailed in Schedule 1;

7.3.2 Third Party Costs; 

7.3.3 Approved Expenditure 

7.4 The Partners may only depart from the Permitted Budget with the express agreement of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board.

7.5 For the avoidance of doubt, monies held in the Pooled Fund may not be expended on Default 
Liabilities unless this is agreed by all Partners.

7.6 Pursuant to this Agreement, the Partners agree to appoint a Host Partner for the Pooled Fund. The 
Host Partner shall be the Partner responsible for:

7.6.1 holding all monies contributed to the Pooled Fund on behalf of itself and the other 
Partners;

7.6.2 providing the financial administrative systems for the Pooled Fund; and

7.6.3 appointing the Pooled Fund Manager;

7.6.4 ensuring that the Pooled Fund Manager complies with his/her obligations under this 
Agreement.

8 POOLED FUND MANAGEMENT

8.1 The Pooled Fund Manager in respect of  the Pooled Fund shall have the following duties and 
responsibilities:

8.1.1 the day to day operation and management of the Pooled Fund; 

8.1.2 ensuring that all income and expenditure from the Pooled Fund is in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement and the relevant Areas of Provision; 

8.1.3 maintaining an overview of all joint financial issues affecting the Partners in relation to the 
Services and the Pooled Fund; 

8.1.4 ensuring that full and proper records for accounting purposes are kept in respect of the 
Pooled Fund; 

Page 103



12 | P a g e

8.1.5 reporting to the Integrated Commissioning Board as required by the Integrated 
Commissioning Board;

8.1.6 ensuring action is taken to manage any projected under or overspends relating to the 
Pooled Fund in accordance with this Agreement;

8.1.7 preparing and submitting to the Integrated Commissioning Board bi-monthly reports (or 
more frequent reports if required by the Integrated Commissioning Board) and an annual 
return about the income and expenditure from the Pooled Fund together with such other 
information as may be required by the Partners and the Integrated Commissioning Board 
to monitor the effectiveness of the Pooled Fund and to enable the Partners to complete 
their own financial accounts and returns. The Partners agree to provide all necessary 
information to the Pooled Fund Manager in time for the reporting requirements to be met.

8.1.8 preparing and submitting reports to the Health and Wellbeing Board as required by it.

8.2 In carrying out their responsibilities as provided under Clause 8.1 the Pooled Fund Manager shall 
have regard to the recommendations of the Integrated Commissioning Board and shall be 
accountable to the Partners.

8.3 The Integrated Commissioning Board may agree to the viring within the Pooled Fund 

9 FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

9.1 The Financial Contribution of the CCG and the Council to the Pooled Fund shall be as set out in 
Schedule 6. Financial Contributions will be paid / transferred by the CCG / Council monthly on the 
1st of each month.

9.2 No provision of this Agreement shall preclude the Partners from making additional contributions of 
Non-Recurrent Payments to the Pooled Fund from time to time by mutual agreement.  Any such 
additional contributions of Non-Recurrent Payments shall be explicitly recorded in Integrated 
Commissioning Board minutes and recorded in the budget statement as a separate item.

10 RISK SHARE ARRANGMENTS, OVERSPENDS AND UNDERSPEND 

RISK SHARE ARRANGEMENTS 

10.1 The Partners have agreed risk share arrangements as set out in Schedule 3, which provide for 
financial risks arising within the commissioning of services from the pooled funds.  

OVERSPENDS IN POOLED FUND 

10.2 Subject to Clause 10.3 the Host Partner for the relevant Pooled Fund shall manage income and 
expenditure from a Pooled Fund within the Financial Contributions and shall ensure that the 
expenditure is limited to Permitted Budget.

10.3 The Host Partner shall not be in breach of its obligations under this Agreement if an Overspend 
occurs PROVIDED THAT the only expenditure from a Pooled Fund has been in accordance with 
Permitted Expenditure and it has informed the Integrated Commissioning Board in accordance with 
Clause 10.4.  

10.4 In the event that the Pooled Fund Manager identifies an actual or projected Overspend the Pooled 
Fund Manager must ensure that the Integrated Commissioning Board is informed as soon as 
reasonably possible and Schedule 3 shall apply.

UNDERSPEND

10.5 In the event that net expenditure from the Pooled Fund in a Financial Year is less than the Financial 
Contributions made for that Financial Year by each Partner then the underspend will be returned to 

Page 104



13 | P a g e

each Partner based on the initial level of contributions made by each Partner at the start of the 
financial year in accordance with the provisions set out in Schedule 3. An alternative may be that any 
underspend is carried forward, subject to approval by HMR CCG Governing Body and the Council’s 
cabinet, to support any unmet pressures in the following year. 

11 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure will be agreed by the Partners. Any underspend in relation to the capital will be 
returned to the Council, as the Council will be the recipient of the Disabled Facilities Grant within the 
Better care Fund element of the Pool.

  
12 VAT

The Host partner (lead body) shall agree the treatment of the Pooled Fund for VAT purposes in 
accordance with any relevant guidance from HM Customs and Excise. 

13 AUDIT AND RIGHT OF ACCESS

13.1 Both Partners shall promote a culture of probity and sound financial discipline and control. The Host 
Partner shall arrange for the audit of the accounts of the relevant Pooled Fund and shall make 
arrangements for the certification of the annual return of those accounts in accordance with the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014

13.2 All internal and external auditors and all other persons authorised by the Partners will be given the 
right of access by them to any document, information or explanation they require from any employee, 
member of the Partner in order to carry out their duties. This right is not limited to financial 
information or accounting records and applies equally to premises or equipment used in connection 
with this Agreement.  Access may be at any time without notice, provided there is good cause for 
access without notice.

LIABILITIES AND INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 

13.3 Liabilities and Insurance and indemnity Subject to Clause 13.5, if a Partner (“First Partner”) incurs a 
Loss arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services Contract as a consequence 
of any act or omission of another Partner (“Other Partner”) which constitutes negligence, fraud or a 
breach of contract in relation to this Agreement or the Services Contract then the Other Partner shall 
be liable to the First Partner for that Loss and shall indemnify the First Partner accordingly. 

13.4 Clause 13.3 shall only apply to the extent that the acts or omissions of the Other Partner contributed 
to the relevant Loss. Furthermore, it shall not apply if such act or omission occurred as a 
consequence of the Other Partner acting in accordance with the instructions or requests of the First 
Partner or the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

13.5 If any third party makes a claim or intimates an intention to make a claim against either Partner, 
which may reasonably be considered as likely to give rise to liability under this Clause 13. the 
Partner that may claim against the other indemnifying Partner will:

13.5.1 as soon as reasonably practicable give written notice of that matter to the Other Partner 
specifying in reasonable detail the nature of the relevant claim;

13.5.2 not make any admission of liability, agreement or compromise in relation to the relevant 
claim without the prior written consent of the Other Partner (such consent not to be 
unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed);

13.5.3 give the Other Partner and its professional advisers reasonable access to its premises 
and personnel and to any relevant assets, accounts, documents and records within its 
power or control so as to enable the Indemnifying Partner and its professional advisers to 
examine such premises, assets, accounts, documents and records and to take copies at 
their own expense for the purpose of assessing the merits of, and if necessary defending, 
the relevant claim.

Page 105



14 | P a g e

13.6 Each Partner shall ensure that they maintain policies of insurance (or equivalent arrangements 
through schemes operated by the National Health Service Litigation Authority) in respect of all 
potential liabilities arising from this Agreement.

13.7 Each Partner shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any loss for which 
one party is entitled to bring a claim against the other pursuant to this Agreement.

14 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND SERVICE

14.1 The Partners will at all times comply with Law and ensure good corporate governance in respect of 
each Partner (including the Partners respective Standing Orders and Standing Financial 
Instructions). 

14.2 The Council is subject to the duty of Best Value under the Local Government Act 1999.  This 
Agreement and the operation of the Pooled Fund is therefore subject to the Council’s obligations for 
Best Value and the other Partners will co-operate with all reasonable requests from the Council 
which the Council considers necessary in order to fulfil its Best Value obligations. 

14.3 The CCG is subject to a duty as to its effectiveness and efficiency under Section 14Q of the NHS Act 
2006 as well as other Statutory Duties and these incorporate a duty of clinical governance, which is a 
framework through which they are accountable for continuously improving the quality of its services 
and safeguarding high standards of care by creating an environment in which excellence in clinical 
care will flourish. This Agreement and the operation of the Pooled Funds are therefore subject to 
ensuring compliance with the CCG Statutory Duties and clinical governance obligations.

14.4 The Partners are committed to an approach to equality and e qual opportunities as represented in 
their respective policies.  The Partners will maintain and develop these policies as applied to service 
provision, with the aim of developing a joint strategy for all elements of the service.

15 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

15.1. The Partners shall comply with the agreed policy for identifying and managing conflicts of interest as 
set out in Schedule 4 

16 GOVERNANCE 

16.1 Overall strategic oversight of Partnership working between the Partners is vested in the Health and 
Well Being Board, which for these purposes shall make recommendations to the Partners as to any 
action it considers necessary.

16.2 The Partners have established an Integrated Commissioning Board to be the decision making body 
in line with implementation of all the schemes in the  Pooled Fund, and to lead the further work of the  
Partnership to extend integrated commissioning.

16.3 The terms of reference of the Integrated Commissioning Board are  as set out in Schedule  2

16.4 The Integrated Commissioning Board is accountable to the Health and Wellbeing Board. Each 
Partner has secured internal reporting arrangements to ensure the standards of accountability and 
probity required by each Partner's own statutory duties and organisation are complied with.  

16.5 The Integrated Commissioning Board shall be responsible for the overall approval of the Services, 
ensuring compliance with statutory duties and the strategic direction set by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board including any specific national Better Care Fund requirements. . 

17 REVIEW  

17.1 The Integrated Commissioning Board will review the Partnership arrangements annually. 

18 COMPLAINTS 

Page 106



15 | P a g e

The Partners’ own complaints procedures shall apply to this Agreement. The Partners agree to 
assist one another in the management of complaints arising from this Agreement or the provision of 
the Services. 

19 TERMINATION & DEFAULT 

19.1 Individual contracts within the Services noted in Schedule 1 can be decommissioned in line with the 
Decommissioning Strategy  if outcomes are not being met and new contracts commissioned to 
rectify this.

19.2 If any Partner fails to meet any of its obligations under this Agreement, the other Partner may by 
notice require the Partner to take such reasonable action within a reasonable timescale as the other 
Partner may specify to rectify such failure.  Should the Partner fail to rectify such failure within such 
reasonable timescale, the matter shall be referred for dispute resolution in accordance with Clause 
20. 

19.3 Termination of this Agreement (whether by effluxion of time or otherwise) shall be without prejudice 
to the Partners’ rights in respect of any antecedent breach and the provisions of Clauses 

19.4 In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Partners agree to cooperate to ensure an orderly 
wind down of their joint activities and to use their best endeavours to minimise disruption to the 
health and social care which is provided to the Service Users

19.5 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever the following shall apply:

19.5.1 the Partners agree that they will work together and co-operate to ensure that the winding 
down and disaggregation of the integrated and joint activities to the separate 
responsibilities of the Partners is carried out smoothly and with as little disruption as 
possible to service users, employees, the Partners and third parties, so as to minimise 
costs and liabilities of each Partner in doing so;

19.5.2 where either Partner has entered into a Service Contract which continues after the 
termination of this Agreement, both Partners shall continue to contribute to the Contract 
Price in accordance with the agreed contribution for that Service prior to termination and 
will enter into all appropriate legal documentation required in respect of this;

19.5.3 the Lead Commissioner shall make reasonable endeavours to amend or terminate a 
Service Contract (which shall for the avoidance of doubt not include any act or omission 
that would place the Lead Commissioner in breach of the Service Contract) where the 
other Partner requests the same in writing Provided that the Lead Commissioner shall not 
be required to make any payments to the Provider for such amendment or termination 
unless the Partners shall have agreed in advance who shall be responsible for any such 
payment.

19.5.4 where a Service Contract held by a Lead Commissioner relates all or partially to services 
which relate to the other Partner's Functions then provided that the Service Contract 
allows the other Partner may request  the Lead Commissioner to assign the Service 
Contract in whole or part upon the same terms mutatis mutandis as the original contract.

19.5.5 the Integrated Commissioning Board shall continue to operate for the purposes of 
functions associated with this Agreement for the remainder of any contracts and 
commitments relating to this Agreement; and

19.5.6 Termination of this Agreement shall have no effect on the liability of any rights or 
remedies of either Partner already accrued, prior to the date upon which such termination 
takes effect.

19.6 In the event of termination in relation to an Individual contract or service the provisions of Clause 19 
shall apply mutatis mutandis in relation to the Individual contract or service (as though references as 
to this Agreement were to that Individual contract or service).

Page 107



16 | P a g e

20 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

20.1 In the event of a dispute between the Partners arising out of this Agreement, either Partner may 
serve written notice of the dispute on the other Partner, setting out full details of the dispute.

20.2 The Authorised Officer shall meet in good faith as soon as possible and in any event within seven (7) 
days of notice of the dispute being served pursuant to Clause 20.1, at a meeting convened for the 
purpose of resolving the dispute.

20.3 If the dispute remains after the meeting detailed in Clause 20.2 has taken place, the Partners' 
respective Chief Executive, Chief Officer or nominees shall meet in good faith as soon as possible 
after the relevant meeting and in any event with fourteen (14) days of the date of the meeting, for the 
purpose of resolving the dispute. 

20.4 If the dispute remains after the meeting detailed in Clause 20.3 has taken place, then the Partners 
will attempt to settle such dispute by mediation in accordance with the CEDR Model Mediation 
Procedure or any other model mediation procedure as agreed by the Partners. To initiate mediation, 
either Partner may give notice in writing (a "Mediation Notice") to the other requesting mediation of 
the dispute and shall send a copy thereof to CEDR or an equivalent mediation organisation as 
agreed by the Partners asking them to nominate a mediator.  The mediation shall commence within 
twenty (20) Working Days of the Mediation Notice being served.  Neither Partner will terminate such 
mediation until each of them has made its opening presentation and the mediator has met each of 
them separately for at least one (1) hour. Thereafter, paragraph 14 of the Model Mediation 
Procedure will apply (or the equivalent paragraph of any other model mediation procedure agreed by 
the Partners).  The Partners will co-operate with any person appointed as mediator, providing him 
with such information and other assistance as he shall require and will pay his costs as he shall 
determine or in the absence of such determination such costs will be shared equally.

20.5 Nothing in the procedure set out in this Clause 20 shall in any way affect either Partner's right to 
terminate this Agreement in accordance with any of its terms or take immediate legal action.

21 FORCE MAJEURE 

21.1 Neither Partner shall be entitled to bring a claim for a breach of obligations under this Agreement by 
the other Partner or incur any liability to the other Partner for any losses or damages incurred by that 
Partner to the extent that a Force Majeure Event occurs and it is prevented from carrying out its 
obligations by that Force Majeure Event.

21.2 On the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, the Affected Partner shall notify the other Partner as 
soon as practicable.  Such notification shall include details of the Force Majeure Event, including 
evidence of its effect on the obligations of the Affected Partner and any action proposed to mitigate 
its effect.

21.3 As soon as practicable, following notification as detailed in Clause 21.2, the Partners shall consult 
with each other in good faith and use all best endeavours to agree appropriate terms to mitigate the 
effects of the Force Majeure Event and, subject to Clause 21.4, facilitate the continued performance 
of the Agreement.

21.4 If the Force Majeure Event continues for a period of more than sixty (60) days, either Partner shall 
have the right to terminate the Agreement by giving fourteen (14) days written notice of termination 
to the other Partner. For the avoidance of doubt, no compensation shall be payable by either Partner 
as a direct consequence of this Agreement being terminated in accordance with this Clause.

22 CONFIDENTIALITY

22.1 In respect of any Confidential Information a Partner receives from another Partner (the "Discloser") 
and subject always to the remainder of this Clause 22, each Partner (the "Recipient”) undertakes to 
keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any 
third party, without the Discloser’s prior written consent provided that:

Page 108



17 | P a g e

22.1.1 the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or 
skills which were in its possession prior to the Commencement Date; and

22.1.2 the provisions of this Clause 22 shall not apply to any Confidential Information which:

(a) is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of the Agreement or other 
act or omission of the Recipient; or

(b) is obtained by a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such information.

22.2 Nothing in this Clause 22 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential Information where 
it is required to do so in fulfilment of statutory obligations or by judicial, administrative, governmental 
or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by 
applicable Law.

22.3 Each Partner: 

22.3.1 may only disclose Confidential Information to its employees and professional advisors to 
the extent strictly necessary for such employees to carry out their duties under the 
Agreement; and

22.3.2 will ensure that, where Confidential Information is disclosed in accordance with Clause 
22.3.1, the recipient(s) of that information is made subject to a duty of confidentiality 
equivalent to that contained in this Clause 22;

22.3.3 shall not use Confidential Information other than strictly for the performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement.

23 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION REGULATIONS

23.1 The Partners agree that they will each cooperate with each other to enable any Partner receiving a 
request for information under the 2000 Act or the 2004 Regulations to respond to a request promptly 
and within the statutory timescales. This cooperation shall include but not be limited to finding, 
retrieving and supplying information held, directing requests to other Partners as appropriate and 
responding to any requests by the Partner receiving a request for comments or other assistance.

23.2 Any and all agreements between the Partners as to confidentiality shall be subject to their duties 
under the 2000 Act and 2004 Regulations.  No Partner shall be in breach of Clause 23 if it makes 
disclosures of information in accordance with the 2000 Act and/or 2004 Regulations

24 OMBUDSMEN

The Partners will co-operate with any investigation undertaken by the Health Service Commissioner 
for England or the Local Government Commissioner for England (or both of them) in connection with 
this Agreement.

25 INFORMATION SHARING

The Partners will follow the Information Governance Protocol set out in Schedule 5, and in so doing 
will  ensure that the operation this Agreement complies comply with Law, in particular the 1998 Act. 

26 NOTICES

26.1 Any notice to be given under this Agreement shall either be delivered personally or sent by first class 
post.  The address for service of each Partner shall be as set out in Clause 26.2 or such other 
address as each Partner may previously have notified to the other Partner in writing.  A notice shall 
be deemed to have been served if:

26.1.1 personally delivered, at the time of delivery; 

Page 109



18 | P a g e

26.1.2 posted, at the expiration of forty eight (48) hours after the envelope containing the same 
was delivered into the custody of the postal authorities; and

26.2 In proving such service, it shall be sufficient to prove that personal delivery was made, or that the 
envelope containing such notice was properly addressed and delivered into the custody of the postal 
authority as prepaid first class or airmail letter (as appropriate). The address for service of notices as 
referred to in Clause 26.1 shall be as follows unless otherwise notified to the other Partner in writing:

26.2.1 if to the Council, addressed to the  Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) 
Rochdale Borough Council, Floor 2 Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale,OL16 
1XU; 

Tel:  01706 924710

and 

26.2.2 if to the CCG, addressed to the Chief Officer NHS HMR CCG, PO Box 100, Rochdale, 
OL16 9NP; 

Tel:  01706 652864

27 VARIATION  

No variations to this Agreement will be valid unless they are recorded in writing and signed for and 
on behalf of each of the Partners.

28 CHANGE IN LAW

28.1 The Partners shall ascertain, observe, perform and comply with all relevant Laws, and shall do and 
execute or cause to be done and executed all acts required to be done under or by virtue of any 
Laws. 

28.2 On the occurrence of any Change in Law, the Partners shall agree in good faith any amendment 
required to this Agreement as a result of the Change in Law subject to the Partners using all 
reasonable endeavours to mitigate the adverse effects of such Change in Law and taking all 
reasonable steps to minimise any increase in costs arising from such Change in Law.

28.3 In the event of failure by the Partners to agree the relevant amendments to the Agreement (as 
appropriate), the Clause 20 (Dispute Resolution) shall apply.

29 WAIVER

No failure or delay by any Partner to exercise any right, power or remedy will operate as a waiver of 
it nor will any partial exercise preclude any further exercise of the same or of some other right to 
remedy.

30 SEVERANCE

If any provision of this Agreement, not being of a fundamental nature, shall be held to be illegal or 
unenforceable, the enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall not thereby be affected.

31 ASSIGNMENT  AND SUB CONTRACTING

The Partners shall not sub contract, assign or transfer the whole or any part of this Agreement, 
without the prior written consent of the other Partners, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. This shall not apply to any assignment to a statutory successor of all or part of a Partner’s 
statutory functions.

Page 110



19 | P a g e

32 EXCLUSION OF PARTNERSHIP AND AGENCY

32.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall create or be deemed to create a Partnership under the Partnership 
Act 1890 or the Limited Partnership Act 1907, a joint venture or the relationship of employer and 
employee between the Partners or render either Partner directly liable to any third party for the 
debts, liabilities or obligations of the other.  

32.2 Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement or where the context or any statutory 
provision otherwise necessarily requires, neither Partner will have authority to, or hold itself out as 
having authority to:

32.2.1 act as an agent of the other;

32.2.2 make any representations or give any warranties to third parties on behalf of or in respect 
of the other; or

32.2.3 bind the other in any way.

33 THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

Unless the right of enforcement is expressly provided, no third party shall have the right to pursue 
any right under this Contract pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 or 
otherwise.

34 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

34.1 The terms herein contained together with the contents of the Schedules constitute the complete 
agreement between the Partners with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all 
previous communications representations understandings and agreement and any representation 
promise or condition not incorporated herein shall not be binding on any Partner.

34.2 No agreement or understanding varying or extending or pursuant to any of the terms or provisions 
hereof shall be binding upon any Partner unless in writing and signed by a duly authorised officer or 
representative of the parties.

35 GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

35.1 This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or 
formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

35.2 Subject to Clause 23 (Dispute Resolution), the Partners irrevocably agree that the courts of England 
and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear and settle any action, suit, proceedings, dispute 
or claim, which may arises out of, or in connection with, this Agreement, its subject matter or 
formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims).

Page 111



20 | P a g e

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the Partners on the date of this Agreement

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY affixing       )
THE COMMON SEAL of                           )
THE ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL )

_________________________

Authorised Signatory

Name :

Position :

Signed for on behalf of CLINICAL 
COMMISSIONING GROUP

_________________________

Authorised Signatory

Name :

Position :

Page 112



21 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 1 – Area of Provision
The table below reflects the opening budgets for 18/19 noted in the “18/19 Opening Budgets” report taken to 
ICB on 10th April 2018. 

An update on the Pooled Fund Savings Programme for 18/19 is being taken to ICB on 29th May 2018 
confirming the latest Pooled Fund position following the submission of the 2018/19 CCG Annual Plan to NHS 
England on 30th April 2018. The table below confirms what actions have been taken to reduce the deficit to 
£5.165m :-

Page 113



22 | P a g e

Under the terms of the agreed Risk Share Agreement this potential deficit would be split as follows :-

 

Further updates will be taken to ICB on a bi-monthly basis and any changes to the budget position will be 
formally reported within these reports. These reports will also include reference to any capital funding that 
may become part of the Pooled Fund arrangement.   

Page 114



23 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 2 - GOVERNANCE

The diagram below illustrates the governance arrangements for the commissioning and delivery of integrated 
health and social care services in Rochdale Borough, including the Better Care Fund (BCF). 

The Terms Reference for the Integrated Commissioning Board are attached as Appendix 1 of Schedule 2. 

Page 115



24 | P a g e

Schedule 2, Appendix 1

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD 

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To commission high quality health, social care and related services for the people of the 
Borough of Rochdale in order to meet assessed population, community and individual need, 
within the financial resources over which the Board has control.  

2. To agree the Health, Social care and Well-being commissioning strategies and commissioning 
outcomes for Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) and NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) in accordance with the agreed delegations from 
RBC and HMRCCG. 

3. To manage all the pooled budgets established under section 75 of the National Health Service 
Act 2006.

4. To agree the allocation of resources for the delivery of the integrated commissioning strategies 
through the use of pooled or aligned budgets from HMRCCG and RBC.  This will ensure that 
the wellbeing, social care and health-related functions of RBC and the prescribed functions of 
HMR CCG in commissioning health-related services are undertaken.  

5. To approve the associated strategic plans and work programmes prepared by the integrated 
commissioning programme leads  

6. To approve integrated workforce development strategies and plans and associated resource 
allocations.

STATUTORY AND PROCEDURAL BASIS

The Integrated Commissioning Board has been established by NHS Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) and Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) 
pursuant to the the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Regulations 2000 as amended, 
and derives its authority and decision-making powers from these two organisations.  

The Integrated Commissioning Board is established as joint committee under the NHS Bodies and 
Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 (as amended) whereby prescribed 
NHS bodies and local authorities may form such a joint committee to take responsibility for the 
management of partnership arrangements established in accordance with that Order. 

Page 116



25 | P a g e

The Local Authorities (Executive and Alternative Arrangements) (Modification of Enactments and 
Other Provisions) (England) Order 2001 provide that where a local authority operates executive 
arrangements, the terms “executive” and “executive arrangements” have the same meaning as in 
Part II of the Local Government Act 2000. 

ACCOUNTABILITY

1. The Integrated Commissioning Board will report to the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 
achievement of outcomes for commissioned services in meeting the agreed objectives.  
The Health and Wellbeing Board shall report concerns that cannot be resolved with the 
Integrated Commissioning Board to RBC and the HMRCCG.

2. The Integrated Commissioning Board will report to RBC and HMRCCG on the performance 
of the commissioning strategy and implementation and on the effective use of resources  

Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board who have the delegated accountability on behalf 
of RBC and HMRCCG to manage the functions of the Board shall be responsible for reporting to 
their respective bodies any concerns with regard to the functioning of the Board and the capacity of 
the Board in fulfilling their constitutional or statutory functions.

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD WORKING ARRANGEMENTS

In pursuance of the terms of reference, the Integrated Commissioning Board shall:

1. Assure the HWBB on the delivery of commissioning for outcomes identified in the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and specifically those identified as priority outcomes.

2. Oversee the development and establishment of integrated commissioning arrangements in the 
Borough, ensuring that the requirements of both HMRCCG and RBC are met, that they are 
based on best practice, and strategic alignment to the intent of the Greater Manchester 
Devolution Agreement, and specifically the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership, is maintained.

3. Govern the arrangements for integrated commissioning providing assurance to HMRCCG and 
RBC that their statutory responsibilities are being met, their strategic objectives are being 
addressed and that their combined resources are being used to best effect.

4. Govern the arrangements with strong clinical assurance and democratic accountability.

5. Be accountable for the achievement of the agreed commissioning strategies and plans on 
behalf of HMRCCG and RBC.

6. Ensure that the integrated commissioning strategies describe how the outcomes and 
objectives set out in the section 75 Agreements and aligned budget arrangements and the 
high-level strategic goals and outcomes of HMR CCG and RBC are to be achieved.

Page 117



26 | P a g e

7. Be accountable for the commissioning of a Local Care Organisation (LCO) and for the 
assurance of the effectiveness of the LCO to meet the health, care and wellbeing outcomes for 
Rochdale

8. Commit the resources within the pooled fund to achieve the objectives of the integrated 
commissioning strategies, within the level of delegated resources assigned to it.

9. Be responsible for developing a joint financial plan to underpin the overall commissioning 
strategy and providing direction in relation to investments and savings to be made by both 
partners.

10. Undertake an annual work-plan within the agreed budget to implement the integrated 
commissioning strategies.  The work-plan will include the priorities for each operational 
commissioning programme for that year.  

11. Set the standards for, and to monitor and review the outcomes and performance of 
commissioned services in line with the integrated commissioning strategy and work-plan, 
identifying areas for improvement and areas of good practice, taking action where outcomes 
and performance fall short of requirements

12. Ensure the engagement of stakeholder groups, including users, patients and carers, providers 
and community organisations, in the commissioning cycle including where appropriate the co-
design of commissioned services, the formulation of the integrated commissioning strategy 
and the annual work-plan.

13. Hold the Integrated Commissioning Directorate and the individual commissioning teams of the 
Partners to account for the performance and delivery of commissioning programmes as 
required by the agreed commissioning plan/strategy, the annual work-plan, and the section 75 
Agreements.

14. Identify, record, mitigate and manage all risks associated with integrated commissioning, 
including the maintenance of a risk register which shall be included on the corporate risk 
registers of both HMRCCG and RBC.

15. Review regular performance and financial monitoring reports and ensure, if required, 
appropriate actions are taken to ensure annual delivery of expected performance targets and 
approved schemes within permitted budget for the financial year.  

Page 118



27 | P a g e

MEETINGS OF THE INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

Formal public meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall be held on a quarterly basis, 
with further meetings convened as required with the agreement of the Chair and Vice Chair.  If the 
business to be considered involves confidential or exempt business, the Board can resolve to 
exclude the public during consideration of that business.

Members of the Board shall meet on an informal basis on further occasions to consider matters 
such as policy and strategy development, operational issues arising etc in order to formulate 
recommendations, where appropriate, for formal consideration and determination by the Board. 

1. Membership

The voting membership of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comprise an 
Independent Chair and membership drawn from the HMRCCG and RBC.  

Independent Chair

An Independent Chair of the Board shall be appointed by the partners.  The Independent Chair 
shall vote only to determine a matter in the event of an equality of votes.

A Vice Chair of the Board shall be appointed on a rotating annual basis between a HMRCCG 
member and an RBC member to chair meetings of the Board in the absence of the Chair.  The 
Vice-Chair shall not have a second or casting vote.

The Partners have determined their voting memberships of the Board as follows – 

HMRCCG   

 One GP  member
 Clinical Chair
 Chief Accountable Officer or nominee
 One Lay Member

RBC

 Cabinet member with responsibility for Adult Services
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Children’s Services 
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Health and Wellbeing 
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Finance

A nominated substitute is permitted to attend and vote in the absence of a Board   member 
provided that notification of the substitution arrangement is given to RBC Governance 
Services by noon on the working day prior to the meeting and the nominated substitute is 
eligible to serve.

The voting membership shall be supported by the following attending Advisors – 

 The Joint Director for Integrated Commissioning

Page 119



28 | P a g e

HMRCCG

 Chief Finance Officer
 Director with responsibility for Primary Care, Quality and Support Services and Exec 

Nurse
 Chair of the Clinical and Professional Advisory Board
 One GP
 One Lay Member

RBC

 Chief Executive
 Director of Adult Care
 Director of Children’s Services
 Director of Public Health and Wellbeing
 Chief Finance Officer
 Monitoring Officer

 Any further persons, including further Officers of HMRCCG and RBC, as the Board 
consider appropriate

2. Quorum

 The quorum shall be three voting members from each partner organisation.

3. Voting

The Board shall seek to determine matters by consensus.  If there is no dissent, decisions will 
be taken by the affirmation of the meeting.

If consensus cannot be achieved and in the event of a vote, each voting member from the 
partner organisations shall have one vote and a decision reached by simple majority.  In the 
event of an equality of votes, the Independent Chair shall exercise a casting vote.

4. Conduct and Declarations of Interest

Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comply with the requirements of the 
Codes and Protocols of their respective organisations.  

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of Rochdale 
Council shall have regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-
opted Members at Part 5A to the RBC Constitution and shall declare such interests are 
required under that Code and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting.

Page 120



29 | P a g e

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of HMRCCG 
shall have regard to Part 8 “Standards of Business Conduct and Managing Conflicts of 
Interest” of the HMR CCG Constitution and shall declare such interests as are required under 
that Part and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting.

An up to date register of members’ interest will be retained.  Members will be expected to 
declare any conflicts of interest at all meetings and the Chair will determine how any conflict 
will be handled in line with CCG policy and guidelines.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, the Independent chair 
shall comply with the Constitutional requirements of both RBC and HMRCCG and shall 
declare such interests as are required of either or both partner’s process and shall, where 
required, withdraw from the meeting

5. Meetings Procedure Rules

Formal meetings shall be convened and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the RBC Constitution, particularly the Procedure Rules that 
provide the statutory basis for the conduct of meetings and business, and with the Standing 
Orders at Appendix C to the HMRCCG Constitution.  

Where the statutory or procedural requirements for the conduct of meetings differ between 
partners, the particular option that addresses the statutory or procedural requirements of each 
partner, or which accords greater public access, shall apply.    

The following provisions shall apply to the formal meetings of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board

 Agenda and reports will be published and made available at least five clear working 
days prior to the day of a meeting.

 Papers and meetings will be open to the public except in circumstances where 
confidential and/or exempt matters are likely to be considered.

 Confidential information means information provided by a Government Department on 
terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which cannot be publicly 
disclosed by Court Order.

 Exempt information means
(i) Information relating to any individual
(ii) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
(iii) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information)
(iv) Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, 
or officer-holders under, the authority

(v) Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings

(vi) Information which, if disclosed to the public, would reveal that the authority 
proposes to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 

Page 121



30 | P a g e

requirements are imposed on a person; or to make an order or direction 
under any enactment

(vii) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Information is exempt if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.  In all cases, before the public is excluded the meeting must be satisfied 
that, in all circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.

 28 days public notice of when Key Decisions, as defined at Part 4B of the RBC 
Constitution, are to be taken shall be given.  In the event of less than 28 days notice 
being provided, the General Exception or Special Urgency provisions of Part 4B of the 
RBC Constitution shall apply.

 28 days public notice of the proposed consideration of business in private shall be 
given.  In the event of less than 28 days notice being provided provisions to permit 
consideration on grounds of urgency as provided for in Part 4B of the Council’s 
constitution shall apply. 

 The Integrated Commissioning Board shall be subject to the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny arrangements, including the eligibility of decisions for call-in and review, and 
the requirement to attend overview and scrutiny meetings.

6. Support

The Integrated Commissioning Board shall establish such operational sub-groups as it 
considers necessary to ensure the delivery of commissioning outcomes.  Such sub-groups 
shall be kept under review to ensure their relevance going forward.

7. Review of Arrangements

The Integrated Commissioning Board shall review operational arrangements in March each 
year and, where necessary, make recommendations for amendments to the parent 
organisation

Page 122



31 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 3 – RISK SHARE AND OVERSPENDS

1     Underspend/Overspends

If a revenue overspend or underspend remains at the end of a financial year, the Partners agree that
such Underspend and Overspends will be managed based on the initial level of contributions made by 
each Partner at the start of each financial year.

Each Partner will have to make a Non-Recurrent Payment pro rata to the initial level of contributions 
made by each Partner at the start of each financial year, if a net Overspend remains at the end of the 
Financial Year.

A net Underspend at the end of the Financial Year will be returned to each Partner pro rata to the initial 
level of contributions made by each Partner at the start of each financial year, or if approved by HMR 
CCG Governing Body and the Council’s Cabinet, the underspend could be carried forward to the 
following financial year.

Pooled Fund Management

The Pooled Fund Manager, with full cooperation from each Partner, has the responsibility to report to
the Integrated Commissioning Board any such potential Overspends and Underspends with options for 
addressing them at the earliest opportunity.

Actions could include:
 agreeing an action plan to reduce expenditure;
 identifying underspends that can be vired from any other Permitted Budget maintained under

this agreement.
 consider additional contributions from one or both Partners
 consider decommissioning all or any part of a Service

Should there be a projected Overspend against any of the Areas of Provision as identified in Schedule 
1, the respective budget holder will seek to rectify this in the first instance before any decision is taken 
to utilise Underspends on any other schemes.

The Integrated Commissioning Board must authorise any appropriate action. Any virement between
schemes must be ratified by the Integrated Commissioning Board.

Page 123



32 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 4
Integrated Commissioning Board

Conflict of interest

The Integrated Commissioning Board at its meeting on 8th August 2017 agreed the following approach in 
relation to Conduct and Declarations of Interest :-

“Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comply with the requirements of the Codes and 
Protocols of their respective organisations.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of Rochdale Council shall 
have regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted Members at Part 5A to 
the RBC Constitution and shall declare such interests are required under that Code and shall, where 
required, withdraw from the meeting.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of HMRCCG shall have 
regard to Part 8 “Standards of Business Conduct and Managing Conflicts of Interest” of the HMR CCG 
Constitution and shall declare such interests as are required under that Part and shall, where required, 
withdraw from the meeting.

An up to date register of members’ interest will be retained. Members will be expected to declare any 
conflicts of interest at all meetings and the Chair will determine how any conflict will be handled in line with 
CCG policy and guidelines.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, the Independent chair shall comply 
with the Constitutional requirements of both RBC and HMRCCG and shall declare such interests as are 
required of either or both partner’s process and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting.”

The Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted Members at Part 5A to the RBC 
Constitution can be found at the following link :- 

Part 5A Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted Members

Part 8 “Standards of Business Conduct and Managing Conflicts of Interest” of the HMR CCG 
Constitution can be found here (pages 30-35 refer)

Part 8 Standards of Business Conduct and Managing Conflicts of Interest

In addition the Conflicts of Interest Policy that was approved at HMR CCG’s Governing Body on 16th 
March 2018 can be found at the following link :-

NHS HMR CCG Conflicts of Interest Policy

Page 124

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-02-27-constitution-part-5a-code-conduct-for-councillors-and-voting-co-opted-members-february-2017-v2.pdf
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/images/Constitution_V13_Approved_by_NHS_England_June_2017.pdf
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/images/Conflicts_of_Interest_Policy_FEBRUARY_2018_v2.1.pdf


33 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 5 – INFORMATION GOVERNANCE  

The IG Framework provides for safeguarding the processing of all personal confidential information between 
partners and organisations commissioned to deliver services under contract.  Requirements will be 
incorporated into a set of standard contract clauses.

General principles
1. The Information Governance Toolkit defines the minimum standards for Information Governance for health 
and social care. Where practicable, each organisation will commit to undertaking, following and complying 
with the Information Governance Toolkit to a minimum of Level 2. Where Level 2 has not been met, an 
action plan for necessary improvements will be agreed with the Commissioning Body.

The Information Governance Toolkit is an online performance tool produced by the Department of Health 
(DH) and hosted by the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC). It allows NHS organisations 
and partners to assess themselves against DH information governance policies and standards.  In Health 
and local authorities, this may be the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO). Other agencies may not have 
these identified roles and, therefore, it will be a senior manager responsible for ensuring compliance with 
Data Protection.

2. Each organisation shall have appointed a responsible / accountable officer who will ensure the protection 
of personal information for example a Caldicott Guardian or senior manager responsible for data protection.

3. Each organisation will take appropriate organisational and technical measures towards compliance with 
Data Protection Act 1998 (or the GDPR with effect from 25th May 2018), Caldicott Principles, ISO 27001 
Series of Information Security Standards, Freedom of Information Act 2000 and national guidance and rules 
around processing personal confidential information and other relevant legislation.

4. Each organisation is committed to identifying, documenting and risk assessing their data flows with any 
mitigating actions defined and agreed.

5. Each organisation is committed to ensuring staff are appropriately trained and comply with organisational 
policies in relation to Information Governance, including data protection, Confidentiality,  Caldicott Principles,  
Information Security,  Records Management and Freedom of Information.

6. Organisations will promptly notify other partner organisations of any Information Governance breach, 
vulnerability or threat that could affect the security of data being shared.

7. Organisations will agree to allow partner or lead organisations, or representatives, to carry out audits or 
visits to confirm compliance with agreed assurance requirements.

8. Each organisation commits to ensure that the data is shared in a safe and secure manner meeting the 
agreed purpose of the sharing.  

9. Any requests for information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Data Protection Act 1998 
(or GDPR with effect from 25th May 2018) should be directed to the original organisation's data protection 
officer (or equivalent).

10. Organisations may not create or establish onward sharing without the explicit permission of the original 
organisation's data protection officer.

 
 

Page 125



34 | P a g e

SCHEDULE 6 – FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The table below reflects contributions made by Partners as noted in the “18/19 Opening Budgets” report 
taken to ICB on 10th April 2018. 

Further updates will be taken to ICB on a bi-monthly basis and any changes to the contributions made by 
Partners will be formally reported within these reports.

Partner                           Agreed  Contribution 

HMR CCG £267,084k

RBC £94,031k

Total £361,115k

Page 126


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 Transformation Performance Report
	9 Transformation Programme - Highlights report
	10 Transformation Programme - Review of 2017/18
	11 Health and Social Care Better Care Fund Final Outturn Report 2017/18
	12 Health and Social Care Better Care Fund Revised Budget Report- 2018/19
	13 Final 2017/18 Shadow Pooled Budget Outturn Report
	Copy of Shadow Pooled Appendix and Dashboard P12

	14 Pooled Budget Savings Programme 2018/19
	15 Section 75 Report - Health and Social Care Pooled Fund
	S75 report - Appendix 1


